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Selected key consolidated financial data

Preliminary comments

Vivend: deconsolidated GVT, SFR. Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from May 28, 2015, November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014,
and October 11, 2013, respectively, 1e, the date of thewr effective sale by Vivend) In comphance with IFRS 5, these businesses have been
reported in Vivendr's Cansohidated Financral Statements as discontinued operations for all relevant periods as set out in the table of selected
key consohdated financial data below n respect of data contaned in the Consohdated Statement of Earnings and Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

Year ended December 31
2015 2014 2013 02 201

nsolidat
Revenues 10762 10,089 10,252 9597 9064
EBIT 1231 736 837 {1131} 1269
Eamngs atmbutable to Vivendi SA sharegwners 1932 4744 t 967 179 2681

of which earmnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners 699 {290) 43 {1 565) 5N
Income from operations (a) 1061 1108 i na na
EBITA {a} 942 999 955 1,074 1086
Adjusted net ;ncome {a) 697 626 454 318 270
Net Cash Pesition/{Financial Net Debt) {a) 6422 4637 {11,097} {13419} (12.027)
Total equity 21086 22988 19030 21291 22070

of which Vivendi SA shareowners” equity 20854 22 606 17457 18325 19 447
Cash fiow from operations (CFFO) (a) Ba2 843 4 846 897
Cash ftow from aperations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) {a) (69) 421 503 772 g26
Financial mnvestments {3927) {1 244) {100 {1 689) {283}
Financia! divestments 9m3 17 807 N 201 4205
Dondends paid by Vivendh SA to its shareholders 2721 134819 1325 1245 1M
Per share data
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 13615 13458 13306 1,2989 1,281 4
Adjusted net ncome per share 051 046 034 024 0.n
Number of shares cutstanding at the end of the period {excluding treasury shares) 13423 13516 13396 13225 12874
Equity per share attribuntable to Vivend: SA sharegwners 1554 1673 1303 1386 151
Dividends per share pawd 200 it 1.00 @ 100 100 140

in millions of euros, number of shares in millions, data per share in euros
na not apphicable

a  The non-GAAP measures of Income from operations (a measure of the operating performance of business segments recently applied by
Vivendl Management), EBITA, Adjusted net income, Net Cash Position {or Financial Net Debt), Cash flow from operations {CFFO} and
Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT} should be considered (n addition to, and not as a substitute for,
other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
Notes, or as described in this Financial Report Vivend considers these to be relevant indicatars of the group’s operating and financial
performance Each of these indicators 15 defined tn the appropriate section of this Financial Report or m its Appendix tn addition, it
should be noted that other companies may have different defimtions and calculations for these indicators from Vivendi, thereby
affecting comparability

b Relates to the ordinary dividend paid on April 23, 2015 with respect to fiscal year 2014 (€1 per share, re, €1,363 milion), and the
interim dividend paid on June 29, 2015 with respect to fiscal year 2015 (€1 per share, 1 &, £1,364 million)

¢ OnJune 30, 2014, Vivendi SA paid an ordinary dvidend of €1 per share to its shareholders from additional paid-in capital, treated as a
return of capital distnbution to shareholders
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Nota

In accordance with European Commssion Regulation (EC) 809/2004 (Article 28) which sets out the disclosure obligations for issuers of secunities
listed on a regulated market within the European Union implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the “Prospectus Regulation™), the following items are
incorporated by reference into this report.

s 7014 Financral Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented on pages 158 to 293 of the "Document de Référence™ No 0 150135, fited with the French Autorité des
Marchés Pinanciers (AMF) on March 13, 2015, and on pages 158 to 293 of the English transiation of this “Document de Référence”, and

e 2013 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented on pages 172 to 324 of the "Document de Référence” No D 14-0355, filed wath the French Autorité des
Marchés Financiers (AMF) on Apnl 14, 2014, and on pages 172 to 324 of the English translation of this “Document de Référence”

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Fnancral Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivendi /5
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I- 2015 Financial Report

Prelinunary comments

o OnFebruary 10, 2018, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2015 Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, which met on February 11, 2016, the Supervisory
Board, at its meeting heid on February 18, Z016, reviewed the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2015, as approved by the Management Board on February 10, 2016

»  The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Decernber 31, 2015 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Audrtors
without qualified opinton  The Statutory Auditors” Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 1s mcluded in the preamble to the
Financial Statements

Overview

Acceleration of internaticnal expansion
In 2015, Vivend: continued to develop its international activities which now account for close to 60% of its revenues

The group 1s the world leader in recerded music holding a 34% global market share' in 2014 The launch of new offenngs by global, regional
and local players as well as new entrants in digital music provide Universal Music Group with opportunities to expand into new markets

Vivend has 11 2 million pay-TV individual subscribers, of which 5 5 million are located outside mainland France In particular, Canab+ Group
now has more than 2 million individual subscrbers tn over 30 countries in Afnca where, after launching the African entertainment
channe! A+ in October 2014, 1t continued to expand its offer by adding 25 additional channels in 2015

The fiim and television production and distribution activities are driven in particular by Studiocanal, the leading European studio, which
continues Its geographical expansion by entering into agreements i the United Kingdom and in Scandinavia in 2015, and by strengthening
its presence in the North American market

In addition, with the acquisition of Dailymotion, one of the world's largest video platforms (3 5 bilhon wideos viewed each month), Vivend:
increased its digital distnbution capacity, resulting in an acceleration of its international development

In recent months, Vivendh atso confirmed its willingness to invest tn Southern Europe, @ market that shares its Latin culture and roots As of
December 31, 2015, 1t held 21 4% of Telecom ltaka’s common shares and 095% of Telefonica In December 2015, as a long-term
shareholder, the group successfully proposed the appointment of four members to the Board of Directors of the Italian telecoms operator, of
which three are Vivendi representatives and one is an independent member

The investment in Telecom [talia represents an opportunity for the group to be present and to expand in @ market with sigmficant growth
prospects and a very strong appetite for quality content In pursuit of its investment strategy n Latin content, Vivend) 1s exploring
opportunities te invest in several production companies in Southern Europe

Development of onginal content production

The development of onginal content production, which reduces Vivendi's dependence on third-parties, 1s being achieved by the continuous
investment in artists and talent, by multiplying onginal production projects and by the acquisition of interests in production companies

Vivendi relies on its own m-house production capabilities Canal+ (the Création onginale tabel), Studiocanal {cinema and seres), Flab Prod,
Studio+ and Can't Stop, companies acquired in the first half of 2015 (non-scripted televis:on shows), Studio Bagel {short web-based content}
and Universal Music Group labels

Vivendr will acquire a 26 2% nterest in Banyay Zodiak, one of the largest independent producers and distributors of television programs in
the world, resulting fram the combination of Banijay Group and Zodiak Media The transaction will be finalzed shortly The group also
acqured a 30% interest in Mars Films, a French leader in film preduction and distribution

! Source Music & Copyrght
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The need to stop losses of Canal+ channels in France

The six Canal+ channels’ have been losing money in France for the last four years With a subscriber base that has been severely eroded
since 2012, the channels recorded & negative EBITA of €264 mullion 1n 2015, a €76 million loss increase compared to 2014 The arnval of new
nationa! and snternational players in the areas of sports and fiction caused a surge n the price of content broadcasting rights and has
increased the number of competing offers, leading to greater losses

This situation threatens the entire Canal+ Group, which employs 8,200 people and 15 a major player in the financing and development of the
mowte industry, 1n which it invests globally close to €800 million per year both 1n France (French cinema agreements renewed In spring 2015}
and intemationally

The priority for the new management team put in place last summer is to implement a magor transformation plan in order to return to break-
even This plan must ensure that the subscriber's percewved value of the group’s offers 1s restored by increasing investment i onginal
content production and premium content as well as by improving significantly the user expenience, all in an essential cost-efficient manner

Vivendi cannot on a long term basis continue to finance the losses of Canal+ channels in France Over the past two years, the group has
already invested €1 5 billion in Canal+ in France {aequisition in October 2013 of the 20% interest in Canal+ france held by Lagardére and
pubhc tender offer for Soctété d'Edition de Canal Plus (SECP) shares in May 2015) and investments will rematn substantial in the medium
term, both in content and 1n technelogy

For a detailed description of the significant events that occurred in 2015, as well as the subsequent events, please refer to Notes 2 and 27,
respectively, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015

1 Earnings analysis: Group and Business segments

Preliminary comments

e Income from operations, EBITA and adusted net income, non-GAAP measures, should be considered 1 addition to, and not as a
substitute for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented i the Consoiidated Financial Statements and
the related Notes, or as described in the Financial Report Vivend: considers these to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and
financial performance

Vivendr Management uses income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income for reporting, management, and planning purposes
because they provide a better illustration of the underlying performance of continuing operations by excluding most non-recurring and
non-operating tems

- The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combmatians,
the impairment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and EBIT's “other charges” and "other
income” as defined i Note 12 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015

- As defined by Vivends, income from operations 15 calculated as EBITA as presented i the Adjusted Statement of Farmings, before
share-based compensation costs refated to equity-settled plans, and special ttems due to therr unusual nature or particular
significance

Moreaver, it should be noted that other compames may have different definitions and calculatrons for these non-GAAP measures from
Vivendi, thereby affecting comparabiity

o Incomphance with IFAS 5, SFR and Maroc Telecom group (sold in 2014), as well as GVT {sold on May 78, 2015} have been reported as
discontinued operatrans In practice, income and charges from these businesses have been reported as follows

- therr contibution, until thewr effective divestiture, to each hne of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-
controlling interests) has been reported on the ling “Earnings from discontinued operations”,

- any capital gam recogmized as a result of a completed divestiture 15 recorded under the ine “Earmings from discontinued
operations”, and

- their share of net ncome and the capital gain recogmzed as a result of a completed divestiture have been excluded from Vivendi's
adjusted net income

? Belates to the sw premum channels Canaly Canals Cinéma, Canaly Sport, Canalr Sénes Canaly Famuly and Canal+ Déeald
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11 Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Adjusted Statement of

Earnings
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS ADJUS'TED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
Yeat ended December 31 Year ended Becember 31
N5 2014 2015 2014
Revenues 10,762 10,089 10,762 10,089 Revenues
Cost of revenues {6 5550 16121) {6 555 {5121) Cost of revenues
Selling general and administrative expenses excluding {2163 {2 865) 13 146) {2960] Seling general and administrative expenses excluding
amortization of intangible assets acquired through business amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinatigns cermbinaticns
1.061 1,08 Income from operations
Restructuring charges (102} {104) (oz2) (104) Restructuring charges
17) {5) COther operating charges and Income

Amorbzation of intangible assets acquired through business
combinauions (408) 1344}
Impaiment [osses on intangible assets acguired through
business combinations {3 (92)
Other income 745 m
Other charges (45) (30)
EBIT 1.3 136 942 999 EBITA
Income from equity affitates 110 {18 (100 18) income from equity affiliates
Interest 130) (96) {30) {96} Interest
Income from investments 52 3 52 3 Income fram investments
Dther financial income 16 19
Other financizl charges {73) (751)
Earnings from conatinuing operatrons hafore provizion 1186 (107} 954 888 Adjusted earnings from contisuing operations before
for income taxes provision for iIncome taxes
Provsion fos Income taxes {441) {130) {199) {200) Prowision for income taxes
Earnmngs from continueng operstions 745 2
Earnings from discontinued operations 1233 5262
Earnings 1978 5,025 75 Adjusted net income before non-centrelling interests
Of which Of which
Earnings sttributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1,932 4,14 697 626 Adjusted net income

cantinuing operatyons 699 290}

discentinued operations 1233 5034
Non-controlling interests 45 281 58 62 Non-controlling interests
Earnings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners per
share basic {in ecuros) 142 352 0.51 045 Adjusted net income por shere - basic {in ouros]
Earnings sttributable to Vivend) SA shareowners per
share - dituted (in euros} LK 351 051 046 Adjusted net incame per share - diluted (in euros)

In milltors of euros, except per share amounts

1 2 Earnings analysis™ Group

1.21

Analysis of Adjusted net income and Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

In 2015, adjusted net income was a €697 million profit {or €0 51 per share), compared to €626 milhon 1n 2014 {or €0 46 per share}, a
€71 million increase (+11 3%) The change n adjusted net income mainly resulted from the decrease (n interest expense (+€66 million} and
the ncrease 1n income from investments {(+€49 million}, partially offset by the decrease n EBITA {-€57 million) As a rem:nder, pursuant to
the application of IFRS 5 to SFR and Maroc Telecom group (businesses sold 1n 2014), as well as GVT {sold on May 28, 2015), the Adjusted
Statement of Earnings includes the results of Canal+ Group, Universal Music Group, Vivend: Village and New Imtiatives’ operations, as well

as Corporate costs

Financial Report and Audited Consoldated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015
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Adjusted net income per share

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Basic Dituted Basic Diluted

Adjusted net income {in milhons of suros) 697 697 626 628
Number of shares (in mithons)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding {a) 13615 13615 13458 1,345 8
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation - 53 - 55
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13615 1,366.8 13458 13513
Adjusted netincome per share {tn euros) 051 05 046 046

a  Net of the average number of treasury shares 16 millton shares 1n 2015, compared to 0 4 millron 1n 2014

in 2015, earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners were a €1,932 million profit {or €1 42 per share), compared to €4,744 million
{or €3 52 per share) in 2014

122 Reconciliation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31

(in midlions of euros) 2015 2014
Earnings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners (a) 1,932 4,744
Adjustments
Amortization of intangible assets acguired through business combinations 408 44
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a} 3 92
Dther income (a) [745) {203}
Other charges (a) 45 kil
Other financial incame {a) {16} {18}
Other financial charges (a) 73 %
Eamings from discontinued aperations (a) {1,233 {6 262|
Of which capital gain an the divestiture of GVT, afier taxes pard in Brazil {1,423) -
capital foss on the divestiture of Telefonica Brasil 294 -
capital gamn on the divestiture of SFR {2 378}
capital gai on the divestiture of Maroc Telecom group - {7851
capital gawn on the sale of 41 5 milhon Actision Blizzard shares - {84}
Change in deferred tax asset related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group and to the
Consolidated Gtobal Profit Tax Systems 229 37
Non-recurning tems related to provision for ncome 1axes 145 5
Prowiston for income taxes on adjustments (132} (112}
Non-controlling interests on adjustments {12} 219
Adjusted net income 697 626

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings
1.2.3 Detailed analysis of the main items from the Statement of Earnings

Revenues were €10,762 milhon, compared to €10,089 million in 2014 (+8 7%, or +1 4% at constant currency and penmeter’} As & result of
the appreciation of the U'S dollar (USD) and the British pound {GBP} aganst the euro {ELUR) in 2015, revenues included a €473 million

favorable wpact, prmanly atinbutable to Universal Music Group, as well as the litigation settlement proceeds in the United States at
Universal Music Group (+€56 milhon)

Income from operations was €1,061 million, compared to €1,108 mullion in 2014, a €47 mithon decrease {-4 3%]) At constant currency and
perimeter, income from operations decreased by €65 million (-5 9%)

The decline of €anal+ Group {-€76 million), notably reflecting increased investment in contents and a positive non-recurning impact in 2014
related to a litigation settlement, and the impact of the integration of developing activities within New Initiatves {-€18 mullion), were

? Constant perimeter reflects the impacts of the acqusitions of Thema {October 28, 2014) and Datlymotion (June 30, 2015)
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partially offset by the improved operating performance of Vivend Village (+€44 million), mainly associated with Watchever's return to break-
even thanks to the transformation plan implemented durtng the second half of 2014

Cost of revenues amounted to €6,555 million (compared to €6,121 mithon in 2014}

Selling, general and administrative expenses reported in the Adjusted Statement of Eamings amounted to £3,146 million, compared to
€2,860 mitlien in 2014, a £286 million increase (+10 0%)

Depreciation and amertization of tangible and tangible assets are included esther in the cost of revenues or in sefling, general and
administrative expenses Depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to €305 millon {compared to €307 milion in 2014}, and were notably related to Canal+ Group's set-top boxes, as well as
Studiocanal’s catalogs, films and television programs

EBITA amounted to €942 miflion, compared to €999 milion in 2014, a €57 million decrease {-57%) At constant currency and penimeter,
EBITA decreased by €74 mdhon (-7 4%) This decline reflected the unfavorable change in income from operations and the impact of other
operating charges and income EBITA notably included

« restructuring charges for €102 million, primarly incurred by Universal Music Group (€51 million, stable compared to 2014) and
Canal+ Group (€47 million, notably related to the new organization put in place dunng the second half of 2015} In 2014, restructuning
charges amounted to €104 m:llion and included, 1n addition to a €50 million charge incurred by Universal Music Group, an exceptional
provision of €44 million intended as part of Watchever's transformation plan in Germany, and

+ other operating charges and income excluded from ncome from operations for a net charge of €17 million, compared 1o a
€5 million net charge in 2014 In 2015, they notably comprised on the ane hand, Universal Music Group's income from litigation
settlement proceeds in the United States (+€29 millian), as well as reversals of reserves at Canal+ Group (+€22 million) and at
Corporate (+€19 millten), and on the other hand, accruals of reserves related to htigation at Canal+ Group {-€61 million) and charges
related to equity-settled share-based compensation plans {-€16 million) In 2014, they notably included reversals of reserves at
Universal Music Group {(+£24 million} and non-recuining profits related to pensions at Corporate (+€25 milhon), partially offset by
transition costs at Canal+ Group {(-€15 million), EMI's integration costs at Universal Music Group {-€13 million) and charges related to
equrty-settled share-based compensation plans {-€3 mithon)

EBIT amounted to €1,231 million, compared to €736 million tn 2014, a €485 million increase (+67 2%} in this amount

« other income and charges were a €700 million net income, compared to a €173 milfion net income 1n 2014 In 2015, they pnimarily
comprised the capital gain an the divestiture of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR {€651 milhion, before taxes) and a reversal of
reserve related to the impairment of Canal+ Group's interest in TVN in Poland (€54 mellion), sold on July 1, 2015 in 2014, other
income n EBIT mainly included a capital gain on the divestiture of Universal Music Group's interest in Beats (€179 million), and

« amortization and degreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations amounted to €411 million 1n
2015, amortization increased by €64 million notably as a result of the appreciation of the US dollar {USD) against the euro at
Universal Music Group In 2014, amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
amounted to €436 million and notably included the impairment of goodwill losses attributable to Digitick and MyBestPro {(Wengo) for
€92 million

Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euras) 2015 2014

EBIT (a) 123 736
Adustments

Amortization of intangible assets acqurred through business combinations 408 344
tmparrment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a} 3 9z
Other income {a} (745) (203}
Dther charges {a} 45 30
EBITA 942 939
Adjustments

Restructuring charges (a} 102 104
Charges related to equity-settled share-based compensation plans 16 9
Other non-current operating charges and income 1 {4)
Income from operations 1,061 1,108

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Income from equity affiliates was a €10 million loss, compared to a €18 million loss in 2014
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Interest was an expense of €30 million, compared to €96 million in 2014, a €66 million decrease {-68 7%) Inthis amount

e interest expense on borrowings amounted 1o €65 milkion {compared to €283 million in 2014) This €218 million decrease was
attnibutable for €216 million, to the decrease in the average outstanding borrowings to €2 2 bilhon in 2015 {compared to €9 7 bithon
in 2014} In 2015, the average Interest rate on borrowings was 2 91% (compared to 2 94% in 2014) The redemption of bonds for an
aggregate amount of €5 6 billion, including €0 9 illion at matunty date of the redeemable bonds in January 2014 and €4 7 billion in
Oecember 2014 foliowing the sale of SFR, resulted in interest savings of £175 million 1n 2015 The outstanding bonds remaining 1n
the Statement of Financial Position [€1,950 mullion as of December 31, 2015) generated a €59 million interest expense in 2015
In addition, pursuant to the apphcation of IFRS 5 to GVT and SFR, interest expense was reported net of interest receved by
Vivendh SA from financing provided to these entities, on an arm's-tength basis The interest received from GVT amounted to
€4 million n 2015, compared to €172 million receved from SFR and GVT in 2014, a €168 million decrease, pnmanly attnbutable to
the sale of SFR at the end of November 2014, and

= Interest income earned on Net Cash Position amounted to €31 mithon, compared to €15 miliion in 2014 This change resulted from
the increase n the average Net Cash Posstion to €8 8 billhon n 2015 {compared to €2 1 billion 1n 2014) followtng the divestitures
occurred in 2014 (SFR, Maroc Telecom) and in 2015 {GVT, Numencable-SFR)

Income from investments amounted to €52 million, compared to €3 million in 2014 In 2015, €26 million was atirbutable to interest
generated between May 6 and August 19, 2015 by the €1,948 million recewvable from Aluice related to the deferred payment for the sale of a
10% tnterest in Numencable-SFR They also included dividends receved from Actwision Blizzard (€8 million, in cash) and from Telefonica
{€16 million, 1n shares)

Other financial charges and income were a €57 million net charge, compared to a €732 miflion net charge in 2014 In 2015, this amount
included the unfavorable change n the time value companent of the collar hedge denominated in USD on Vivendi's rematning interest in
Activision Blizzard during the second half of 2015 (-€16 mifhon} tn 2014, it mainly inciuded the premtum paid {-€642 muillion) with respect to
the early redemption of bonds in December 2014 (€4 7 billion) following the sale of SFR

Provision for income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of £199 million, stable compared to 2014 The effective
tax rate reported to adjusted net income was 20 6% in 2015 {compared to 22 0% in 2014}, manly reflecting the favorable impact on tax rates
of Vivend's French and U S Tax Group Systems, as well as the favorable impact of Watchever's return to break-even in Germany, thanks to
cost management implemented since the second half of 2014

In addstion, provision for income taxes reported to net income was a €441 million net charge, cornpared to a €130 million net charge in
2014 This €311 millien mcrease mamly reflected the income tax payable by Vivendi SA in France related to the sale of the interests in
Numericable-SFR, GVT and Telefonica Brasd (-€187 millian, net of the tax savings related to Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System), as well as the
3% tax on Vivendi SA's dividends {-€122 million, with respect to dividends of €4 1 billion) As a reminder, 1n addition to the ordinary dividend
of €1 with respect to fiscal year 2014 approved by the Shareholders” Meeting of Apni 17, 2015, Vivendi's Management Beard, 1n furtherance
of rts commitment, approved the distribution of two intenm ordinary dividends of €1 each wath respect to fiscal year 2015, following the
sales of GVT on May 28, 2015 and of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR on May 6, 2015 The first intenm dividend was paid on
June 29, 2015, the second one was paid on February 3, 2016

Earmings from continuing operations after provision for income taxes were a €745 million profit, compared to a €237 milhion loss in
2014, a favorable change of €982 miilion In 2015, this change notably included the capital gain on the sale of the 20% interest in
Numenicable-SFR (+£651 milhon, before taxes), partially offset by the increase in provision for income taxes {-€311 million) as a result of the
income tax paid in France refated to the sale of the interests in Numenicable-SFR, GVT and Telefonica Brasit {-€187 million), as well as the
3% tax on the dividends paid in France (-€122 millign} In 2014, this change marnly included the premium paid {-€642 millon) with respect to
the early redemption of bonds in December 2014 following the sale of SFR

Earnings from discontinued operations ameunted to €1,233 million, compared to €5,26Z mefiion i 2014 1n 2015, they included (1} the
capital gain on the sale of GVT on May 28, 2015 for £1,818 million, before taxes of €395 million paid in Brazil, (u} the capital loss on
Telefonica Brasil shares {-€294 mithon), and {in) GVT's net earnings up until its sale for €179 million, mcluding the impact related to the
discontinuation of the amortization of tangible and intangible assets since September 1, 2014, in comphance with IFRS 5 {(+£153 million in
2015) They also comprised the remaining Impact related to the sale of the 80% interest in SFR 10 Numercable (-€63 million) In 2014, they
included the capital gains on the sale of SFR {€2,378 million, after taxes), of Maroc Telecom {+£786 mullion, after taxes) and of the interest in
Activision Blizzard (+€84 millien), as well as GVT, SFR and Maroc Telecom's net earmings, before nan-controlling interests, for an aggregate
amount of £2,010 million, incfuding the impact of the discontinuation of amortization of tangible and intangible assets, in compliance with
IFRS 5 (+£1,385 million in 2014} Piease refer to Note 2 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015

Earmings attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €46 million, compared to €281 milhon in 2014, a €235 million decrease
mainly attributable to the sale of Maroc Telecom group on May 14, 2014 Adjusted net income attributable to non-controlling
interests amounted to €58 mllion, compared to €62 mitlion n 2014, and included non-controlling interests of Société d'Edition de Canal
Plus {SECP, prior to therr full acquisition by Vivend: from mid-August to the end of September 2015), Canal+ Overseas and nc+ in Poland
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1 3 Performance analysis Business segments

Year ended December 31,

% Change at

% Change at  constant currency
{in mitlions of euros) 2015 204 % Change constant cerrency  and penmeter {a}
Revenues
Canal+ Group 5513 5456 +11% +) 5% +02%
Universal Music Group 5108 4,557 +121% +2 5% +27%
Vivend Village 100 96 +35% 02% -86%
New Initiatives 43 -
Ehmination of intersegment transactions {2) {20)
Total Vivendi 10,762 10,089 +6.7% +2 0% +14%
Income frem operations
Canal+ Group 542 618 122% -12 3% -131%
Universal Music Groug 626 606 +32% -09% -06%
Vivendi Village 10 {34) na fa na
New Intiatives (18) -
Corporate (99} {82}
Total Vivendi 1,061 1.108 -4 3% -6.3% -5 %%
EBITA
Canal+ Group 454 583 -221% -222% -230%
Universal Music Group 593 565 +50% +08% +1 0%
Vivend Village 9 79 na na na
New Inimatives (20) .
Corporate (94) (70}
Total Vivends 942 999 -5 7% -1 %% -7 4%

na not applicable

a Constant penmeter reflects the impacts of the acquisitions of Thema by Canal+ Group on October 28, 2014, and Darlymotion {included
within New Initiatives) on June 30, 2015, as well as the transfer of L'Olympia from UMG to Vivend: Viliage as from January 1, 2015
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Year ended December 31

% Change at
% Change at constant currency
{in millions of euros) 2015 014 % Change constant currency and perimeter (a}
Pay TV n Mainland France 3383 3454 -21% 21% -21%
Of which Canal+ channels {b) 1,743 1779 20% 20% Z0%
Free-to-air TV in Mainiand France 203 196 +33% +313% +33%
Imternational Pay TV 1,364 1273 +7 2% +62% 7%
Poland 500 515 28% 25% 25%
Overseas 413 406 +17% +19% +1 9%
Africa 400 312 +28 2% +26 1% +200%
Viatnam 51 40 +293% +11% +H1i%
Studiocanal 563 533 +5 7% +2 3% +2 3%
Total Revenues 5513 5,456 +11% +0 5% +0.2%
Income from operations 542 618 -12.2% -12.3% 131%
Income from operations' margm 98% 113% -15pt
Charges related to equity settled share based ) @)
compensation plans
Cther special stems excluded from income from operations
{m¢luding transition and restructuning cests) (85) (32)
EBITA 454 22 1% ~22.2% -230%
EBITA margin 82% 107%
Of which Canal+ channals' EBITA (b) {264) {188)
Canal+ Group's Pay-TV
tndividual subscribers {in thousands)
Mainland France 5,746 6,062 -316
International 5495 4986 +509
Poland 2119 2146 27
Overseas 499 434 +5
Afrca 2073 1,552 +521
Vigtnam 504 794 +10
Total Canal+ Group "4 11.048 +193
Subscnptions (in thousands)
Maintand France {c) 9072 9463 -394
Subscriptions wath commitment (d) §458 8864 405
Canaipigy subscriptions (s) 513 599 +14
Internattona! 8677 5 836 +791
Totad Canal+ Group 15,749 15,349 +100
Maintand France Pay-TV
Churn, per indwigiual subscriber wath commitment 14 9% 14 5% +04pt
Net ARPU, in euros per individual subscriber with commitment 47 40 +16%
Matnland France Free-to-mir TV's sudience shares (f
1];] 34% 33% 01pt
0v7 12% 12%
Felé 10% 9% 401 pt
Total 56% 54% +H2pt
a Constant perimeter reflects the impact of the acquisitron of Thema on Qctaber 28, 2014

b Relates to the six premium channels Canal+, Canal+ Cinéma, Canal+ Sport, Canal+ Décalé, Canal+ Family and Canal+ Séries In 2013
and 2012, Canal+ channels’ revenue amounted to €1,832 mithon and €1,840 million, respectively, and its EBITA to -€130 mullion and

-€21 miihon, respectively

Includes indvidual and collective subscriptions

2092

9,199 thousand subscriptions with commitment (Canal+ and Canalsat) as of December 31, 2013, and 9,563 thousand as of December 31,

e 335 thousand Canalplay subscriptions as of December 31, 2013, and 156 thousand as of December 31, 2012

f  Source Médiamétrie Popuiation four years and older
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Canal+ Group's revenues amounted to €5,513 million, up 1 1% {+0 2% at constant currency and penmeter) compared to 2014

At year-end 2015, Canal+ Group had a total of 15 7 milion subscnptions, a year-on-year increase of 400,000, driven by intemational markets
The total number of individual subscribers also grew to 11 2 million compared to 11 mullion at the end of 2014, notably dnven by Africa,
where, for the first time, the number of individual subscribers exceeded 2 million at year-end 2015

Revenues from pay-TV aperations in manland France were down 2 1% year-on-year due to fewer subscriptions Intemational pay-TV
revenues grew significantly (+7 2%) compared to 2014, thanks to growth in the subscriber base, in particular in Africa

Advertising revenues from free-to-air channels, up 3 3% compared to 2014, benefited from the conttnuously growing audience of DB, which
1$ once again the leading DTT channel in France and the fifth most watched French channel with a 3 4% audience share For the population
aged 25-49 years old, D8 1s the fourth most watched French channel with a 4 3% audience share

Studiocanal's revenues grew significantly year-on-year {(+5 7%, +2 3% at constant currency), thanks to the sale of film nghts for recent
box-office hits such as Paddington, Imitation Game and Shaun the Sheep, as well as the build-up of the TV series production business

Canal+ Group’s income from operations was €542 million compared to €618 million 1n 2014, and EBITA was €501 million {excluding
reorganization costs) compared to €583 million in 2014 This change manly resulted from increased investment m programs, as well as
nan-recarming items

1.32 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Year ended December 31
% Change at
% Change at canstant currency
{in millions of eurqs) 2015 2014 % Change constant currency  and penimeter (a)
Recorded music 4113 3,688 +115% +22% +2 4%
Fhysical sales 1,410 1,417 05% 47% 57%
Digntal sales 1,975 1640 +205% 6% +8 6%
of wivch streaming and subscriptions 954 §10 +56 2% +H32% +43 2%
License and other 728 631 +153% +54% +7 1%
Music publishing 756 573 +124% +30% +30%
Merchandising and other 276 232 +191% +35% +35%
Ehmination of intersegment transactions (37) {36}
Total Revenues 5108 4,557 +12 1% +25% +2.1%
Incame from operations 626 606 +32% 4 5% -06%
Income from operations’ margin 123% 133% 10pt D4pt
Charges related to equity-settled share based
compensation plans [13) {2)
Special tems excluded from ;mcome from operations
{including ntegration and restructunng costs) {28} {39)
EBITA 593 565 +5.0% +HE% +10%
EBITA margmn 116% 124%
R m ven eographical ar
Europe 38% 41%
North America 42% 3%%
Asia 1% 1%
Rest of the warld 9% 9%
100% 100%

a  Constant pernmeter reflects the impacts of the transfer of L'Olympia from UMG to Vivendi Village as from January 1, 2015
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Recorded music hest sellers, by value (Source MusicMart)

Year ended December 31, 2015 Year ended December 31 2014
Artist Title Artist Title
Taylor Swft 1889 Vanous Artists Frozen
Justin Bieber Purpose Taylor Swaft 1989
Sam Smith In The Lanely Hous Sam Smith In The Lonely Hour
The Weeknd Beauty Behund The Madness Anana Grande My Everything
Vanous Artists Fifty Shades Of Grey Katy Perry PRISM
The Beatles 1+ Lorde Pure Heroine
Dreams Come True Dreams Come True The Best! Watastino Dorkamu  Imagine Dragons Night Visions
Maraon 5 v 5 Seconds Of Summer 5 Seconds Of Summer
Drake If You're Reading This It's Too Late Maroon 5 v
Hetene Fischer Weihnachten lggy Azalea The New Classic

Universal Music Group's (UMG) revenues were £5,108 million, up 2 7% at constant currency and perimeter compared te 2014 {(+12 1% on an
actual basis}, driven by growth across all divisions

Recorded music revenues grew 2 4% at constant currency and penmeter thanks to growth in subscription and streaming revenues (+43 2%)
and the recegnitron of legal settlement income {+€56 mitlion), which more than offset the decline in both digital download and physical
sales

Music publishing revenues grew 3 0% at constant currency, also driven by increased subscription and streaming revenves Merchandising
and other revenues were up 3 5% at constant currency thanks to stronger retail activity

in the United States, UMG had seven of the Top 10 albums of the year, mcluding two of the top three with Taylor Swift's 7989 and Justin
Bieber's Purpose In the United Kingdom, UMG had nine of the Top 20 albums of the year, including the debut from the UK 's higgest
breakthrough artist of 2015, James Bay, and nine of the Top 20 singles, ncluding Hozier's Take Me Te Church In Germany, UMG artist
Helene Fischer was the best-selling art:st of the year for the third ttme in four years

Globaily, recorded music best sellers for the year included strong carryover sales from Taylor Swift and Sam Smith, new releases from Justin
Bieber, The Weeknd, Drake, the Fifty Shades of Grey soundtrack, a compilation from The Beatles, as well as the Japanese band Dreams
Come True

UMG's income from operations was €626 million, marginally down 0 6% at constant currency and perimeter compared to 2014 (+3 2% on an
actual basis) Income from operations excluded restructuring charges as well as a legal setttement income in 2015 (+£29 million), and a
reversal of provisions in 2014

UMG's EBITA was €593 mitlion, up 1 0% at constant currency and penmeter compared to 2014 (+5 0% on an actual basis), thanks to revenue
growth, even with 2014 benefit of a reversal of provisions
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133 Vivendi Village

Year ended December 31,
% Change at

% Change at constant currency
tint millions of guros) 2015 2014 % Change constant currency  and pentmeter (a}
Vivendi Ticketing 52 51 +0 6% 655% 8 5%
Watchever 18 Vi) -36 9% -36 9% -36 9%
MyBestPro 22 19 +144% +14 4% +144%
Olympia 10 -
Radionomy - -
Total Revenues 100 9% +35% -02% -96%
Income from operations 10 (34}
EBITA 9 (79)

a  Constant penmeter reflects the impacts of the transfer of L'Olympia from UMG to Vivend: Viltage as from January 1, 2015

Vivend Village's revenues were €100 milfion, up 3 5% compared to 2014

Vivendi Village's income from operations, at €10 million, and EBFTA, at €3 miltion, became positve in 2015 largely thanks to the
transformation plan implemented by Watchever, the subscription video-on-demand service In Germany

MyBestPro, which connects individuals with professionals from various business sectors, continued to record a very steady progress of its
activities, driven in particular by JurTravail com, a French leading online legal content platform also prowiding legal information and conflict
resolution services to third parties

Vivendi Ticketing, which provides ticketing services in the United Kingdom, France and the United States, recorded a satisfactory year n
2015

L'Olympia was affected by the events that occurred on November 13" in Pans, which resulted in the rescheduling or cancellation of concerts
and shows

In the coming manths, the group plans to open 10 CanalOlympia concert venues in Africa

On December 17, 2015, Vivendi announced the acquisition of 64 4% interest In Radionomy Group, a major global player in the digital radio
industry, which was ntegrated within Vivend) Village With this investment, Vivendi expands its presence in content creation and
distribution to the growing sector of digital audie, driven by a dynamic advertising market

134 Corporate

Corporate’s income from operations was a net charge of €93 miilion, compared to €82 mihon in 2014, a €17 million increase, pnmarly due
to the decrease In management fees, the increase in fees related to certain hitigation, as well as the set-up costs for the new businesses
Moreover, recurring personnel costs were stable

Corporate's EBITA was a net charge of €94 mullion, compared to €70 million 1n 2014 in addition to the items included m income from
operations, this €24 million increase in the net charge in EBITA was notably linked to fewer positive non-recurnng items {related to pensions
in 2014 and {:tigation i 2015}
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2 Treasury and capital resources

2.1 Net Cash Position and equity portfolio

Preliminary comments

o Vivend: considers Net Cash Position, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant indicator in measuring Vivend:'s treasury and capital resources The
Net Cash Position is calculated as the sum of

! cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, correspondhng to cash in banks, mongy
market funds, complying with the critenia set forth in AMF pasition No 2011-13, and other highly hquid short-term investments
with inittal matunties of generally three manths or less, as required by IAS 7 (please refer to Note 1 35 11 to the Consolidated
Fnancial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015)

" cash management financial assets, included 1 the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets”,
corresponding to financial mvestments which do not comply with the critenia for classification as cash equivalents set forth in
1AS 7, and, with respect to money market funds, the criteria set forth in AMF position No 2011-13, and

i dervative financial instruments i assets, and cash deposits backing borrowings, included m the Consohdated Statement of Financial
Posttion under “financial assets”, less

v fong-erm and short-term borrowings and ather financial habilities as reported on the Consohdated Statement of Financial Position
o Net Cash Position should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures as presented in the Consolidated
Statement of Rinancial Positon, as well as any other measures of indabtedness reported n accordance with GAAP. and Vivend: considers 1t to

be a relevant indicator of treasury and capital resources of the group Vivendr Management uses this indicator for reporting, management, and
planmng purposes, as well as to comply with certain covenants

2.1.1  Net Cash Position as of December 31, 2015

Refer to Notes to the
Consoldated Financial ~ December 31,2005 December 31, 2014

{in milltons of euros} Statements —
Cash and cash equivalents (a) 14 8,225 6,845
of which Vivendi SA's maney market funds 5,550 4,754
Vivendi SA's term deposits, interest-beanng current accounts, and MIN 2372 1770
Cash management financial assets 14 581 .
Cash position 8,806 6,845
Denvatve financial instruments in assets 18 115 139
Cash deposits backing borrowings 12 439 -
Borrowings and other financiat iabshues 19 (2938} {2347)
of wiich long-term (a} {1,555) {2,074}
short-term (a} {1 383) 273}
Borrowings and other financial items {2.384) {2.208)
Net Cash Position 6,422 4,637

a  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posttion

As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi's Net Cash Position was €6,422 million {compared to €4.637 mullion as of December 31, 2014) This
amount included the group’s cash posttion of €8,806 million as of December 31, 2015, of which €8,508 mifiion was held by Vivend SA and
invested as follows

« €5 550 midhion invested :n money market funds,

=  £2 638 million invested in term deposts, interest-bearing current accounts and MTN, of which €2,372 million 1s classified as “cash
and cash equwvalents” and the remaining balance (€266 milhon) as “financial assets”, and

s €315 mlion invested in bond funds and classifred as “financtal assets”

As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi's borrowings and other financial habilities net of denvative financial instruments in assets and cash
deposits amounted to £2,384 million, compared to €2,208 million as of December 31, 2014, a €176 million increase  They primarily compnised
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three Vivendi SA bonds for an aggregate amount of €1,950 million, maturing in December 2016, March 2017 and December 2019,
respectively, as well as the share repurchase program in place as of December 31, 2015 (€193 mulfion)

In addrtion, Vivendi SA has a €2 billion bank credst facihity, undrawn as of December 31, 2015 On October 30, 2015, the matunty of this
credit facility was extended for one year, to October 31, 2020

As of February 10, 2016, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015, after taking into account (1) the cash proceeds from the sale of Activision Blizzard shares and the unwinding of the
related hedging nstrument on January 13, 2016 {+£1 4 billion), (i) the payment of the second interim dividend on February 3, 2016 with
respect to fiscal year 2015 (-€1 3 billion}, and (im) the repurchase of treasury shares (-€0 5 billion), Vivend's Net Cash Position would be
approximately €6 billion

2.1.2 Equity portfolio

As of December 31, 2015, Vivend held a portfolio of quoted and unquoted non-controlling equity interests, mainly in Telecom italia,
Activision Blizzard, Telefonica, Ubisoft and Gameloft At this date, this equity portfolio represented an aggregate market value of
approximately €6 bill:on {before taxes) please refer to Notes 11 and 12 to the Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015

As of February 10, 2016, the date of the Management Board meet:ng that approved Vivend's Consoiidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015, the market value of Vivendi's portfolia of non-centrolling equity interests amounted to approximately €3 8 billion
This change included the sale of the interest in Activisian Blizzard and flugtuations m stock market prices

2.2 Changes in Net Cash Position

Borrowings and
Cash and cash other financial ~ Net Cash Position
{in millrons of euros) equialents items fal
Net Cash Positton as of December 31, 2014 6,845 {2,208} 4,637
Cutflows/(inflows) related to continuing operations
QOperating actwvities 87 - 87
Investing activities 4854 1,011 5,865
Financing activities {3 564) (603) 14 167)
Foreign currency translation adjustments of continutng operations 3 - 3
Outflows/(inflows) related to continuing operations 1380 408 1,788
Outflows/(inflows} related to discontinued operations - (3 {3)
Net Cash Position as of December 31, 2015 8225 {1,803) 6,422

a  "Other financial items” include cash management financial assets, commitments to purchase non-controlling interests, denwvative
financial instruments (assets and hiabilities) and cash depesits backing borrowings
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Preliminary comments

*  The non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations (CFFO) and cash flow from operations after nterest and taxes {CFAIT) should be
considered in addition to, and not as substitutes for, other GAAP measures of operating and finaneial performance as presented in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes or as described in the Financial Report Vivendt considers these to be relevant

indheators of the group’s operating and financial performance

¢ In comphance with IFRS 5, SFR and Maroc Telecom (sold in 2014}, as well as GVT (sold on May 28, 2015} have been reported as
discontinued operations In practice, cash flows from these businesses have been reported as follows

- their contribution until their effective sale, to each hing of Vivend:'s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped under

the fine "Cash flows from discontinued operations”, and

- their cash fiow from operations (CFFO) and cash flow from operations after interest and income taxes (CFAIT) have been excluded

from Vivendr's CFFQ and CFAIT, as presented below

{in millians of euros)
Revenues
Operating expenses excluding depreciation and amortization

Restructuring charges paid
Content investments net
of which film and television rights, net at Canal+ Group
Acqursttion pad
Consumption

of which sports rights, net at Canal+ Group
Acquisttion pard
Consumgtion

of which payments to artists and repertoire owners, net at UMG
Payments
Recoupment and other

Neutralization of change 10 provisions inctuded in operating expenses

Other cash operating items

Other changes i net working capital

Net cash provided by/{used for) operating activities before incoma tax pard
Dnadends receved from equity affiiates and unconsohdated companies
Capital expenditures net (capex net)

Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

interest paid, net

Other cash tems related to financiat actvities

Income tax (paid)/receved net

Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT)

na not applicable

Year ended December 31

2015 2014 % Change
10762 10089 +67%
{9 429) (B 646) -91%

1333 1443 77%
(84) {84) -05%
157 19 xB3

{633) {604) 47%
753 713 +56%
120 109 +107%
{718) {818) +121%
815 801 +17%
86 f17) na
{635) {554} -146%
675 513 +102%
40 59 314%
{47} {154} +69 9%
(9) (22) +599%
(226} {123} -835%
1,124 1,073 +4 2%
14 7 x22
(246) {243) -12%
892 843 +5 9%
(30} {96} +687%
106 {606} na
{1037} 280 na
{69) N na
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231 Changes in cash flow from operations (CFFO)

In 2015, cash flow from operations (CFFO) generated by the business segments was €892 mullion {(compared to €843 million 1n 2014), a
£49 miltion increase {+5 9%) This change mainly reflected Universal Music Group's favorable change (+€142 million), notably resulting from
impreved operating performance, the recerpt of a litigation settlement income in the United States {+€82 miliron) and the appreciation of the
U'S dollar (USD) and the British pound (GBP) against the euro (EUR) n 2015, partially offset by the phasing of advances recewved by UMG
from major digital platforms, as well as the decline of Canal+ Group {-€59 mullion), notably related to content investments In addition,
restructuring charges (€84 million} and capital expenditures, net {€246 million) were stable

232 Cash flow from operations {CFFQ)} by business segment

Year ended December 31
{m milions of euros) 2015 2014 % Change
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)
Canal+ Group 472 531 -111%
Universal Music Group 567 425 +333%
Vivend: Village {10} {44) +786%
New Initiatives {22) -
Corporate {119) (63)
Total Vivendi 892 843 +5%%

233 Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT)

in 2015, cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) represented & net outflow of -€69 mill:on, compared to a net
€421 million inflow 1n 2014, a €490 million decrease Despite the increase in CFFO (+€49 mullion), this change mainly reflected the
unfavorable change :n cash flow related to income taxes {-€1,317 million} partially offset by the favorable change in net cash inflows from
financial activities {+€712 millton} and the decrease In (nterest paid, net (+€66 milhon)

Cash flow related to income taxes represented a -€1,037 million outflow 1n 2015, compared to a €280 mullion inflow 1n 2014 in 2015, they
notably included the tax wstallment paid in France with respect to fiscal year 2015 (-€233 million), income taxes paid by Vivendi SA in Braz!}
related to the capital gain on the sale of GVT on May 28, 2015 {-€395 mitlion), as well as the payment made in France on March 31, 2015 by
Vivendr SA (€321 million), related to an ongoing htigation with tax authorities for the final assessment of the income tax payable by Vivend
SA with respect to fiscal year 2012 (please refer to Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015)
This payment was partially offset by the receipt on January 18, 2015 by Vivendi SA of moratorium interest {+£43 million), related to the
refund received on December 23, 2014 with respect to the 2011 Consolidated Global Profit Tax System (+€366 million) In addition, in 2015,
income tax paid included the 3% tax on dividends paid by Vivend: SA in April and June 2015 (-€82 milhion})

In 2015, financial activities generated a net €106 million inflow, compared to a net -€606 million outflow 1n 2014 In 2015, they mainly
included cash inflows generated by foreign exchange risk hedging instruments {+£86 million), as well as the interest (+£26 million) recewved
between May 6 and August 19, 2015 from the €1,948 million recewvable from Altice related to the deferred payment for the sale of a
10% interest in Numericable-SFR In 2014, they manly included the premuum paid {-€642 million) with respect to early redemption of bonds
n December 2014 following the sale of SFR, partrally offset by a net foreign exchange gain (+847 million) In addition, net interest paid was
€30 mitlion in 2015, compared to €96 milhion 1n 2014

234 Reconciliation of CFAIT to net cash provided by/(used for) operating activities of continuing

operations

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros) 2015 2014
Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) {69) Lv4)
Adjustments
Capital expenditures net {capex net) 246 243
Dimvdends recerved from equity affiliates {14} {7
Interest pad net 30 96
Other cash items related 1o financial activities {106} 606
Net cash provided by/{usad for} operating activities of continuing operations {a) 87 1,359

a  As presented In the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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241 Investing activities

(in milliens of guros)

Financial investments

Acaursitions of Telecom Italia common shares
Acguisition of Daalymotion

Acursiions of Ubiseft shares

Acquisitions of Gameloft shares

Acquisition of Boulogne Studios

Acquisition of a 64% interest (n Radionomy
Acquisition of cash management financial assets
Cash deposits backing horrowings

Other

Total financial investments

Financial divestments

Cash proceeds from the sale of GVT

Cash proceeds from the sale of the 20% interest in Numencable-SFR
Proceeds from the sale of the 4% interestin Teleforuca Brasil

Cash proceeds from the sale of the interest in TVN

Addittonal pnce adjustment related o the sale of SFR paid by Vivendi
(Other

Total financial divestments

Dividends racewed fram equity affiliates

Capital expenditures, net

Investing actnities (a)

a  As presented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

242 Financing activities

{in millions of euras)

Trensactions with shareowners

Distnbution to Vivendi SA's shareowners

Sales/Ipurchases) of Vivend! SA's treasury shares

Acquisition of SECP's non-controlling interests

Exercise of stock aptions by executive management and employees
Capital increase subscribed by employees as part of the Stock Purchase Plan
Other

Total transactions with shareowners

Transactions on borrowings and other financial llabilities
Interest paid, net

Other

Total transactions on borrowings and other financial hakilities

Financing activities {a)

a  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Refer to Notes to the
Consolidated Financial
Statements

Year ended
December 31, 2015

[ T O R T )

—
[t =)

[ I S S T o )

{2,008)
(246}
(351}
(122}
{40)
(24)
(584)
(431)
(121)

{3.927}

4178
3.896
800
n
(116)
{18)
9,013
14
{246)
4,854

Refer to Notes to the
Conschidated Financial

Year ended
December 31, 2015

Statements
15 (2,727
15 (492)
2 1522)
18 202
18 75
(62)
{3,526}
5 (30
(8}
{38)
{3.564)
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3 Outlook

Amid the economic transition of our businesses, the group met its announced 2015 outlook and, apart from Canal+ channels® in France, the
results reflected the good operating performances of all businesses Revenues increased 6 7% compared to 2014 [+1 4% at constant
currency and perimeter) to €10,762 mifhon, the operating margm amounted to 10 2% at constant currency and penmeter, and adjusted net
income ncreased by 11 3% to €697 million

For Universal Music Group, Vivendi continues to see a positive momentum in the business, driven by ongoing growth in streaming and
subscription and tempered by declines in download and physical sales, leading to a reasonable increase in resufts this year and enhanced
results from 2017 onwards

For Canal+ Group, Vivendi needs to stop the losses of Canal+ channels in France which could lead to a significant decline in the operating
results in 2016, by implementing a transformation plan with the obyective, for the Canal+ channels in France, of reaching breakeven in 2018
and of achieving a level of profitability similar to that of the best European players in the sector in the medium term

It will be proposed to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on April 21, 2016, that an ordinary dividend of €3 per share be paid with
respect to 2015, representing a total of €4 0 bilkion distrbuted to sharehelders and comprising a €0 20 distnbution related to the group’s
business performance and a €2 80 return to shareholders Two mtenm dividends of €1 each were paid on June 29, 2015 and February 3,
2018, and the balance will be paid on Apnl 28, 2016 {coupon detachment on Apnl 26, 2016)

In addition to these distnbutions, the group also repurchased shares amounting to €1 386 million (73 million shares} as of February 17, 2016
as part of the program approved by the General Shareholders” Meeting of April 17, 2015 Vivend) has committed to return an additronal
€1 3 bilhon to shareholders by mid-2017 at the latest This should take the form of an ordinary dvidend of €1 per share or share repurchases
depending on the overall economc environment

4 Forward-lLooking Statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Report, notably in Section 3, contains forward-logking statements with respect to Vivend's financial condition, results of
operations, business, strategy, plans and outlook of Vivend:, including the impact of certain transactions and the payment of dividends and
distributions as well as share repurchases Although Vivend: believes that such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable
assumptions, such statements are not guarantess of future performance Actual results may differ matenally from the forward-looking
statements as a result of a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivend’s controf, including, but not mited to, the
nsks related to antitrust and other regulatory approvals, and to any other approvals which may be required in connection with certain
transactions, as well as the risks described in the documents of the group filed by Vivendi with the Autorite des Marches Financiers {the
“AMF") (the French securities regulator), and in its press releases, if any, which are also avalable in English on Vivendl's website
{wvw vivend coml  Accordingly, readers are cautioned agamst relyng on such forward-looking statements These forward-laoking
statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report Vivendi disclaims any intention or obligation to provide, update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise

5 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivend! does not sponsor an American Depositary Receipt (ADR) facility in respect of its shares Any ADR facility currently in existence 1s
“unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivendi Vivendi disclaims any liability in respect of any such faciity

Translation

This Financial Report 1s an English translation of the French version of the report and 15 provided solely for the convenience of English
speaking readers This translation 1s qualified in its entirety by the French version, wiich s available on the company's website
{www vivendi com} In the event of any inconsistencies between the French version of thus Financigl Report and the English transtation, the
French version will prevail

? Relates to the six pramum channels Canaly, Canal+ Cméma, Canal+ Sport, Canal+ Séres, Canal+ Family and Canal+ Décalé
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1 Quarterly revenues, income from operations and EBITA by business segment

{in mullsons of eurgs}

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivendi Village

New lnitiatives

Elimination of intersegment transactions
Total Vivend:

Income from operations
Canak Group

Universal Music Group
Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Total Vivends

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivendi Village

New livatives
Corporate

Total Viverd

{in muthons of euros}

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Universal Mustc Group

Vivend Village

Elimination of intersegment transactions
Total Vivends

Income from operations
Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group
Vivendr Village

Corporate

Total Vivend)

EBITA

Canak Group
Universal Music Group
Vivends Village
Corporate

Total Vivends

2015
Three manths ended  Three months ended  Three months ended  Three menths ended
March 31, June 30 September 38, December 31,
1370 1364 1,300 1479
1097 1214 1181 1,616
25 26 22 27
- 1 17 25
- (2} - -
2492 2,603 2520 3,147
154 214 186 (12)
88 g a3 348
4 4 1 1
- (1) {9} (8)
{28} (26} (20) {25)
218 282 257 304
165 223 162 (96)
82 89 B8 334
4 4 - 1
- {1 {9 {10
{33} (17) (22) (22)
218 298 219 207
2014
Three months ended  Thres months ended  Three months ended  Three months ended
March 31 June 30 September 30, December 31
1317 1,350 1300 1489
984 1,019 1094 1,460
21 5 23 27
{5} {5} {5} {5}
27 2,389 2412 M
179 246 208 (15)
66 a3 131 316
(20 {17 - 3
(21} {19) {15} {27}
204 30 324 7
175 245 206 {43)
56 g7 121 291
{20) (67} - 8
{26) {5) {17} {22}
185 210 310 234
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lll - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015

Statutory Auditors” report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements

To the Shareholders,

In comphance with the assgnment entrusted to us by your annual general meetings, we hereby report to you for the vear ended
December 31, 2015, on

« the audit of the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivendi,
« the justification of our assessments, and
«  the specific verification required by law

These Consohdated Financial Statements have been approved by your Management Board Our role I1s to express an opinion on these
Consolidated Financial Statements, based on our audit

| Opimion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are free of material misstatement An audit
involves performing procedures, using samphing techrigues or other methods of selection, to obtam audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1n the Consolidated Financial Statements An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financral Statements We believe
that the audit evidence we have obta:ned Is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the assets and habilities and of the financial position of the
group as at December 31, 2015 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accerdance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

I Justfication of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L 823-9 of the French commercial code (Code de commerce/relating to the justificatron of our
assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters

= At each financial year end, your company systematically performs imparment tests on goodwill and assets with indefinite usefu!
lives, and also assesses whether there 15 any indication of imparment of other tangible and intangible assets, according to the
methods described in Note 13567 to the Financial Statements We examined the methods used to perform these impairment tests,
as well as the main assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1357 and 9 to the Financial Statements provide
appropniate disclosures thereon

« Note 139 to the Financial Statements describes the accounting principles applicable to deferred tax and Note 1 3 8 descnbes the
methods used to assess and recognize provisions We venfied the cormrect application of these accounting principles and also
examined the assumptions underlying the pos:tions as at December 31, 2015 We ensured that Note B to the Financial Statements
gives appropriate information on tax assets and liabilities and on your company’s tax positions

» Notes 138 and 23 to the Financial Statements describe the methods used to assess and recognrze provisions for litigation We
examined the metheds used within the company to identify, calculate, and determine the accounting for such litigation We also
examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the company As stated in Note 131 to the Fipancial
Statements, some facts and circumstances may lead to changes in estimates and assumptions which could have an impact upon the
reported amount of provisions

Our assessments were made as part of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to the
epimion we formed which 1s expressed in the first part of this report
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il Specific venfication

As required by law we have also venified, in accordance with professional standard applicable i France, the information presented in the

group’s management report

We have no matters to report as its fair presentation and its consistency with the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pans-La Défense, February 18, 2016

The statutory auditors
French oniginal signed by

KPMG Audrt ERNST & YOUNG et Autres
Département de KPMG S A
Baudou:n Griton Jacques Pierres
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Selling general and admimsirative expenses
Restructuring charges
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through busmess combinatioas
Other ircome
(Other charges
Earmings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)
Income from equity affiliates
Interest
Income from mvestments
Other financial income
Other financial charges
Earmings from continming operations before provisien for income taxes
Prowtsion for income taxes
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations
Earnmings
Of which
Earmings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners
of which earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners
earmings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

Non-controiling interests
of which earnings from continuing cperations
earnings from discontinued operations

Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivenc SA shareowners per share - hasic
Earmings from discantinued operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - diluted

Earnings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings attributable to Vivench SA shareowners per share - dituted

In millions of euros, except per share amounts, In euros

Note

W B de 0 W

e I B I |

~

Fniday, February 19, 2016

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014
10,762 10,089
(6 555 {6,121)
{3.571) {3 209)
{102) (104)
(3) (92)
745 203
{45) {30)
1,231 736
(10 (18)
(30} {a6)

52 3

16 19
{73) {751)
1,186 {107
{441) {130)
145 (237)
1,233 5,267
1,978 5,025
1,932 41
699 (296}
1.233 5,034
46 281

46 53
228
051 {022)
051 {022
091 374
090 373
142 352
141 35

In compliance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, SFR and Maroc Telecom {sold in 2014}, as well as

GVT {sold on May 28, 2015) have been reported as discontinued gperations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) Note 2015 2014
Earnings 1978 5,025
Actuarial gains/{losses) related to employee defined benefit plans, net {21) {68)
Items not reclassified to profit or loss {21) {68)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,513 778
Unrealized gains/{losses). net (371} 936
Other impacts, net 3 (94)
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit ar loss 1,173 1,620
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 8 1,152 1,552
Total comprehensive income 3,130 6,577
Of which

Total comprehensive income attributahle to Vivend: SA shareowners 3,089 6.312
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 4 265

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in milhions of euros)

ASSETS

Goodwill

Non-current content assets
Other intangtble assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in equity affihates
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets

Inventanes

Current tax receivables

Current content assets

Trade accounts recevable and other
Current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of discontinued businesses
Current assels

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury shares

Retained earnings and other
Vivend: SA shareowners' equity
Norn-controlhing interests

Total equity

Non-current provisions

Long-term borrowings and other financial iabilities

Deferred tax habitines
(ther non current liabilities
Non-current habilities

Current provisions

Short-term barrowings and other financial liabibities

Trade accounts payable and other
Current tax payables

Liabilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses

Current liabilities

Total Labilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND UABILITIES

Note

9
10

"
12

10
13
12
14

15

16
19

16
19
13

Fnday, February 19, 2016

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
10,177 939
2,286 2 550
224 229
737 tali
3435 306
4132 6,144
622 70
21613 19,985
117 114
653 234
1,088 1,135
2,139 1,983
1111 49
8,225 6,845
13333 10,360
- 5393
13,333 15,753
34,946 35,738
7526 7,434
5343 5,160
{702} {1
8,687 10,013
20,854 22,606
32 382
21,085 22,988
2,679 2,888
1555 2074
705 B57
105 121
5,044 5,740
363 290
1,383 2713
6737 5,306
333 47
8816 5916
- 1,094
8816 1010
13,860 12,750
34,946 35,738

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consoldated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31
{in millions of ewros) Note 2015 2014
Operating activities
EBIT 4 1231 736
Adjustments 20 {38) 447
Content investments net 157 19
Gross cash provided by operating setrvities bofore income tax patd 1.350 1202
Qther changes in net working capital {226) {123)
Net cash provided by operating activitias before iacome tax pad 1124 1079
Income tax {paid)/recenved net 62 {1,037} 280
Net cash provided by operating activitias of continping operations 87 1.35%
Nat cash provided by operating activitres of discontinved operations 153 2234
Net cash provided by operating activities 240 3593
Investing activities
Capita expenditures 3 {247 {249)
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash 2 {358} {100}
Investments in equity affiliates (19 {87)
Increase in financial assets 12 (3 549) (1057}
Investments 4174} {1,493)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant equipment and intangible assets 3 1 6
Proceeds from sales of consolidated compames, after divested cash 2 4,032 16929
Disposal of equity affiliates n 268 -
Oecrease In financial assets 12 4,713 478
Divestitures 9014 17813
Dividends receved from equity affiliates 5 4
Dividends recewved from unconsolidated companies 9 i
Net cash provided by/flused for) investing activities of continuing operations 4854 16325
Not cash provided by/(used for] mvesting actvities of discontinuved oporations {262) {2.034)
Net cash provided byf{used for) investing activities 455 14292
Financing activities
Net proceeds fromissuance of cormmon shares in connection with Vivendt SA's share-based compensation plans 18 273 197
Sales/ipurchases) of Vivendi SA's treasury shares 15 {492} (32
Distnbutions to Vivendi SA's shareowners 15 2721 11,348}
Other transactions with shareowners 2 {534} 2)
Dividends paid by consoiidated companies fo their non-controlling interests {46) (34}
Transactions with sharaownars 3.526] {1.219)
Setung up of long-term borrowings and increasa n other leng term financial habilities 19 ) 3
Principal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease 1n other long term financial hiabilies 18 i2) (1,670}
Principal payment on short-term bomowmngs 19 (128} (7 680)
DOther changes :n short-term borrowings and other financial liabilites 19 6 140
Interest paid, net 5 {30} {96}
Dther cash items related 1o fmancial activites 106 {606}
Transactions on borrowings and other financial liabdities {38) {9,909)
Nat cash provided byflused for} financing activities of continuing eperations (3.564] {11,128)
Net cash provided by/{used lor} financing activities of discontinued cperations 69 (756)
Net cash provided byf{used for) financing activities {3,435) {11.884)
Foreign currency translation adjusiments of continuing operations 3 10
Foreign currency transtation adjustments of discontinued operations {8) {4)
Cheange in cash and cash equivalents 1,332 6.007
Reclassification of discontinued operstions’ cash and cash equivalents 48 (203)
Caosh end cash equivalents
At beginning of the penod it E,ﬁ 1.041
At end of the period 14 8225 6,845

In compliance with IFRS & - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, SFR and Maroc Telecom {sold 1n 2014}, as well as
GVT (sold on May 28, 2015} have been reported as disconttnued operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Conselidated Financiat Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Fnday February 19 2016

Yoar ended December 31, 2015
Cupetal Retaned sarncags and sthed
Common shares Adatonal Othar
Wrdmoisues | Gan | mdn e | e | P e | a7
{in millions of euros, except number of shams) Now| (in thousands) capuai capral " ncome
[ZALANCE AS GF DECEMBER 31 314 LS80 4N 5160 [ 1250 s me -] o
Argrrbutable  Viewsds SA chacsewssrs 1. 351,607 ) 5160 i1 1258 e [ 19813 22508
Attribotubls to son controlling icterests [ {1 x2 %2
oo ST o S A D ey
SateApurchazes) of Ueasury charss 15 £+ )4 ma
Crstoibutaon 10 shacsowners 154 [4 D&Y 12 044) (4 oaay
Drvedend pard an Aprd 23, 2015 with respect 1o 214 fiscal year (€1 per sharef 11363 1133 f1363)
Furst by drvedend pad on June 79 2015 with respect & 2615 Fistal year (€1 per charal {1.384) f1384) {1 3641
Sacond momam dwend paid ov Febroary ) 2016 with saspect to 2015 fiscal yoar (€7 pev share] 138 f1 3184 11 318
Caprtal incrsese reixted to shary based compensation plans 18122 2 163 ] a3 1" n w7
of which Vavend: Empioyes Stock Furchiase Plang iy 16, 2075 L] 514 z 52 7 s
RENTLE Of STOCK-ODLANS Dy 1CUTHE MANICITE! ST STpiojees 16882 60 140 0 00
Changes m Vivesd SA P mterest ot et do nat rasuti m & leas ol comtrel [z -] - o] ]
O which acquismon of SECP's non-contrefling intarests 25 1375) 1375) 1]
GES W ECUTTY A v SHARED A 02 ] 3 i) Tkl AT (LN T
[FTo = Ty T [ T ey [ ey ey ['TH 1] i
Drvidondts posdt by subsidianes ta non-controlling interests 11 ) Ll
Changes o nan-contreilong misrests that du net resalt in o gemnflass) of cantrel - (s {150} sy
Acquesrtion of SECP's non-controliing ntecesty 7% 11503 13504 [tE]
CHANGES IN EQUITY nmunuua& 70 NON-CONTROLLING NTERESTS (B) i1 (151 (191}
Tamings Tom (5G] 57
gg%mmnmrgmmmmm g 3 1121 1352 118
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE NCOME (C) 2,00 LRE3] EXE] 310
TOTALCHANGES GVER THE PERIOB [A+B+C] Tz [ 7 (i]] w2k i1 noe] T
Attrbulable o Vaynce SA 16,722 7 183 i) ] (2448 1127 721
Atirbulabée ta non controling wtorests {151) 1 {1508 {150
[BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2918 1368.X27 =] 530 e [ [ asis | 2w
Arrbuinble tv Vivewdi SA chorvewners 13523 258 53T e 1210 776 Pl 597 20054
AlTrbuzable v atrreets =] 13) 22 2
The accompanying notes aze an integral part of the Consolidated Financiat Statements
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Yeor ended December 31, 2014

Fuday February 19 2016

Capital Retainad sarmnbngs snd othsr
Comemon thavrésd Agditonal Deher
[Frimdvwes | Gam pon et | s | POy | st TS
{1 mullions of ¢uni axcapt number of sherest o Cousandsl | eapial capasl samng eome
BALANCE A3 OF DECEMEER 71 2013 [T AN E ] (] (TN 513 iz 0 I
Attribatabie to Vireodi SA sharscwders 1xM818 | pA 381 ] 1578 A58 1154 1708 147
Ritributabis to pos-contrailing ithrasts ] . 1 & [] 1573 1573
Tontributions bY/distributions to VIVend| SA sharsowneea HE] [] Bz [R5 1588 T3 HELE)]
SalasApurthaset) of samsy shares erd] sl <]
Allecation of 2013 result (2,004} {2.004) 2004 2004
[nstatition to shareowners (€1 per share) 11.348) (1.348) 348)
Captal incrasse mlatod to shans-based compensaton plans 11,381 65 13 a2 s 181 18} m
of welich axsreoie of $tck CRLONS by GOCLUTIVE TRANIQGTENT T SnpRIYeRs 124 & 135 187 197
Changsa in Viveadi $A s awnership interest in its subsidiaries thel do not result [x 2 loss of control - § ] L]
CHANGES [N EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO D1 8A SHAREQWNERS {A] 11981 | ) [zEz31] {3,155} 1992 14502 {1 163
o3 by GtTGUlons (3 RoR-CORTOHgG AW esD 3] (3] T3]
Dradarats pad by » ey (e (on o7
Changes in non-controlling interssts that resuitin & gainflosa} of control 1384 - ] {1,348} 11,346}
Sale of the 53% itersst v Maroe Teiectm groupy (1378) 48 (1.3238) 11 328)
Changes in non-controtling intsrests thal do not result In & gainless) of control [L] {1} in
UTTY A B! NG TS [ [EE] ] nan|_ nen
Tamings 5005 5025 5025
Charges and incame directly recogrezad in equity {34) 1647 1582 | 1,552
TOTAL HENSIVE INCOME - 4330 155 &577 8577
TOTAL CHANGES OVER THE PERIOD [A+B+C] X5 [ RZ) - TAT55] 7 6o 79 58 |
Armbutabla fo Vevend: SA shareownors 11997 & 3221} (3 155) 8547 1657 3304 5 149
Antnbtably tt no-conToNNg Rrests 1230 k] _(1131) {1131
[EALANCE A3 OF DECEMBER 31 2118 TS e i) i W] 125m [ een ] s | W
___Attributable iv ¥ivend SA 135161 74 5150 [1]] 12533 18210 (187) 10013 22506
Attrbutable 5 nor-cortrlling interasts - L.l {18 382 JhZ

The accompanying notes are an 1ntegral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivend: 15 a hmited lability company {société anonyme) incorporated under French law and subject to French commercial company law
including the French Commercial Code {Code de commercel Vivend) was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 89 years expinng
on December 17, 2085, except in the event of an early dissolution or unless its term 1s extended its registered office 1s located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Paris {France} Vivend is listed on Euronext Pans {Compartment A)

Vivend is an integrated medra and content group The company operates businessas throughout the media value chain, from talent discovery
to the creation, production and distribution of content Canal+ Group 15 engaged n pay-TV in France, as well as m Africa, Poland and
Vietnam Its subsidiary Studiocanal 15 a leading European player in production, sales and distribution of cinema films and TV series Universal
Music Group 1s engaged in recorded music, music publishing and merchandising It owns more than 50 labels covering all music genres
Vivend: Village brings together Vivend Ticketing (ticketing in the United Kingdom, the United States and France), MyBestPro {expert
counseling), Watchever (subscniption video-on-demand) and L'Olympia (the Paris-based music hafl} Within New initiatives, Dailymotion 1s
one of the iggest video-content aggregation and distnbution platforms in the wortd

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivendi and its subsidiaries {the "group”) together
with interests in equity affihates Amounts are reported in euros and atl values are rounded to the nearest million

On February 10, 2016, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the
Consclidated Finangial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 They were reviewed by the Audit Committee at its meeting held
on February 11, 2016 and the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held en February 18, 2016

On April 21, 2016, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 will be submitted for approval at Vivend)'s
Annual General Shareholders” Meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

1 Gompliance with accounting standards

The 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivend: SA have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the Eurepean Union (EU), and 1n accordance with IFRS published by the Intemational Accounting Standards
Board {IASB) with mandatory apphication as of December 31, 2015

In addition and as a reminder, Vivend) applied, from January 1, 2014, IFRIC 21 interpretation — Lewies, which clanfies IAS 37 — Prowisions,
Contingent Liabiiities and Contingent Assets, and specifically addresses the accounting for a liability to pay a levy imposed by public
authorities on entities in accordance with laws or regulations, except for income tax and value-added taxes Thus, its application has led to
changes, where applicable, in the analysis of the obligating event triggenng recogation of the fiabiity This interpretation, which
mandatorily applies to accounting periads beginning on or after January 1, 2014, and retrospectively as from January 1, 2013, did not have
any material impact on Vivendi's Financial Statements

1.2 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
121 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

The main e items presented in Vivendi's Consghidated Statement of Earnings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, tnterest,
provision for income taxes, earmings fram discontinued or held for sale operations, and eamings The Consolidated Statement of Earnings
presents a subtotal of Earnings Before Interest and Tax {EBIT} equal to the difference between charges and income (excluding those
financing activities, equity affiliates, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes)

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from nvestments, as well as other financial charges and
income as defined n paragraph 1 2 3 and presented in Note 5

122 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities is calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT EBIT ts adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net working capital Net cash provided by operating activities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, ang ntangible assets
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Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing activities includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments (particularly dividends received from equity affiliates} it also includes any cash flows ansing from the gain
or loss of control of subsidiaries

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net mterest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdraits, as well as the
cash impact of other stems related to financing activities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
derivative instruments 1t alse includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
(inctuding increases in ownership interests)

123  Operating performance of each operating segment and the group

Vivend considers Adjusted Earmings Before tnterest and Tax (EBITA), income from operations, Adjusted net income {ANI), and Cash Flow
From Operations {CFFO), non-GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group's operating and financial performance

EBITA

Vivend considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data It enables Vivendh to compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their performance
is driven by the operating segment’s organic growth or by acquisitions To calculate EBITA, the accounting impact of the following elements
is excluded from the income from EBIT
+ the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
« mpawrment losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and
s other income and charges related to transactions with shareowners and to financial investing transactions, which iclude gains and
losses recognized m business combinations, capital gains or losses related to divestitures, or the depreciation of equity affiliates and
other financial investments, as well as gains or losses incurred from the gain or loss of control in a bustness

Incosne from operations

Vivend: considers income from operations, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating
segments as reported n the segment data As defined by Vivendi, income from operations is calculated as EBITA, before share-based
compensation costs related to equity-settled plans, and special items due to their unusual nature or particutar significance

Adjusted netincome

Vivend: considers adjusted net ncome, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group's operating and financial
performance Vivendi Management uses adjusted net income because it prowides a better illustration of the underlying performance of
continuing aperations by excluding most non-recurring and non-operating items  Adjusted net income inctudes the following tems

e  EBITA(*"),

¢ income from equity affilates {*),

e interest{*), equal to interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents,

income from investments {*), mcluding dvidends and interest received from unconsolidated companies, and
= taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items

it does not include the following items

s amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations ("%} as well as impairment losses on goodwall and other
intangibles acquired through business combinations {*) (**),
other income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners ("), as defined above,

o other financial charges and income (*), equal to the profit and loss related to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination or change in value of financial iabilities, which primarily inciude changes in the fair value of derwative instruments,
premiums from the early redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative instruments, the cost of 1ssuing or cancelling
credit facilities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions {other than those related to operating act:vitres, included i the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and habilities, and the financial components of employee benefits (interest cost
and expected return on plan assets),

* eamings from discontinued operations {*), and

Financia! Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivend: /34




Friday, February 19, 2016

s provisions for income taxes and adjustments attrbutable to non-controlling interests and non-recurning tax items {notably the
changes in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivend) SA's tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax habilities relating to nsks extinguished over the penod)

{*] tems as presented in the Consohdated Statement of Earmings, (**) ltems as reported by each aperating segment as reported i the segment data

Cash Flow From Operations {CFFD)

Vivend considers cash fiow from operations [CFFO), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group's operating and
financial performance The GFFO includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends received from equity affil:ates and unconsghidated companies [t alse includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The difference between CFFO and net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax, consists of dvidends received from equity
affiliates and unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included in net ¢ash used for investtng activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFO

124 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and habilities that are expected to be realized, or intended for sale or consumption, within the entity’s normal operating cycle
{generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or liabnlities |f thewr matunty exceeds this period, they are recorded as non-current
assets or liab!itres Moreover, certarn reclassifications have been made to the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Financial Staterents to conform
to the presentation of the 2015 and 2014 Consohdated Financral Statements

13 Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to IFRS principles, notably [FRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement refating to measurement and disclosures, the Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, with the exception of certain assets and liabilities detailed below

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Vivendi and its subsidianies after eliminating intragroup items and
transactions Vivend: has a December 31 year-end Subsidiaries that do not have a December 31 year-end prepare mtenm financiat
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months prior to December 31

Acquired subsidianes are included in the Cansolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition
131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 1n compliance with IFRS requires the group’s management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic Although these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivend)
Management, based in particular on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could have an mpact on the reported amount of group assets, liab:hities, equity or earings

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

« revenue estimates of prowsions for returns and price guarantees {please refer to Note 1 3 4),

s provisions nisk estimates, performed on an individual basis, noting that the occurrence of events during the course of procedures may
lead to a nsk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 1 3 8 and 16),

+ employee benefits assumptions are updated annually, such as the probabibty of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate {please refer to Notes 1 3 8 and 17),

«  share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatihty and the estimated dividend
yield (please refer to Notes 13 10 and 18),

» deferred taxes estimates concerning the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group (please refer to Notes 1 3 9 and 6),

» goodwill and other intangible assets valuation methods adopted for the identification of intangible assets acquired threugh business
combinations (please refer to Notes 135 2),

s goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and assets in progress assumptions are updated annually relating to
impanment tests performed on each of the group’s cash-generating urits (CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates [please refer
toNotes 1357 and 9},

¢« UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of beneficiaries who were granted advances are recognized in the
Statement of Financial Position {please refer to Notes 1 35 3 and 10}, and
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s certain financial instruments valuation method at fair value defined according to the three following classification levels {please
refer to Notes 1358,137,12, 14 and 19)
- Level 1 farr value measurement based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
- level 2 fair value measurement based on observable market data (other than quoted prices included within Level 1), and
- leve! 3 far value measurement based on valuation techniques that use inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data

The fair value of trade accounts receivable and other, cash and cash equivalents, and trade accounts payable 1s a reasonable
approximation of fair value, due to the short maturity of these instruments

132 Principles of consolidation
A list of Vivendi's major substdiartes, joint ventures and associated entities 1s presented in Note 24

Consolidation

All companies in which Vivendt has a controling interest, namely those in which 1t has the power to govern financial and operational policies
in order to obtain benefits from their operations, are fully consolidated

The Control defined by IFRS 10 1s based on the following three criteria to be fulfilled simultaneously to conclude that the parent company
exercises control

e a parent company has power over a subsidiary when the parent company has existing nights that give 1t the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, te, the actvities that significantly affect the subsidiary’s returns Power may arise from
existing or potential voting nghts, or contractual arrangements Voting nights must be substantial, e, they shall be exercisable at
any time wrthout mttation, particularly dunng decision making related to significant activities The assessment of the exercise of
power depends on the nature of the subsidiary's relevant activities, the internal decision-making process. and the allocation of nghts
among the subsidiary’s other shareowners,

» the parent company 15 exposed, or has rights, to varable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary which may vary as a resuit
of the subsidiary’s performance The concept of returns ss broadly defined and includes, among other things, dividends and other
economic benefit distnbutions, changes in the value of the investment in the subsidiary, economees of scale, and business synergies,
and

» the parent company has the ability to use its power to affect the returns Exercising power without having any impact on returns does
not quahfy as control

Consolidated Financial Statements of a group are presented as If the group was a single economic entity with two categories of owners
{1} the owners of the parent company (Vivendi SA shareowners) and {n) the owners of non-controlling interests {rmnority sharehofders of the
subsidiaries) A non-controlling interest 1s defined as the interest in a subsichary that 1s not attributable, directly or tndicectly, to a parent As
a result, changes to a parent company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control only impact equity, as control
does not change within the economic entity Hence, m the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a consolidated entity after
January 1, 2009, Vivend) recognizes the difference between the acquisition price and the carrying value of non-controlhng interests acquired
as a change In equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners Conversely, any acquisition of control achieved in stages or a loss of control
gives nise to profit or loss in the statement of earnings

Accounting for joint arrangements
IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement

in a joint arrangement, parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint control of the arrangement An entity that
1s a panty to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives all the parties or a group of the parties, control of the
arrangement collectively Once it has been established that all the parties or a group of the parties collectively control the arrangement, joint
control exists only when decisions about the relevant activities reguire the unanmimous consent of the parties that collectively control the
arrangement

Joint arrangements are classified into two categories

e joint operations these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nights to the
assets, and obligations for the habilities, relating to the arrangement Those parties are called joint operators A joint operator shall
recognize 100% of wholly-owned assets/liabilities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items held
jointly, and

e joint ventures these are jont arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts to the net
assets of the arrangement Those parties are called joint venturers Each joint venturer shall recognize its interest 10 a joint venture
as an investment, and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with I1AS 28 {please refer below)
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Equity accounting
Entities aver which Vivends exercises significant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method

Significant influence 1s presumed to exist when Vivend: holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the voting nghts in an entity unless it can
be clearly demonstrated that Vivend: does not exercise a significant influence Significant influence can be evidenced through other criteria,
such as representation on the board of directors or the entity’s equivalent governing body, participation tn policy-making of financial and
operational processes, material transactions with the entity or the interchange of managenal personnel

133 Forergn currency translation

The Consclidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros The functional currency of Vivendt SA and the presentation
currency of the group 1s the euro

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and labilities are transtated into the entity’s functional currency at the
exchange rate prevaing on that date All foreign currency differences are expensed with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity These differences are allocated directly
to charges and income directty recognized in equity until the divestiture of the net investment

Financial statements denominated i a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidianes. joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functtonal currency s not the euro are translated into euros as follows the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 1s
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the perod, and the Consohdated Statement of Earnings and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the peniod The resulting translation gains and losses are recorded as
foreign currency translation differences in charges and income directly recognized i equity In accordance with RS 1, Vivendi elected to
reverse the accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained earnings as of January 1, 2004 These foreign currency
translation differences resulted from the translation into euros of the financial statements of subsidiaries that use fareign currencies as their
functional currencies Consequently, these adjustments are not apphed to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidianes, joint
ventures or associates whose functional currency Is not the euro

134  Revenues from operations and associated costs

Revenues from operations are recorded when 1t 15 probable that future economic benefits will be obtained by the group and when they can
be reliably measured Revenues are reported net of discounts

1341 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from television subscription services for terrestnal, satellite or cable pay-television platforms are recognized over the service
period, net of gratuities granted Revenues from advertising are recognized over the period dunng which the advertising commercials are
broadcast Revenues from ancillary services {such as interactive or video-on-demand services) are recognized when the service 1s rendered
Subscrtber management and acquisition costs, as well as television distnibution costs, are included i selling, general and adrmnistrative
expenses

Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determiming Whether an Amangement Contains a Lease, apphies to equipment far which a night of use 15 granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease agreement

Film and television programmng

Theatncal revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distribution and from video and free-to-aw or pay television
licensing agreements are recogmzed when the films and telsvision programs are avarlable for telecast and all other conditions of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated returns (please refer to Note 13 4 3) and rebates, are recognized
upon shipment and availability of the product for reta sale Amortization of capitalized film and television production and acquisition costs,
theatrical print costs, home wvideo inventory costs and television and home video marketing costs are included in costs of revenues
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1342 Umwversal Music Group (UMG}

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a provision for estimated returns {please refer to Note 13 4 3) and rebates, are
recognized upon shipment to third parties, at the shipping point for products sold free on board (FOB) and on dehivery for products sold free
on destination

Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and reliable data from certain distributors, are
recognized based on their estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon notification by the distribution platform (on-line or mobile music distributor) to UMG of a sale to the final
customer

Music publishing

Revenues from third-party use of copyrght on musical compositions owned or administered by UMG are recognized when royalty statements
are recewved and coflectabtlity 1s assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing and distnbutien costs, royalty and copynght expenses, artists’ costs, recording costs, and direct
averheads Selling, general and administrative expenses primanly include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtful receivables and indirect overheads

1343 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distnbutors The
provisions are estimated based on past sales statistics and take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final
customers

Selling, general and administrative expenses primarly include salanes and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
insurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs, provisions for receivables and other operating
expenses

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
is treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit 1s individualized and can be estimated

135 Assets

1351 Capitahized financial interest

When appropriate, Vivendi capitalizes financial interest curred during the construction and acquisition penod of intangible assets, and
property, plant and equipment, these interests beig ncluded n the cost of quahfying assets

1352 Goodwill and business combinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition method Under this method, upon the mittal consolidatror of an entity over which
the group has acqured exclusive control

« the.dentifiable assets acquired and the habilities assumed are recognized at their fair value on the acquisition date, and
« non-controlling interests are measured either at farr value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets This option 1s avallable on a transaction-by-transaction basis

0On the acquisition date, goodwll 15 imitially measured as the difference between
(1} the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-controlling interests o the acquiree and, In a business
combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair vatue of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree, and
{u} the net fair value of the identifiable assets and habilities assumed on the acquisition date
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The measurement of non-controfling interests at fair value results mn an increase 1n goodwill up to the extent atinbutable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “full goodwill” The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 12 months after the
acquisttion date If goodwill 15 negative, it 1s recognized in the Statement of Earmings Subsequent te the acquisttion date, goodwill 15
measured at 1ts initial amount less recorded accumutated impairment losses {please refer to Note 1 35 7 below)

In addition, the following principles are applied to business combinations

¢ on the acquisition date, to the extent pessible, goodwill 15 allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benefit from the business
combination,

s contingent consideration i a business combination 1s recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurning after the purchase price allocation period 1s recognized in the Statements of Earnings,

¢ acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred,

¢ 10 the event of the acquisition of an additional nterast s a subsidiary, Vivendi recognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying valug of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners, and

s goodwill 15 not amortized

Business combinatons prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivend: elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004 IFRS 3, as published by the
IASB 1n March 2004, retained the acquisition method However, 1ts provisions differed from those of its revised standard in respect of the
main following items
« minonty interests were measured at thew proportionate share of the acquiree's net identifiable assets as there was no option for
measurement at fair value,
+  contingent consideration was recognized in the cost of acquisition only if the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured,
«  transaction costs that were directly attnbutable to the acquisition formed part of acquisition costs, and
* n the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference between the acqursition cost and the carmying
value of minonty iterests acquired was recognized as goodwill

1353 Content assets

Canal+ Group
Film, television or sports broadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisition of film, television or sports broadcasting nghts, the nghts acquired are classified as
contractual commitments They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows
« film and television broadcasting nghts are recognized at their acquisition cost when the program is available for screeming and are
expensed over therr broadcasting penod,
«  sports broadcasting nghts are recognized at thew acquisition cest at the opening of the broadcasting period of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and
s expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting rights 1s included in cost of revenues

Theatnical films and television rights produced or acquired to be sald to third parties

Theatnical fiims and telewision nghts produced or acquired before their imitial exhibition to be sold to third parties, are recorded as a content
asset at caprtalized cost {manly direct production and overhead costs} or at their acquisition cost The cost of theatrical films and television
nghts are amortized, and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estmated revenue method (1 e , based on the ratio of the current
penod's gross revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an indvidual production basis) Vivendi considers that
amartization pursuant to the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future econemic benefits
related to the asset

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided n full against earnings for the penod in which the losses are esttimated, on an
indidual product basis

Film and television rights catalogs

Catalogs comprise film nights acquired for a second televisian screening, or produced or acquired film and television rights that are sold to
third parties after their first television screening {| e, after ther first broadcast on a free terrestrial channal} They are recogrized as an asset
at ther acquisition or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or individually, based respectively on the estmated revenue method
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UMG

Music nghts and catalogs include music catalogs, artists” contracts and mustc pubbishing nights, acquired through business combinations,
amortized 1 selling, general and administrative expenses over a perod not exceeding 15 years

Royalty advances to artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when ther current populanty and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances against earmings otherwise payable to
them s reasonably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwrter or
co-publisher Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable agatnst future royalties 1s expensed dunng the penod
in which the loss becomes evident These expenses are recorded in cost of revenues

Royalties earned by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense 1n the period during which the sale of the product
oceurs, less a provision for esbmated returns

1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred Development expenses are capitalized when the feasihility and, i particular, profitability of the
project ¢an reasonably be considered certain

Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for internal use, including website development costs,
are capitalized dunng the apphcation development stage Application development stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding, installation and testing Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionality are also capitalized
These capitalized costs are amortized over 5 to 10 years Marimtenance, minor upgrade, and enhancement costs are expensed as incurred

1355 Other intangible assets

Intangible assets separately acquired are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired in connection with a business combination are
recorded at their fair value at the acquisition date The historical cost model 1s applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefinite useful ife are not amortized but are subject to an annual smpairment test Amortization 1s accrued for assets with a
finite useful hfe Useful life 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting period

Other intangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses By contrast, music catalogs, trade names, subscribers’ bases and
market shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets

1356 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carned at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Histongal cost
includes the acquisition cost or production cost, costs directly attributable to transporting an asset to its physical {ocatien and preparing 1t for
its operational use, the estimated costs relating to the demelition and the collect:on of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabrlitation
of the physical lacation resulting from the incurred obligation

When property, plant and equipment include significant components with different useful lives, they are recorded and amortized separately
Amortization 1s calculated using the straight-ine method based on the estimated useful Tife of the assets Useful hives of the main
components are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are as follows

¢ buldings 5 to 40 years,

« equipment and machinery 3 to 8 years,

e set-top boxes 5to 7 years, and

e other 2to 10 years

Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future lease payments and of the market value and
the related debt |s recorded as “Borrowings and other financial liabilities” In general, these assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over therr estimated useful life, corresponding to the duration applicable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amartization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included In amortization expenses

After inihial recogmtion, the cost model 1s applied to property, plant and equipment

Vivendi has elected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their farr value as of January 1, 2004
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On January 1, 2004, i accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend! decided to apply [FRIC tnterpretation 4 - Determining whether an amangement
contains a lease, which mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group sateliite capacity, which are commercial
service agreements that, in general, do not convey a nght to use & specific asset Contract costs under these agreements are consequently
expensed as operationa! costs for the penod

1357 Assetimpairment

Each ume events or changes in the economic environment indicate a nsk of impaument of goodwili, other intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment, and assets In progress, Vivend: re-examines the value of these assets In addition, In accordance with the applicable
accounting standards, goodwill, other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an
annual impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year This impairment test 1s performed to compare the recoverable
amount of each Cash Generating Unit {CGL) ar, if necessary, groups of CGU to the carrying value of the corresponding assets {including
goodwill} A CGU 1s the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets The Vivendi group operates through different communication businesses Each business offers
different products and services that are marketed through various channels CGUs are independently defined at each business level,
corresponding to the group operating segments Vivend CGUs and groups of CGUs are presented in Note 9

The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of (1) the value in use, or {i1) the fair value (less costs to sell) as described hereafter, for
each individual asset If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the group of assets In particular, an impairment test of goodw!l 1s performed by Vivend: for each CGU
or group of CGUs, depending an the level at which Vivendi Management measures return on operations

The value in use of each asset or group of assets 1s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows {Discounted Cash Flow method
{DCF}} by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the
operating segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to available external sources of information, usually based on financial institutions
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivend of the time value of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The fair value (less costs to sell} 1s the price that would be recerved from the sale of an asset or group of assets 1n an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell These values are determined on the basis of market data (stock
market prices or compartson with similar isted companies, with the value attnbuted to similar assets or compamies in recent transactions}
or, in the absence of such data, on the basis of discontinued cash flows

If the recoverable amount 15 fower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the difference 1s
recognized in EBIT In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss 15 first recorded against goodwall

The impairment fosses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and (ntangeble assets (other than goodw:ll} may be reversed in
a later penod if the recoverable amount becomes greater than the camrying value, within the limut of impairment losses previously recognized
Impairment losses recognized n respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a later date

1358 Financial assets

Financial assets consist of financial assets measured at fair value and financial assets recognized at amortrzed cost Financial assets are
initially recagnized at fair value corresponding, in general, to the consideratton paid, which 1s best evidenced by the acquisition cost
{including associated acqussition costs, If any)

Financial assets at fawr vafue

Financial assets at fair value include avalable-for-sale secunties, denvatwve financial instruments with a positive value [please refer to
Note 1 3 7) and other financial assets measured at far value through profit or loss Most of these financial assets are actively traded in
orgarized public markets, therr fair value being calculated by reference to the pubhished market price at penod end Fair value is estimated
for financial assets which do not have a published market price on an active market As a last resort, when a reliable estimate of fa:r value
cannot be made using valuation techniques 1n the absence of an active market, the group values financial assets at historical cost, less any
impairment losses

Avallabte-for-sale secunties consist of unconsolidated interests and other securities that cannot be classified in the other financial asset
categories described below Unsealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recognized in charges and income directly
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recogized tn equity until the financial asset 1s sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Position in another way, or until
there Is objective evidence that the wnvestrnent 1s impatred, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized in equity 15 expensed in other financial charges and income

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivendr intends to sell in
the near future {pnimanly marketable secunittes) Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and
Income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of loans and receivables (pnmanly loans to affiliates and assoctates, current account advances to
equity affiliates and unconsolidated interests, cash deposits, secuntized loans and receivables, and other loans and receivables, and debtors)
and held-to-matunty investments {financial assets with fixed or determimable payments and fixed maturity) At the end of each period, these
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method if there (s objective evidence that an rmpairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset's carrying value and Its recoverable amount {equal
to the present vatue of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s inimial effective interest rate), 1s recognized in profit or
loss Impairment fosses may be reversed if the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future

1359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value Cost compnises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually calculated using the weighted average cost method Net realizable value 1s the estimated sefling prece in
the normal course of business, less estimated completion costs and selling costs

13510 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are imitially recognized at fair value, which 1s generally equal to therr rominal value Prowisions for the impairment
of recewvables are specifically valued in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts duning one
reference period For the group's businesses which have an economic mode! based partly or fully on subscrniption {Canal+ Group), the
depreciation rate of trade account recewvables I1s assessed on the basts of historical account receivables from former customers, prnmanly on
a statistical basis In additton, account receivables from customers subject to insolvency proceadings or customers with whom Vivend: 1s
vaolved in iitigation or a dispute are generally impaired in full

13511 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” category, defined in accordance with IAS 7, consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF
position No 2011-13, and other hughly liquid investments with imitigl matunities of generally three months or less Investments In securities,
investments with nitial maturnities of more than three months without the possibility of early termination and bank accounts subject to
restrictions {blocked accounts), other than restrictions due to regulatiens specific to a country or activity sector (e g, exchange controls), are
not classified as cash equivalents but as financial assets Moreover, the histerical performances of the investments are monitored regularly
to confirm thewr cash equivalents accounting classification

136  Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and lrabilities 1s held for sale when its carrying value may be recovered princtpally through its
divestiture and not by its continued utilization To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestiture
must be highly probable These assets and liabifities are recognized as assets held for sale and lisbilities associated with assets held for
sale, without offset The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value {net of
divestiture fees) and the carrying value, or cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and are no longer depreciated

An operation is qualified as discontinued when :t represents a separate major line of business and the cniteria for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivendi has sold the asset Discontnued operations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Eamings for the periods reported, comprising the earnings after tax of discontinued operations untr! divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or farr value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the relevant penods
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137 Financial liabilities

Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial Labilities include
+  bonds and credit facilities, as well as vanous other borrowings {including commercial paper and debt related to finance leases) and
related accrued interest,
+ obligations ansing out of commitments to purchase non-controtling interests,
»  bank overdrafts, and
e the negative value of other denivative financial instruments Dervatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets 1n the
Statement of Financial Position

Borrowings

All borrowings are imtially accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attributable to the borrowing Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate 1s the internal yield
rate that discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing in addition, where the borrowing compnses an embedded denvative
{e g . an exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument {e g , a convertible bond), the amortized cost 18 calculated for the debt component only,
after separatton of the embedded derivative or equity instrument In the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e g, redemption
occurs earher than initially expected), the amortized cost 1s adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows,
discounted at the initial effective interest rate

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests

Vivendi has committed to purchase the nan-controtfing interests of some of the minonty shareowners of its fully consolidated subsidianies
These purchase commitments may be optional {e g, put options) or mandatory {e g , forward purchase contracts)

The following accounting treatment has been applied in respect of commitments made on or after January 1, 2009

+ upon inrual recognition, the comm:tment to purchase non-controlling interests 1s recognized as a financial kab:lity for the present
value of the purchase price under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset by the book value of non-controlling
interests and the remaining balance through equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners,

» subsequent changes to the value of the commitment are secognized as a financial hability through an adjustment to equity
attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners, and

¢ Upon maturity of the commitment, If the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the previously recognized entries are reversed, if
the non-controlling nterests are purchased, the amount recognized m financial Jiabilities is reversed, offset by the cash outffow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests

Denvative haancial instruments

Vivendi uses denvative financial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations n interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates All istruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the counter with highly-rated counterparties These
instruments clude interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All these denvative financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and losses ansing on these contracts are offset in earmings against
the gains and losses relating to the hedged item When the denvative financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the far value
of an asset or a liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Pesition or of a firm commitment which is not recognized in the Statement
of Financial Position, 5t 1s a fair value hedge The instrument (s remeasured at fair value 1n earnings, with the gains or losses ansing on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged item offset on the same line of the Statement of Earnings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to a non-financial asset or liability, at the initsal cost of the asset or habihity When the derwvative financral instrument
hedges cash flows, 1t 1s a cash flow hedge The hedging instrument 1s remeasured at fair value and the portion of the gain or loss that 1s
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognized through charges and income directly recognized in equity, whereas its ineffective portion
1$ recogmized In earnings, or, as part of a farecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or iability, they are recogrized at the 1nitial cost of
the asset or lability When the hedged item 1s reahized, accumulated gains and losses recogmized in equity are released to the Statement of
Earmings and recorded on the same line as the hedged tem When the denvative financial instrument hedges a net svestment in a forergn
operation, 1t 1s recogmized in the same way as a cash flow hedge Dervative financial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting gains and losses are recognized directly in earnings, without remeasurement
of the underlying instrument

Furthermore, ncome and expenses relating to foreign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and fim
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editorial centent nghts (including sports, audiovisual and film rights) are recognized 1n
EBIT In all other cases, gains and losses anising on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recognized in other financial charges
and income
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138 Other habihties

Provisions

Prowisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting pertod, Vivend: has a legal obligation {legal, regulatory or contractual) or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligat:on and the obligation can be reliably estmated Where the effect of the time value of money 1s matenial,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money |f the amount of the obhigation cannot be reliably estimated, no provision 1s recorded and a disclosure s made in the Noies to the
Consolidated Financral Statements

Employee benefit plans

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivendi participates in, or maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, life insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employess, former
employees, retirees and such of their beneficianes who meet the required conditions Retirement pensions are provided for substantially all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with locat social secunty and multi-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans The plan funding policy implemented by the group 1s consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations

Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution and multi-employer plans are expensed during the year
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in vanous instruments such as msurance contracts or equity and debt investment
secunties, excluding Vivend: shares or debt instruments

Pension expenses and defined benefit obligations are calculated by independent actuanes using the projected unit credit method This
method 1s based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivendi until retirement,
expected changes in future compensation and an appropriate discount rate for each country in which Vivend) maintains a pension plan The
assumptions adopted 1n 2014 and 2015, and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 17 A provision Is recorded
in the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuanal value of the related benefits (actuarial hiability} and the
far value of any associated plan assets, and includes past service cost and actuarial gasns and losses

The cost of defined benefit plans consists of three compoenents recognized as follows

+ the service cost is included in selling, general and admintstrative expenses It comprises current service cost, past service cost
result:ng from a plan amendment or a curtailment, immediately recognized in profit and loss, and gans and losses on settlement,

s the financial component, recorded in other financial charges and income, consists of the undiscounting of the obligation, less the
expected return on plan assets determined using the discount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit obligation, and

* the remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability {asset), recogrized in items of other comprehens.ve income not reclassified to
profit and loss, mainly consist of actuanat gains and losses, 1 e, changes n the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
plan assets resulting from changes in actuanial assumptions and experience adjustments (representing the differences between the
expected effect of some actuanial assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective impact)

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations. a financral asset 1s recognized up to the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contributions

Some other post-employment benefits, such as life insurance and medical coverage {mainly in the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed through an actuanial calculation comparable to the method used for pension provisions

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: decrded to record unrecognized actuanal gains and losses against consolidated
equity

139 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and liabihties and their carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position give nise to temporary differences Pursuant to the liability method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of
+ deferred tax assets, when the tax base value 1s greater than the carrying value (expected future tax saving), and
e deferred tax habilities, when the tax base value 1s lower than the carrying value {expected future tax expense)
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Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year dunng which the asset will be realized or the liability
settled, based on tax rates (and tax regulations) enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date They are reviewed at the end of each
year, in ine with any changes in applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as it 15
probable that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax liability extsts to make use of these deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference 15
generated by intsal recognition of an asset or habihty in a transaction which 1s not & business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earnings, nor tax income or loss

For deducttble temporary differences resulting from investments In subsidianes, joint ventures and other assoctated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it 1s probable that the temperary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that it :s more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be avaitable to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized When assessing the probability of a taxable
profit being available, account is taken, pnmanly, of prior years' results, forecasted future results, non-recurnng items unlikely to occur 1 the
future and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carned forward 15 to @ large extent judgment-
based If the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expected, the group would be required to increase or
decrease the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially material impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
Earnings of the group

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxabte temporary differences, except where the deferred tax hability results fram goodwill or
instial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which 15 not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
impact earnings, tax income or loss

For taxable temporary differences resulting from investments n subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
habilittes are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied the parent, tvestor or venturer 1s able to
control the tming of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earnings, +f the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1310 Share-hased compensation

With the aim of aligning the mterests of its executive management and employees with its shareholders” imterests by providing them with an
additional incentive to improve the company's performance and increase its share price on a leng-term basts, Vivendi maintains several
share-based compensation plans {share purchase plans, performance share plans and bonus share plans) or other equity instruments based
on the value of the Vivend: share price {stock options), which are settled erther in equity instruments or in cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board In add:tion, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares 13
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active emplayment at the vesting date

In addition, Universal Music Group maintained Equity Long-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certain key executives were awarded
equity units, which were settled in cash These equity umts were phantom stock units whose value is intended to reflect the value of
Universal Music Group

Please refer to Note 18 for details of the features of these plans

Share-based compensation 1s recognized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted This expense 1s spread over
the vesting period, 1 e, three years for stock option plans and for performance share plans (two years for performance shares granted before
June 24, 2014}, and two years for Vivendi’s bonus share plans, other than in specific cases

Vivendi use a linomial modet to assess the far value of such instruments This method relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the calculated volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the nisk-free interest rate, the expected dividend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remarning employed within the group untll the exercise of their nghts

However, depending on whether the instrurments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the expense will
differ
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Equity-settied instruments
+ the expected term of the option granted 1s deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term,
« the value of the instruments granted 1s estimated and fixed at grant date, and
e the expense 1s recognized with a corresponding increase In equity

Cash-settled instruments

* the expected term of the instruments granted 1s deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument for
vested rights, and to the average of the residual vesting penod at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of the
instrument for unvested rights,

e the value of instruments granted 15 initially estimated at grant date and 15 then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment
date and the expense is adjusted pro rata taking Into account the vested rights at each such reportmg date,
the expense 15 recognized as a provision, and
moreover, as plans settled in cash are pnmarnly denominated in US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-based compensation cost 1s allocated to each operating segment, pro rata to the number of equity instruments or eguivatent
instruments granted to their managers and employees

The dilutive effect of stock options and performance shares settled in equity through the 1ssuance of Vivendi shares which are in the process
of vesting (s reflected m the calculation of diluted earnings per share

In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based
compensation plans for which nghts remained to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2

14 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, joint control or significant influence,
shareholders exercising joint control over group joint ventures, non-controfling nterests exercising significant influence over group
subsidiaries, corporate officers, group management and diectors and companies over which the latter exercise exclusive control, joint
control, or significant influence

The transactions realized with subsidianes over which the group exercises contra are not included in the intersegment operations {a list of
the group’s major consolidated entities 1s presented in Note 24) Moreover, commercial relationstips among subsidianes of the group,
aggregated in operating segments, are conducted on an arm's-length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be offered
by third parties The operating costs of Vivendi SA's headguarters, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the group's
businesses, are included in the Corporate operating segment

15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivend: and its subsidianes prepare detaled reports on all matenal contractual obligations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent obligatians, for which they are jointly and severally hiable These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated nternal control procedures are carried out, including (but not limited to) the review of
+ minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board in respect
of matters such as contracts, htigation, and authonzation of asset acquisitions or divestitures,
pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions,
pending htigation, claims {in dispute) and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels,
tax examiner's reports and, +f applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years,
insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the nsk management department and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted,
s related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received commitments, and more generally
=  major contracts and agreements
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16  New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

Among IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations 1ssued by the IASB/IFRS IC as of the date of approval of these Consohidated Financial
Statements, but which are not yst effective, and for which Vivend: has not elected for an earlier applicgtion, the main standards which may
have an impact on Viverd: are the followmng

e The amendments to 1AS 38 — Intangible Assets, related to clanfication of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortization,
which apply mandatonly from January 1, 2016 and endorsed i the EU Vivend) expects no sigmficant impact denving from the
applicatton of these amendments indeed, within its film preduction and television nghts activities, Vivendi considers that the
amortization method based on revenue generated by these activities {according to the estimated revenue method descnibed 1n Note
1353) 1s appropriate because revenue 1s mighly comelated with the consumption of the economic benefits embodted In the
intangible assets

» |FRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which applies mandatonly from January 1, 2018, and 1s still to be endorsed in the
EU Vivendi 15 currently assessing the potential impact on the Statement of Earnings, the aggregate comprehensive income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
In applying this standard
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Note2  Major changes in the consolidation scope and the equity portfolio

21 Acquisition of a 90% interest in Dailymotion

Cn June 30, 2015, Vivendi completed the acquesition of an 80% interest in Dailymotion from Orange for a cash consideration of €217 millwon,
based on a full enterprise value of €265 million Limited representations and warranties, customary for this type of transaction, were granted
by Orange

On July 30, 2015, Vivendr purchased an additional 10% tnterest in Dartymotion from Orange for a cash consideration of €28 7 milion in
add:tion, Orange was granted a put option on 1ts remaiming 10% interest, exercisable within two months following the General Shareholders’
Meeting held to approve Dailymotion's Financtal Statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 At the end of this penod, Vivend: will
have a call option, exercisable within two months

As from June 30, 2015, Vivend: has consolidated Dailymotion under the full goodwill method and performed a preliminary allocation of the
purchase price for 100% of Dallymotion The allocation of the purchase price will be finalized within the 12-month peniod following the
acquisition date, as required by accounting standards The provisionat goodwail amounted to €262 million The final amount of goodwill may
differ from the amount snitally recorded

22 Acquisition of an interest in Telecom Italia

On June 24, 2015, Vivend| announced that 1t had become the largest shareholder of Telecom Itaba, holding 14 9% of Telecom Italia comman
shares As of December 31, 2015, Vivend) held 21 4% of Telecom Italia comman shares and 14 8% of the diluted capital, pursuant to the
following transactions

« on June 24, 2015, pursuant to the agreement enterad into with Telefonica for the sale of GVT, Vivend: swapped a 4 5% interest in
Telefonica Brasil with Telefonica in exchange for a block of 1,110 shares, representing 8 24% of Telecom Italia common shares,

+ between June 10 and June 18, 2015, Vivend: acquired 190% of Telecom Italia common shares duectly on the stock market
{256 million shares) and, on Jung 22, 2015, Vivend: acquired a block of 842 million shares representing 4 76% of Telecom ltahia
common shares from a financial institution, and

e  dunng the second half of 2015, Vivendr acquired 880 mitlion Telecom Italia common shares directly on the stock market

On June 22, 2015, Vivend entered Into a hedge transaction involving 5 6% of Telecom Italia common shares, through a three-year
zero-premium coltar {consisting of a put option acquired by Vivench and a call option sold by Vivendi) On June 30, 2015, to benefit from
favorable market conditions, Vivendi unwound this collar in cash and entered into a three-month cash-settled swap on 4 7% of Telecom
Itaha commaon shares, pursuant to which Vivend) would have to pay the positive difference between the Telecom ltalia stock market price
and the share price at the unwinding of the collar, If applicable At the end of August 2015, Vivend unwound this swap for a net payment of
approximately €26 million given the evolution of the Telecom Itaha stock market price

Accounting for the investment in Telecom Itaha

On December 15, 2015, Telecom ltalias Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting appointed Mr Ammaud de Puyfontaine, chairman of
Vivendi's Management Board, as well as Mr Hervé Phiippe and Mr Stéphane Roussel, members of Vivendi's Management Board, as
members of Telecom Italia’s Board of Directors As from that date, Vivendh has the power to participate the financial and operating policy
dectsions of Telecom ltalia, according to IAS 28, and, consequently, it considers exercising a significant influence over Telecom ltalia

e Between June 24 and December 14, 2015, Vivendi's investment in Telecom itahia was accounted for as “available-for-sale
secunties”, revalued at the stock market price and the change in value was recognized as “charges and mcome directly recogrized in
equity”, in accordance with [AS 39

¢  As from December 15, 2015, the interest in Telecom ltalia has been accounted for under the equity method, 1n accordance with
IAS 28 On that date, this interest was revalued at the stock market price and the change in value was a gain of €30 mitlion recycled
to the Statement of Earnings, as "Other income”

e  As of December 31, 2015, Vivend: held 2,888 million (21 4%) Telecom ltaha common shares (14 8% of the diluted capital), valued at
£3,319 million given the share purchases since December 15, 2015 This amount included €2,008 millron paid in cash The average
purchase pnce amounted to €1 14 per share The market vatue of this interest amounted to €3,393 mullion

«  As of February 10, 2016, the date of Vivend's Management Beard that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015, Telecom Italia's Consolidated Financial Statements were not publicly reported, which prevented Vivendi in
2015 to meet the requirements set forth in IFRS 12 regarding the financial information refated to Telecom Italia In 2016, Vivend: will
rely on Telecom Italia’s public financial information to account for its interest in Telecom ltalia under the equity method
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23  Divestment of Telefonica Brasil and entry into Telefonica's share capital

On July 29, 2015, Vivend: sold a 40% interest in Telefonica Brasil on the stock market, for a consideration of US$877 million
fi e, €800 milhon} This transaction was carned out after the preferred shares were converted into American Depositary Receipts {ADR)

On July 29, 2015, Vivend: entered into an agreement with Telefonica to swap a 3 5% interest in Telefoica Brasil :n exchange for a
095% interest in Teleforeca (46 million shares) After obtaining the approval of the Brazilian competiien authonty (CADE), this swap
transact:on was completed on September 16, 2015, and the value of the interest amounted to €538 mullion as of this date In December
2015, Vivend receved 1 4 millien addit:onal Telefonica shares with respect to the dividend in shares, representing a value of €16 milion

As of December 31, 2015, Vivend: held 47 4 million Telefonica shares {a 0 95% interest) This interest was accounted for as “available-for-
sale secunities” in Vivendr's Consohidated Statement of Financial Position and, 1n accordance with 1AS 39, s revalued at the stock market
price at each reporting date, as the unrealized capital gains or losses are directly recognized in equity On that date, the interest :n Telefonica
was valued at £485 mill:on, representing an unrealized capita! loss of €70 milhon

24  Acquisition of interests in Ubisoft and Gameloft

Ubisoft

As of December 31, 2015, Vivend: held 15 7 m:thion Ubisoft Entertainment (“Ubisoft”) shares, « e, 13 98% of the share capital and 12 35% of
the voting nights, representing acquisttions on the stock market for £351 million

On October 26, 2015, Vivend: made the foliowing declaration of intent

Vivendr's acquisitions were financed using its available cash Vivendi i1s not acting m concert with any third party in connect:on with its
investments in Usoft and has not entered into a temporary sale agreement for Ubisoft shares or voting nights It does not hold instruments
and 1s not a party to agreements such as those referred to in paragraphs 4° and 4° bis of Articte L 233-9 of the French Commercial Code
(Code de commerce)

The group contemplates continuing the acquisition of shares depending on market conditions These acquisitions were not specifically
designed as a preparatory step for a plan to takeover Ubisoft, nonetheless, over the six coming manths, Vivendi cannot rule out the
possibility of considering such a plan Vivend: plans to request, in due time, to be represented on the company's Board of Directors

Vivendi's investment in Ubisoft’s business sector 1s part of a strategic viston of operational convergence between, Vivendi's contents and
platforms, and Ubisoft's productiens in video games Since this strategy does not require any modification to Ubisoft's legal or financial
organization, Vivendi does not contemplate 1mplementing any of the transactions referred to i Article 223-17, I, 6° of the AMF Réglement
Général (General Regulations)

As of December 31, 2015, this interest was accounted for as "available-for-sale securities” in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position and, in accordance with 1AS 39, 1s revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date, as the unrealized capital gains or losses
are directly recognized 1n equity

As of February 10, 2016, the date of Vivendi's Management Board that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015, Vivend: held 16 7 mill:on Ubisoft Entertainment shares, 1 e , 14 89% of the share capital and 13 15% of the voting rights

Gameloft

As of December 31, 2015, Vivend: held 24 5 million Gameloft SE (“Gameloft”) shares, 1 e, 2885% of the share capital and 25 50% of the
voting nights, representing acquisitions on the stock market for €122 milion This interest was accounted for as “available-for-sale
securities” in Vivendr's Consalidated Statement of Financial Position as of December 31, 2015, in accordance with 1AS 39, and 1S revalued at
the stock market price at each reporting date, as the unrealized capital gains or losses are directly recognized in equity

As of February 10, 2016, the date of Vivendi's Management Board that approved the Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015, Vivend: held 254 million Gameloft shares, (e, 29 75% of the share capital and 26 43% of the voting rights At this
meeting, Vivendl s Management Board decided to submit to the Supervisory Board, at its meeting to be held on February 18, 2016, the
project of public tender offer for all Gameloft shares
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25  Vivendi's public tender offer for the shares of Société d'Edition de Canal Plus (SECP)

On May 12, 2015, Vivendi announced its intention to file a public tender offer {“the offer”) with the Autorité des marches financiers {the
French securities regutator) for the shares of SECP, 48 5% of which were owned by Canal+ Group SA, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vivend

The offer periods lasted from July 9 until August 12, 2015, and from August 31 until September 11, 2015, at a price of £8 00 per share
{compared to the €7 60 price imitially announced) Following completion of the offer, Vivend: directly and indirectly held 122,982,460 SECP
shares, representing 97 07% of the share capital and voting nghts of SECP

In accordance with applicable faws and regulations, Vivendi launched a squeeze-out procedure for the SECP shares not directly or indirectly
held by Vivendi On September 29, 2015, the squeeze-out for the 3,708,308 SECP shares not held by Vivend:, representing a 2 93% interest,
was made at the same price as the tender offer price

Upon completion of these transactions, Vivend acquired a 51 5% interest in SECP, at a price of €8 00 per share (€522 million}, and SECP 1s
now wholly-owned, directly and indirectly, by Vivendi In accordance with {FRS standards, the difference between the acquisition price paid
and the carrying value of the acquired non-controlling interest was recorded as a deduction from equity attnbutable to Vivendi SA
shareowners for €375 million

26 Other acquisitions

Radionomy

On December 17, 2015, Vivendi purchased a 64 4% nterest 1n Radionomy Group for @ €24 million cash consideration, based on a full
enterprise value of €40 million In addtion, Vivend and the minority shareholders were granted call options and put opt:ons, respectively, on
the (nterest held by the minonty shareholders The call options are exercisable by Vivend in June 2018 At the end of this perod, the
minority shareholders will have put options, exercisable the following month

As from December 17, 2015, Vivend has consolidated Radionomy under the full goodwilt method The purchase price and 1ts allocation will
be finalized within the 12-month period following the acquisition date, as required by accounting standards The provisional goodwill
amounted to €41 milhon The finat amount of goodwill may differ from the amount intially recorded

Boulogne Studios

On September 9, 2015, Vivend: acquired a company called Boulogne Studios for €40 million
2.7 Acquisition in progress of an interest in Banijay Zodiak

Vivend!'s project to invest in the future Banijay Zodiak group {"BZ"), which will be born out of the combination between Banijay Group and
Zodiak Med:a, two of the largest audiovisual produgtion companies in Europe 15 expected to be completed before the end of the first quarter
of 2016, subject to the satisfact:on of several conditions precedent In this respect, all approvals by the relevant competition authonties (and
notably the European Commission} were granted There are three components to this iInvestment

I a £100 million investment to obtain a 26 2% interest in the future combined entity BZ,

I the subscription to a €100 milhion bond ("ORAN1"} redeemable 1n shares or cash 1ssued by BZ Upon matunty of ORAN1, BZ would
have the option of erther redeeming the bond in cash or converting 1t into a number of BZ shares which, (n addition to the shares
already held by Vivend!, would bring Vivendi's interest n the company to 2 maximum of 43 9%, and

mn the subscription to a €30 milhon bond ("ORANZ") redeemable in shares or cash 1ssued by Lov-Banijay, a helding company
controlled by Financigre Lov Upon matunty of ORANZ, Lov Banijay would have the aption of either redeeming the bond in cash or
converting it into a number of shares that would give Vivend a 25% interest in Lov Banjay

Both bonds have a 7-year maturity

Vivendi would have the nght to appoint two representatives to BZ's Board cof Directors, and would be granted certain veto and
tag-along rights
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28 Sale of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR

As a reminder, on November 27, 2014, Vivendi completed the combination between SFR and Numerncable Pursuant to this transaction,
Vivend received net cash proceeds of £13,050 million, which takes into account the €250 million final price adjustment (tncluding an
addittonal €116 million paid by Vivend: on May 6, 2015), as well as Vivendi's €200 million contribution to the financing of the acquisition of
Virgin Mobile by Numericable-SFR In addition to the cash proceeds, Vivend received a 20% interest in the new entity Numencable-SFR as
well as an earn-out nght of €750 miflion contingent upen Numencable-SFR's operating performance Vivendi granted specific guarantees to
Numericable-SFR which are imited 1n amaunt, and issued certain undertakings to the French Competrtion Authonity

On February 27, 2015, after review by the Management Board, Vivendi's Supervisory Board unanimoustly decided to accept the offer receved
on February 17, 2015 from Numencable-SFR and Altice, to purchase the Numericable-SFR shares held by Vivend:, which represented 20% of
the share capital of Numencable-SFR The purchase offer was as follows

a Repurchase by Numencable-SFR of 10% of its own shares

In accordance with the Share Repurchase Agreement signed on February 27, 2015, at Numernicable-SFR General Shareholders’
Meeting held on April 28, 2015, the shareholders approved the repurchase of 48,693,922 of the company’s own shares held by
Vivend: {1 e, a 10% nterest) at a purchase price of €40 per share, for an aggregate consideration of £1,948 million, paid on May 6,
2015

b Purchase by Altice of a 10% interest in Numerncable-SFR

On May 6, 2015, the closing date of the share repurchase, Altice acquired 48,693,923 shares at a price of €40 per share, for an
aggregate consideration of €1,948 million, payable no later than April 7, 20186, with an early payment option for the full amount
Payment was received by Vivendi on August 19, 2015 for €1,974 millien

The capital gain on the sale of the 20% interest in Numencable-SFR amounted to €651 million {before taxes), classified as “other income” in
EBIT

This transaction permitted Vivend to complete its divestment of SFR under financial conditions which resulted in st receving, with respect to
this minonty interest, a 20% premium over the closing pnice of Numencable-SFR shares on November 27, 2014 The low liguidity level of
Numericable-SFR shares made an exit under optimal conditions uncertain In total, net proceeds received by Vivend: from the sale of SFR
amounted to approximately €17 billion, in ine with the valuation projected by Vivend) in Apnl 2014

The completion of these transactions resulted in the termination of (1} the agreements pursuant to which Vivendi was entitfed to receive a
potent:al earn-out payment of £750 million and a specific guarantee given by Vivendi, {11) the shareholders’ agreement including in particular
a nan-compete prowvision relating to Canal+ Group in specific sectors and territories, and (s} discussions over a sale price adjustment of SFR
based on its level of debt at the closing date, which resulted in the payment by Vivend: of €116 miflion

In addition, Vivendi was informed that the tax authonties are challenging the validity of the merger completed in December 2011 between
SFR and Vivend) Telecom International (VT1} and, consequently, intend to contest the inclusion of SFR within the Vivend: tax group i respect
of fiscal vear 2011 The tax authonties plan to require that SFR be carved-out from Vivendr's tax group for that fiscal year and to make a
claim against SFR for a total amount of €1,374 million, representing a principal tax amount of €711 million plus default interest and penalties
of €663 muklion

As part of the agreement entered (nto on February 27, 2015 among Vivend:, Altice and Numericable-SFR, Vivend: agreed to return to SFR, if
applicable, taxes and contributions that could be borne by SFR for fiscal year 2011 and that SFR would have already paid at that time to
Vivendi, up to @ maximum amount of €711 million {including €154 millson corresponding to the use by SFR of VTT's tax losses in 2011 or 2012}
covering the entire peniod within which SFR belonged to the Vivend: tax group, if the 2011 merger of SFR and VT were to be ultimately
invalidated for tax purposes Vivend and Altice/Numernicable-SFR have agreed to cooperate i order to challenge the position of the tax
authorities

Vivend! Management believes that it has sold legal grounds on which to defend the inclusion of SFR within the Vivend: tax group in respect
of fiscal year 2011 or, failing that, its consolidation by applying the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System in respect of such fiscal year
Therefore, Vivend believes that the agreement entered into on February 27, 2015 between Vivend: and Aluce/Numencable-SFR should not
have a matenally adverse impact on the financsal position or hquidity of the company
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29 Sale of GVT

On May 28, 2015, pursuant to the agreements entered into on September 18, 2014, Vivend: sofd 100% of GVT, its Brazlian
telecommunications subsidiary, to Telefanica for an enterprise value of €7 5 bilkon (based on the stock market value and foreign exchange
rates on that date) The main terms of this transaction are described below

Cash proceeds £4,178 million {before taxes), corresponding to a contractual gross amount of €4,663 million 1n
cash, net of the sale price adjustments (€485 mulhion), including, among other things,
exceptional changes in net working capital, GVT's bank debt at the closing date, as well as
certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties

After taxes paid in Brazil (€395 million), the net cash proceeds received by Vivendi amounted
to €3,783 million This amount will be further decreased by the ingome tax payable in France,
estimated at approximately €237 million, which will bring the net sale proceeds to
approximately €3 6 billion

Consideration shargs 12% interest i Telefonica Brasil Pursuant to the agreements entered into with Telefonica,
Vivendi subsequently swapped a 4 5% interest in Teleforuca Brasil i exchange for 8 24% of
Telecom Italia common shares (please refer to Note 2 2 above)

Commitments given Representations and warranties, luruted to specifically identified tax matters, capped at
BRL180 mitlion
Vivendi gave a commitment to CADE to progressively exit from Telefonica Brasil

Liquidity With respect to Vivendi's interest in Telefonica Brasil

- lock-up peniod until July 28, 2015, and
tag-along rights
Governance No specific governance rights in Telefonica Brasil nor in Telecom italia

Decansolidation of GVT as from May 28, 2015

As from the third quarter of 2014, GVT had been presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings, Statement of Cash Flows and
Statement of Financial Position as a discontinued operation On May 28, 2015, Vivendi sold 100% of GVT to Telefonica and recewved
£€4,178 million in cash {before taxes) and a 12% nterest (n Telefonica Brasil On that date, Vivend deconsolidated GVT

The capital gain on the sale of GVT amounted to €1,878 million, before taxes amounting to €634 mullion {(of which €395 millon paid in Brazil),
and was recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings under the line “Earnings frem discontinued operations” Excluding the
discontinuation’ of amortization since the third quarter of 2014, in accordance with IFRS 5, the caprtal gain after taxes on the sale of GVT
would have amounted to €1,453 million

On July 29, 2015, Vivendh divested its entire 7 5% interest in Telefonica Brasil {please refer to Note 2 3 above)

2.10 Sale of the interestin TVN in Poland

On July 1, 2015, Canal+ Group and ITl Group sald their controlling interest 1in TVN {Poland’s free-to-air TV} to Southbank Media Ltd, a
London-based subsidiary of Scripps Networks Interactive Inc Group

Pursuant to the terms of the transaction, N-Vision BV, which held a 52 7% controlling interest in TVN, was acquired by Southbank Media Ltd
for an aggregate cash consideration of €584 million {1 &, €273 million for Canal+ Group)
SouthBank Media Ltd took over the bond issued by Polish Television Holding BV (€300 million nominal value}

' When an operation 1s discontwusd IFAS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amertization of the operation s tangtbie and intangible assets Therefore for GVT, Vivend
discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the third quarter of 2014, resulting i a positive impact of €269 million on earmings from discontinued
operations from September 1 2014 to May 28 2015
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211 Earnings from discontinued operations

In compliance with IFRS 5, the line "Earmings from discontinued operations”™ presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings
Includes, untif their respective sale dates, GVT {sold on May 28, 2015), SFR (sold on November 27, 2014), Maroc Telecom group (sold an
May 14, 2014), as well as the capital gains realized upon completion of the divestitures of these operations

2015 year contributions

{in rllions of euros) GvT Other Total
Revenues 738 - 738
EBITDA 292 - 292
Adjusted earmings before interest and income taxes {EBITA) 138 - 138
EBITA after discontinuation of amartization (a) 291 - 291
Eamings hefore interest and income taxes {EBIT) 289 289
Eamings before prowision for income taxes 195 - 185
Provision for income taxes {16} . (18)
Earmngs 179 - 1
Caprtal gain on the divestiture of GVT 1818 - 1818
Taxes paid in Brazif related to the divestiture of GVT {395} - {395)
Capital loss on the divestiture of Telefonica Brasit - {294) (294}
Other - {75} (b} {75)
Earnings from discontinued operations 1,602 (ﬂ 1233

0Of which attnbutable to Vivend: SA shateowners 1602 {360} 1233
non-conirolling interests -

2014 year contributions
Maroc Telecom

{tre rilhons of euros) GvT SH Group Uther Total
Revenues 1765 8981 969 - 11715
EBITDA 702 2,128 530 - 3,361
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) 367 68% 360 - 1416
EBITA after discontinuaiion of amorization {a} 478 1732 531 - 274
Earnings before interest and income taxes {EBIT) 457 1676 531 - 2,664
Earmings before prowision for income taxes 393 1487 527 - 2407
Prowsion for income taxes (89} {188) (120} - (397}
Earnings 304 1,299 407 - 2010
Capital gains on completed divestitures na 2,374 7886 84 [ 3,248
Other (2} - - 6 4
Earnings from discontined operations 302 36N 1,193 20 5,262
Of which attributabie to Vivendi SA shareowners 302 3,663 a79 %0 5034
nen-controlling interests - 14 214 - 228

na not apphicable

a Incompliance with IFRS 5, Vivend! discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets of GYT as from September 1, 2014,
SFR as from Apnl 1, 2014 and Maroc Telecom group as from July 1, 2013

b Included the €69 million remamning impact related to the sale of an B0% interest 1n SFR to Numencable, notably the final sale price
adjustment

¢ Included the capital gain on the divestiture of 41 5 mullion Activision Blizzard shares on May 22, 2014
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Note3  Segmentdata

3t Operating segment data

Vivend: Management evaluates the performance of its business segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating performance indicators {segment earnings and cash flow from operations) Income from operations and EBITA reflect the earings
of each business segment

The operating segments presented hereunder are strictly identical to the information given to Vivends's Management Board
Vivend's main businesses are aggregated within the following operating segments

+  Canal+ Group publishing and distr:bution of premium and thematic pay-TV channels, as well as free-to-air channels i France,
Poland, Africa and Vietnam, as well as production, sales and distribution of cinema films and TV series

o  Umversal Music Group sale of recorded music {physical and digital media), exploitation of music publishing rights, as well as
artist services and merchandising

«  Vivend: Village Vivendi Ticketing {with See Tickets and Digitick), MyBestPro (formerly Wengo, expert counseling), Watchever
{subscription video-on-demand), L'Olympia (the Pans-based music hali}, Radionomy {acquired on December 17, 2015}, as well as
CanalQlympia {business in the process of being developed in Africa)

« New Imtiatives Dailymotion (acquired on June 30, 2015, please refer to Note 2 1), Vivendi Contents” businesses {created n
February 2015, bringing together notably Fiab Prod and Studio+), Boulogne Studios, as well as Group Vivend: Africa {business in the
process of being developed)

. Corporate central services

Intersegment commerctal operations are conducted on an arm’s-length basis, on terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties
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Main aggregates of the Statement of Earmnings

{in millions of euros}

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Universa! Music Group

Vivend Village

New Initiatives

Elwmnation of mtersegment transactions

Income from operations
Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group
Vivend Viilege

New initiatives

Corporate

Restructuring charges
Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group
Vivendi Village

New Initiatves
Corporate

Charges related to equity-settled share-based compensation plans
Canal+ Group

Unwversal Music Group

Vivend Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Other non-current operating charges and income
Canal+ Group

Uniwversal Music Group

Vivend Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA)
Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend: Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Frnday, February 18, 2016

Year ended December 31,
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2015 2014
5513 5456
5.108 4,557
100 96
43 -
{2) {20)
10,762 10,089
542 618
626 606
10 {34)
{18) -
{99} {82}
1.061 1.108
{47) -
{51 {50}
{1} {44}
{3) {10)
{102 (104)
3 {3)
{5) (2)
- n
{8) {3)
(16) (9}
(38) {32}
23 "
{2) -
16 25
1) 4
454 583
593 565
] (79)
{20) -
(94) {70}
942 999
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Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to incame from operations

{in mihons of eurps)
EBIT (a)
Adpustments

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations

Fnday, February 19, 2016

Year ended December 31

imparrment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a)

Other income {a}
QOther charges {a)
EBITA

Adiustments
Restructuring charges (a}
Charges related to equity-settled share-based compensation plans

Other non-current operating charges and income
Income from operations

a Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Consolidated Statement of Financial) Pasition

2015 2014
1.3 136
408 344
3 gz
{745} {203)
45 30
942 999
102 104
16 9
1 4
1,061 1,108

(in mitlions of euras) Becember 31, 2015

December 31,2014

Segment assets (a}
Canak Group 7575 1829
Universal Music Group 9,242 8677
Vivend Village 216 154
New Initiatives 387 -
Corporate 8,026 5896
25,446 22,556
Segment lialilities (b)
Canal+ Group 2615 2,609
Uriversal Music Group 3552 3,463
Vivend Village 17 129
New Initiatives 50 -
Corporate 3,550 2404
9,884 8,605

a Segment assets include goedwiil, content assets, other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, investments in equity affiliates,
financial assets, inventories and trade accounts receivable, and other

b Segment iabibties melude provisions, other ron-current lrabilitres, and trade accounts payable and other

Additional operating segment data 15 presented in the following Notes Note 9 “Geodwill” and Note 10 “Content assets and commitments”

Financial Report and Audrted Consolidated Financral Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015

Vivend: /56




Depreciations and amortizations

{in mdlions of euros)

Capital expenditures, net (capex net) (a)
Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend: Village

New Instiatives

Corporate

Increase in tangible and intangible assets
Canal+ Group

Universal Mus:c Group

Vivend: Village

New Intiatives

Corporate

Depreciation of tangible assets
Canal+ Group

Universat Musit Group

Vivend Village

New Inttiatives

Corporate

Amortization of intangible assets excluding those acquired through business combinations
Canal+ Group

Uriversal Music Group

Vivendi Village

New Imtiatives

Corporate

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Canat+ Group

Uriversal Music Group

Vivend: Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Friday, February 18, 2016

Year ended December 31,

a Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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2015 2014

181 190
53 48
7 7
4 .
1 .
246 243
175 205
53 47
7 7

5
1 -
]| 259
163 170
67 58
yi 3
2 .
. 1
234 232
70 72
- 3

1
n FL]
8 8
398 334
2 2
408 K17
‘| -
2 1
91
3 92

|
|
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3.2 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by customer location

Friday, February 19, 2016

Year ended December 31,
{in miltions of euros) 2015 2014
Revenves
France 4 484 42% 4482 44%
Rest of Europe 2.567 24% 2505 25%
United States 2191 20% 1748 17%
Rest of the world 1540 4% 1354 14%
10,762 100% 10,089 100%
{in millsons of euros) December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Segment assets
France 9 568 36% 11774 52%
Rest of Eurape 6109 24% 2518 1%
United States 9,078 J6% 1,660 H%
Rest of the world 691 7% 603 3%
25,446 100% 2255 100%
Note 4 EBIT

Breakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

{in milhons cf euros)
Product sales net
Services revenues
Other

Revenues

Cost of products sold, net
Cost of service revenues
Other

Cost of revenues

Personnel costs and average employee numbers

{in mullions of auras) Note
Salaries

Socral secunity and other employment charges

Camtahzed personnei costs

Wages and expensss

Share based compensation pfans 18
Employee benefit plans 17
Other

Personnef costs
Annual average number of fufl-time equivalent employees fin thousands)

Year ended December 31

2015 2014
5269 4701
5437 5,322
56 66
10,762 10,089
(2 658) {2,365)
(3 897) (3748}
- i8)
(6,555) (6121)

Year ended Decembes 31

2015 2014
1,138 1,005
310 276
{3 {3)
1,445 1278
19 (8) tal
40 10
41 42
1,545 1322
166 157

a Notably included a €19 million reversal of reserve related to the departure of a key executive from Universal Music Group {please refer

to Note 18 2)

Additicnal information on operating expenses

Advertising costs amounted to €348 million mn 2015 {compared to €467 mithon in 2014)
Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite transponders amounted to €120 milhon

in 2015 {compared to €115 million in 2014)

Net expense recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €113 million in 2015 (compared to

€104 million in 2014)
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Taxes on production

Taxes on production amounted to €179 midlion 1n 2015 {compared to €173 million 1n 2014), of which €98 million related to taxes on television
services {compared to €102 million tn 2014) and €22 million related to the ternitorial economic contribution {unchanged compared to 2014)

Other income and other charges

Year ended December 31,
{in miflions of euros) 2015 2014
Capital gain on financial investments 745 {a) 194 (b}
Other - 9
Other income 145 203
Downside adjustment on financial investments {7 {17}
Other {38) 113}
Other charges {45) (30)
Net total 100 173

a Included the capital gain on the sale of the 20% interest in Numercable-SFR {8651 million, before taxes) and the reversal of the
€54 million impairment reserve related to Canal+ Group's interest in TVN in Poland {please refer to Note 2 10)

b Included the capttal gain of the sale of Universal Music Group’s interest in Beats (€179 mullion)

Note 5 Financial charges and income

Interest
Year ended December 31,
{in mullions of euros) Note 2015 2014
{Chargel/Income
Interest expense on borowings 19 {651 (283)
Imerest income on SFA's loans na 158
Interest income on GVT's loans 4 i3
Interest expense net of borrowings {61) 111}
Interest income from cash, cash equivalents and investments 31 15
tnterest from continuing operations {30) 96}
Premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds {4) {69@]_ {a)
{34) (794}
Other financial income and charges
Year ended December 31,
{in milltons of euros) Note 2015 2014
Expected retum on plan assets related to employee benefit plans 172 12 12
Foreign exchange gain 4 7
Other financial income 16 19
Premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds (4} {698} ta)
Effect of undiscounting liabilitees {b) ] (8)
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 172 {29) (31
Foreign exchange loss ] 8
Change in value of denvative instruments 17 -
Other {7 {6)
Other financial charges (73) {751}
Net tatal {57} {132)

a Included net premium paid for €642 million related to the early redemption of bonds following completion of the sale of SFR in
November 2014

b In accordance with applicable accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money s matenal, assets and habilittes are
initially recorded on the Statement of Financial Position in an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent penod, the present value of such assets and hiabilities 1s adjusted to account for the passage
of tme As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, these adjustments only applied to habilities {mainly trade accounts payable and provisions)
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Note 6 Income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivend: SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it benefited, until December 31, 2011 inclusive, from the
Consolidated Globa! Profit Tax System, as authorized under Article 209 quinguses of the French Tax Code Since January 1, 2012, Vivend only
benefits from the French Tax Group System

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivendi 1s entitled to consolidate 1ts own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidiaries that are at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by 1t, and that are located in France for 2015, this mainly applied
to Universal Music 1n France and Canal+ Group

Untit December 31, 2011, the Conselidated Global Profit Tax System entitled Vivend: to consohdate its own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidianies that were at least 50% owned directly or indirectly by 1t, and located in France or
abroad, 1 e, other than the French companies that were at least 35% owned directly or indirectly by Vivendi Activision Blizzard,
Universal Music Group, Maroc Telecom, GVT, Canab+ France and its subsidiaries, as well as Société d'Edition de Cana! Plus (SECP)
As a reminder, on May 19, 2008, Vivend: lodged a request with the French Ministry of Finance to renew its authonization to use the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and an authorization was granted by an order dated March 13, 2009, for & three-year penod
begmning with fiscal year 2008 and ending with fiscal year 2011

In addition, as a reminder, on July 6, 2011, Vivend) lodged a request with the French Ministry of Finance to renew its authorization
to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System for a three-year period, from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014

The changes n French Tax Law 1n 2011 terminated the Consolidated Glgba! Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 and capped
the deduction for tax {osses carned forward at 60% of taxable income Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses carred forward has
been capped at 50% of taxable income and the deduetibility of interest limited to 85% of financial charges, net {75% as from
January 1, 2014}

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivend!'s tax attributes (tax losses and
tax credits carmed forward) are as follows

As Vivend) considers that its entitiement to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System was effective until the end of the
authorization granted by the French Ministry of Finance, icluding fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, on November 30, 2012,
Vivend: filed a request for a refund of €366 million with respect to the tax saving for fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 As this
request was denied by the tax authonties, Vivendi accrued a €366 million prowision for the associated nsk in its Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 On October 8, 2014, the Administrative Court of Montreull ruled n favor of
Vivendi Pursuant to this ruling, on December 23, 2014, Vivendi received & €366 million sefund and moratonum interest of
€43 mitlion, which was received on January 16, 2015 On December 2, 2014, the tax authorities appealed this ruling As a result, in
its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivendi maintained the prowision related to the €366 million
principal refund and increased 1t by €43 million to take into account the moratorum interest, for a total amount of €409 million,
which remained unchanged as of December 31, 2015 {please refer to Note 6 5)

Moreaver, considering that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System permitted tax credis to be camed forward upon the end of
the authorization on December 31, 2011, Vivend: requested a refund of taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for the year
ended December 31, 2012, 1 e, €208 million, increased to €221 mithion n 2013 at the time of the tax return filing with respect to
fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 On May 8, 2013, Vivend: recerved a €201 milhion refund related to the tax installment paid in
2012 This position was challenged by the tax authorities in the context of an audit and Vivend: provisioned the associated risk for
a principal amount of €208 million In (ts Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, increased to €221 million as
of December 31, 2013 In its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivendi maintained the €221 million
principal refund and increased it by additional default interest of €11 mulion, for a total amount of £232 million as of December 31,
2014, decreased to €228 million as of December 31, 2015 after deduction of ordinary tax credits As part of this process, Vivend
made a payment of €321 m:tion on March 31, 2015, comprising the payment of taxes for £221 million due under the French Tax
Group System for the year ended December 31, 2012, €11 million m default interest and additional penalties of €89 million The
audit being terminated, on June 29, 2015, Vivendi submuitted a claim requesting a refund of the pnincipal tax amount, the default
interest, as well as penalfties. for which ne provision has been accrued, following the recommendation of the company's advisors

In the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, the tax results of the subs:dianes within the scope of Vivendi
SA’s Franch Tax Group System were estimated, and as a result, the amount of tax attnibutes as of December 31, 2015 could not be
reliably determined Taking into account the impact of the estimated 2015 tax results and before the effects of the ongoing tax
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audits (please refer to Note 6 5) on the amount of tax attnbutes, Vivendi SA may achieve €803 million in tax savings from tax
attributes (based on the income tax rate applicable as from January 1, 2016, 1 & , 34 43%)

As of December 31, 2015, Vivend SA valued its tax attnbutes under the French Tax Group System on the bass of one year's
forecasted results, taken from the following year's budget On this basis, Vivendi may achieve tax savings from the French Tax
Group System 1n an amount of €84 millton (based on the income tax rate applicable as from January 1, 2016, 1 &, 34 43%)

6.2 Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic area
{in mithions of euros) Year ended December 31
{Charge}/Income 2015 2014
Current
France (339) (44}
Rest of Europe (28) 12)
United States - 5
Rest of the world {25 {43)

(392) {94)
Deferred
France (100) {61}
Rest of Europe 34 (8
United States {30} (58}
Rest of the world 47 9N

{49) (36)

Prowision for income taxes (241) (130)
Income tax {paid)/collected
France (613) 327
Rest of Europe (8) (1)
United States (9) {5}
Rest of the worlg (407) 1) {31}
Income tax (paid)/collected {1,037) 280

a Included taxes paid in Brazl related to the sale of GVT for €395 million recorded 1n the Consolidated Statement of Earnings under the
hine “Earmings from discontinued operations”

63 Effective tax rate
Year ended December 31

{in millons of euros except %) 2015 2014
Earnings {befors non-controlling interests) 1978 5.025
Ehminations
Income from equity affihates 10 18
Earnings from discontinued operations {1233) {5 262)
Provision for income taxes 443 130
Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes 1,19% {89)
French statutory tax rate 3800% 3800%
Theoretical provistan for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate {a54) k]
Reconciliation of the theoretical and effective proviston for income tax
Earnings tax rate differences 39 3
Impacts of the changes in tax rates 125) -
Use of tax losses o 112
Depreciatton of tax losses 12} {176)
Changes i deferred tax assets related to Vivends SA's French Tax Group and the Consolidated Global
Profit Tax Systems 42) (37
Adjustments to tax expense from previous years 64 {33)
Capstal gain or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjusiments on financial investments or businesses 21 139)
3% tax on Vivendi SA 5 dwdends (122) -
Other {41) {31)
Provision for income taxes {ad1) _{130)
Effactive tax rate % -146 1%
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6.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred tax assets/{liabiltties), net

Year enged December 31,
{in millions of euros) 2015 2014
Opening balance of deferred tax assets/(liahilities), nat 53
Provision for income taxes (48) (53) ta)
Charges and income directly recorded in equity 57} 54
Business combinations - 9
Bivestitures in progress or completed - 20
Changes in forewgn cumency translation adjustments and other (20 10
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{irahilities), net {83} 53

Fnday, February 19, 2016

& Included in 2014 income/(charges) related to taxes from discontinued operations 1n accordance with IFRS 5, these amounts were
reclasstfied to the line “Earnings from discontinued operations™ in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Components of deferred tax assets and habilities

{in mulhons of euros)
Deferred tax assets
Recognizable deferred taxes

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

Tax attnbutes - Vivendi SA - French Tax Group System (a} [b) 809 1,400
Tax attributes - US Tax Group {a}{c) 445 a19
Tax attnbutes - Other {a) 573 656
Other 609 542
Of which nondeductile provisions 107 17
employee benefits 193 185
net working capital 136 105
Total gross deferred taxes 2436 3.017
Deferred taxes, unrecogruzed
Tax attnbutes - Vivend! SA - French Tax Group System {a} {b) [725) 1,274)
Tax attributes - US Tax Group [a} {c} (445) {419)
Tax attnbutes - Other {a) (478) {482}
Qther (168) {192)
Total deferred tax assets, unrecogmized (1,819) {2,307)
Recorded deferred tax assets 622 o
Deferred tax habilihes
Asset revaluations (d) {422} (484)
Qther {283} (173
Recorded deferred tax habilrhes 17051 657}
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net 83)

The amounts of tax attnbutes, as reported in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years In junsdictions which are
significant to Vivend, mainly France and the United States, tax returns are filed on May 1% and September 15" of the following year at
the latest, respectively The amounts of tax attnbutes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authonties may
therefore differ, and if necessary, may need to be adjusted at the end of the following year in the table

Related to deferred tax assets recognizable In respect of tax attributes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
€809 million as of December 31, 2015 (please refer to Note 6 1), related only to tax losses, taking into account the estimated impact
{-€507 million) of 2015 transactions (taxable income and use or expiration of tax credits} and the change in income tax rate in France
which decreased from 38% to 34 43% as from January 1, 2016 (-€84 million), but before taking inte account the effects of ongaing tax
audits {please refer to Note 65} In France, tax losses can be carned forward indefimtely and Vivend considers that tax credits can be
carried forward for a mimimum penod of five years upon exit from the Consohdated Global Profit Tax System In this respect,
€285 milhion tax credits matured as of December 31, 2015

Related to deferred tax assets recogmizable m respect of tax attributes by Universal Music Group, Inc 1n the United States as head of
the US Tax Group, representing $486 million as of December 31, 2015, taking into account the estimated impact (-$23 million) of 2015
transactions (taxable income, capital losses, and tax credits that expired, capital losses and tax credits generated, but before taking into
account the final outcome of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Mote 6 5) In the United States, tax tosses can be carred forward for a

Financ:al Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivend: /62




Friday, February 19, 2016

period of up to 20-years and tax credits can be camed forward for a persod of up to 10-years No tax credit will mature prior to
December 31, 202Z and $16 million tax credits matured in 2015

d These tax habilities, generated by asset revaluations following purchase allocations were terminated upon the amortization or
divestiture of the underlying asset and generated no current tax charge

6.5 Tax audits

The frscal year ended on December 31, 2015 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authorsties in the junsdictrons in
which Vivend: has or had operations Various tax authorities have proposed adjustments to the taxable income reported for prior years It 1s
not possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome of these
audits Vivend Management believes that these tax audits should not have a matenial unfavorable impact on the financial position or
liquidity of the group

Regarding Vivendi SA, in respect of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, the tax audit for fiscal years 2006, 2007 and 2008 s stil)
ongoing and, hkewtse, the tax audits for fiscal years 2009 and 2010 are still ongoing Finally, the audit of Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System for
fiscal years 2011 and 2012 began i July 2013 As of December 31, 2015, all of these tax audits were ongoing Vivendr Management
believes that 1t has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit In any
event, Vivendi has accrued a provision for the impact of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System in 2011 (€409 million), notwithstanding
the decision of the Administrative Court of Montrew:t of October 6, 2014, subject to the appeal filed by the Tax Authorities {please refer to
Note 6 1), as well as a provision for the impact in relation to the use of tax credits 1n 2012 {€228 million}

In respect of the US Tax Group, the fiscal years 2008, 2009 and 2010 are under audit and the final outcome has not matenially impacted the
amount of tax attributes reported In June 2014, the US tax authorities began a tax audit for fiscal years 2011 and 2012, and in December
2014, they undertook a tax audit for fiscal year 2013 As of December 31, 2015, these audits were ongoing Vivendi Management beheves
that it has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determiming the taxable income for the fiscal vears under audit

Note 7  Earnings per share

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Basic Diluted Basic Dituted

Earmings {in millions of euros)

Eamings from contmuing operations aitnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners 699 699 (290} (290}
Earnings from discantinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1233 1233 5,034 5034
Earnings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners 1,932 1932 4,744 4,744
Number of shares {in millions}

Wesghted average number of shares outstanding {a} 13615 13615 13458 13458
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation {b) - 53 - 55
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13615 1366 8 13458 13513
Earnings per share (in euros}

Eamings from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivend SA shareowners per share 051 051 {0224 022}
Earmings from discontinued operations attnibutable ta Vivend: SA shareowners per share on 090 374 373
Earnings attributable 10 Vivend SA shareowners per share 142 141 352 39

a  Net of the average number of treasury shares 1 6 million shares in 2015, compared to 0 4 million 1n 2014 {please refer to Note 15}

b Do not include accretive instruments, which could be potentially dilutive, the overall balance of common shares in connection with
Vivendi SA’s share-based compensation plans is presented in Note 181
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Charges and income directly recognized in equity
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Details of changes in equity related to ather comprehensive income

Unrealized gansAlosses)

Actuanal gains/llosses) Foreign
Other
refated to employee Available-for- Hedging currency
comprehensive
defined benefit plans sale nstruments Total translation
{a) secunties {b) (] adjusiments ncome
{in millions of euros)
Belance as of December 31, 2013 (85) 164 1] 184 {2011} (1.912)
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 193} 912 {50 862 706 1475
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss na {95} {d) e {86) 72 (14)
Tax eftect 75 3t 12) 29 54
Other 7 132 132 42 181
Balance as of December 31, 2014 {146} 1184 {8} 111 {1,151} {216)
Charges and income directly recognized in equity {16} 461 (69} 392 580 956
tterns to be reclassified to profit or loss na {682} {e) 1) {692 933 1 41
Tax effect 15 {63) 1 {62) 67)
Other - 18) 1 {9) - {9)
Balance as of December 31, 2015 {167} 852 (102) 750 322 905

na not applicable
a Please refer to Note 17
b  Please refer to Note 12

Please refer to Note 19

d Related to the gain realized on the sale of the interest 1n Beats by UMG in August 2014

e Inctuded -€651 millon related to the gain realized on the sale of the 20% interest 1n Numericable-SFR in May 2015 (please refer to

Note 2 8)

f  Attnbutable to the foreign currency translation EUR/BRL related to GVT, sold in May 2015 {please refer to Note 2 9)

Note 9 Goodwiill
(in millions of euros) December 31, 2015 December 31 2014
Goodwill, gross 24,384 22,622
Impairment losses {14,207} {13,283
Goodwill 10,177 9,329
91 Changes in goodwill
e R
2014 commnations 2015
{tn malltons of euros) completed adjustments and other
Canai+ Group 4,573 - 3 - B 4582
Universal Music Group 4 B56 - 3 - 513 f(a} 5172
Vivendi Village 100 - 41 b - 19 160
New Initatives - - 263 {ch - 263
Total 9,329 - 310 - 538 10177
December 31, Impairment losses Business D;BOF:;::ZT;I" c?:r::r?;stlr:rf\ts}lraetlg)r:l December 31,
2013 combmations 2014
{in mirlhons of euros) completed adyustments and other
Canal+ Group 4464 . 110 1w - {1} 4573
Universal Music Group 4,100 - 6 - 558 fab 4,656
Vivend: Vitlage 185 {97} te) - - 6 100
6Vt 1,676 - - {1.676) . -
SFR 6,722 - 77 {6 799) -
Total 17,147 {91} 193 (8,475) 555 9,329
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a  Prmarly attributable to foreign currency translation (EUR/USD) for €525 million in 2015 and €543 million 1n 2014
b Related to the provisional goodwill attributable to Radionomy {please refer to Note 2 6)
¢ Included the provisional goodwill attnbutable to Dailymotion for €262 million {please refer to Note 2 1)

d Notably included goodwill attributable to Mediaserv and Thema, acquered by Canal+ Overseas on February 13, 2014 and October 28,
2014, respectively

e Related to full impairment losses on the goodwll of Digitick and MyBestPro, formerly Wengo (€43 million and €48 million, respectively)
9.2 Goodwill impairment test

in 2015, Vivends tested the value of goodwill allocated to 1ts Cash-Generating Units (CGUs) or groups of CGU applying valuation methads
consistent with previous years Vivendi ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded thewr carrying valug
{including goodwall} The recaverable amount 1s determined as the higher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows {Discounted Cash Fiow method {DCF}} and the fair value {less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data {stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, comparison with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent transactions} For a
description of the methods used for the iImpairment test, please refer to Note 1357

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGlJs tested

Operating Segments Cash Generating Units (CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
Canal+ Group Pay-TV in Mainland France
Canal+ Qverseas {a} Pay-TV and free-to-air TV 1n Frznce, Poland
nc+ (Poland) Aftica and Vietnam {b)
Free-to-air TV
Studiccanal Studiocanal
Universal Music Group Recorded music
Artist services and merchandising Untversal Music Group
Music peblishing
Vivends Village See Tickets See Tickets
Digitick Digitick (c}
MyBestPro MyBestPro (c)
Radignomy Hadionomy {d)
L Qlympia L'Olympia
CanalOlympia Canal0lympia
New Iniiatives Dailymotion Dailymetion {d)
Vivendi Contents Vivends Contents
Group Vivend: Africa Group Vivend! Africa

a Related to pay-TV in France overseas, Africa and Vietnam

b The process of witegrating free-to-air TV operations (D8/D17 channels acquired on September 27, 2012} with pay-TV operations in
mainland France, as well as the development of pay-TV in Poland and Vietnam reflects the further convergence of pay-TV and free-to-air
TV operations 1n countries 1n which Canal+ Group operates As a result, as of December 31, 2015, Vivend: performed a goodwili
impairment test related to pay-TV and free-to-air TV operations in France, Poland, Africa and Vietnam by aggregating the CGU of pay-TV
in Mainland France, Canal+ Overseas, nc+ and free-to-ar TV, which corresponds to the level of monitoring the return on such
Investments

¢ Goodwill attnbutable to Digitick and MyBestPro (formerly Wengo) were fully imparred as of December 31, 2014

d  As of December 31, 2015, no goodwill imparrment test attributable to Daillymotion and Radionomy were undertaken given that the
acquisttion dates of Dailymotion and Radionomy {June 30, 2015 and December 17, 2015, respectively] were close to the closing date

During the fourth quarter of 2015, Vivendi performed a goodwill impairment test on each CGU or groups of CGU, on the basis of valuations of
recoverable amounts determined with the assistance of third-party appraisers, for pay-TV and free-to-air TV in France, Afnca and Vietnam as
well as Universal Music Group and internal valuations for nc+ in Poland, Studiocanal and See Tickets As a result, Vivendi Management
conciuded that, as of December 31, 2015, the recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value
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The value in use of each CGU ar groups of CGU 1s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow projections
consistent with the 2016 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each
operating segment, on the basis of financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions discount rate, perpetual growth rate and
EBITA as defined in Note 12 3, capital expenditures, the competitrve and regulatory environments, technological developments and level of
commercial expenses The recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU was determined based on its vatue in use in accordance with

the marn key assumptions set out below

Valuation Method Discount Rate {a} Perpetual Growth Rate
Operating segments CGU or groups of CGU tested 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Canak Group Pay TV and free-to air TV In France OCF DCF
Poland Afnica and Vietram & comparables model (b) & comparables model (b) {c) fc) fc} {c}
Stuthoganal NCF DCF 925% 975% 0 50% 100%
Univarsal Music Group Universal Music Group OCF & comparables modet  DCF & comparables medel 850% B 90% 1125% 1 00%
Vivend Village See Tickets DCF DCF 11 0% 11 50% 200% 200%

DCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b Except for nc+ in Poland comparables model in 2015 and DCF 1n 2014

¢ Discount rates and perpetual growth rates applied to test this group of UGT were the following

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate
2015 2014 2015 2014
Pay-TV
Mainland France 756% 804% 120% 150%
France overseas B 80% 904% 120% 1 50%
Poland na 975% na 300%
Africa 980% 10 04% 300% 314%
Vigtnam 10 30% 10 88% 300% 4 50%
Free to-air TV - Mainland France 826% 950% 150% 2 00%
na not applicable
Sensitivity of recoverable amounts
Oecember 31 2015
Discount rate Perpetual growih rate Discounted cash flows

Incrzage tn the discount rate
Apphed i order for the recoverabile amount
rate 1o ba equal to the earrying ameunt

Detrease In the perpetual growth rate
Apphied in order for the recoverable amount
rate to be equal to the carrying amount

Oecrease in the discounted cash Hlows
in arder for the recoverable amount
to be equal to the carrying amount

(%) (in aumber of points) {In %) {in rumber of points} (1 %)
Caaal+ Group

Pay TV and Free to-air TV in France
Poland Afnice and Vietnam (a} +116pt {a) 211 pts 17%
Studiocanal 925% +197 pt 050% 281 pts 21%
Universal Music Group 850% +126pt 115% 155pt 15%

December 31 2014
Biscount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash tlows
Increase 1n the discount rale Decrease in the perpetual growth rate Decrease in the discounted cash flows
Applied 1n order for the recoverable amount Apphed in order for the recoverable amount in order for the recoverable amount
rate 1o be equal to the camying amount rate to be equal to the carmying ameunt to ba equal to the camying amgunt
{1n %} {in number of points) (in %) {in number of points) {in %)
Canal+ Group

Pay TV and Free tg-air TV in France
Afnita and Vietnam {a) +028pt (@ 039pt 4%
nc+ 875% 4631 pts 300% 1025 pts 48%
Studiocanal 275% +1 66 pt 100% 257 pis 18%
Univarsal Music Group 590% <062 pt 100% 0 p 8%

a Forapresentation of the applied rates, please refer to the table in reference ¢ above
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December 31, 2015

Accumulated

Content assets,
amortization and Content assets
{in milkons of guros) gross impaiment 1osses
Fim and tefevision costs 6145 {5.483) 662
Sports nghts 45 - 415
Muswe catalogs and publishing nights 8756 {7.076) 1,680
Advances to artists and repertoime owners 611 - 611
Merchandising contracts and artists services 27 (23} 4
Other 6 4 i
Content assets 15,960 (12,586) 3314
Deduction of current content assets {1,102} 14 {1,088
Non-current content assets 14,858 (12572) 2,286
December 31, 2014
Content assets Accumlated
amortization and Content assets
{in mulhions of euros} 910ss impairment losses
Film and televiston costs 6,003 {5 244) 758
Sports nights amn - 4N
Music catalogs and publishing rights 7837 {6,031) 1,866
Advances to art:sts and repertoire owners 842 642
Merchandising contracts and artists serices 27 {20} 7
Content assets 14,980 {11,295) 3695
Deduction of current content assets (1155) 20 (1,135}
Non-current content assets 13,825 {11,275) 2,550
Changes in content assets
Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros) 2015 2014
Opening balance 3,685 3m
Amartization of content assets excluding those acquired thrgugh business combinations (21} {14}
Amortization of content assets acguired through business combinations (398} {334}
Impairment losses on content assets acquired through business combinations {2) -
Increase 2354 233
Decrease {2 465) {2 352)
Business combimations 4 27
Changes in forergn currency translation adjustments and other 217 247
Closing balance 3314 3,685
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Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Position content habilities

Content liabilities are mainly part of “Trade accounts payable and other” or part of "Other non-current liabiities” whether they are current or

non-cuirent, as applicable

Minimum future paymenis as of December 31, 2015

Total mmimum future

Due in payments as of
{in milkions of euros) Total 2016 2017 2020 After 2020 December 31 2014
Fitm and television nights (a} 196 1% - - 13
Sports nghts 455 455 - - 400
Musie rayalties to artists and repertowe owners 1848 1822 26 170
Creative talent, employment agreements and others L] 3 43 4 139
Content hahihittes 2,589 2,516 69 ) 2433

Off balance sheet commitments given/{received)

Minimum future payments as of December 31 2015

Total mimimum future

Oue In payments as of

{in millians of euros) Total 2016 2017-2020 After 2020 December 31, 2014
Film and telewision rights (a) 3,080 1,292 1,727 61 2443
Sports rights 2,965 (b 783 2182 3,087
Creative talent, employment agreements and others (c} 790 354 413 23 807
Given commitments 6,835 2,429 4322 84 6,337
Film and telewision rghts (a) (174 (74) {14 (28) (199)
Sports nghts {39) {10} {29} - {3
Creative talent employment agreements and others (e} not avallable

Received commitments (213) {84} {103} {26} {202)
Total net 6,622 2,345 4.9 58 6,135

Mainly included contracts valid over several years for the broadcast of cinema films and TV productions (mainly exclusivity contracts
with major US studios), for the pre-purchases relating to the French cinema industry, for Studiocanal films production and co-production
commitments (given and received), and for broadcasting nghts of Canalsat and nc+ multichannel digital TV packages They are recorded
as content assets when the broadcast is avarlable for initial release or after the initial significant payment As of December 31, 2015,
provisions recorded relating to these commitments amounted to €45 million {compared to €73 million as of December 31, 2014)

In addition, these amounts do not inctude commitments in relation to contracts of channel diffusion nghts, ISP (Intemet Service
Provider} royalties and non-exclusive distribution of channels, under which Canal+ Group did not grant or receive mimmum guarantees
The vanable amount of these commitments cannot be rehiably determined and is not reported in either the Statement of Financial
Position or in the commitments and 1s instead recorded as an expense for the period 1n which st was incurred Based on the estimation
of the future subscriber base at Canal+ Group, the commitments would have increased by a net amount of €203 million as of
December 31, 2015, compared to €342 mithon as of December 31, 2014

Moreover, on May 7, 2015, Société d'Edition de Canal Plus {SECP) renewed its agreement with all the cinema professional
organizations (ARP, BLIC, BLOC, UPF} This five-year agreement {2015/2019) confirmed the historical and strong partnership between
Canal+ and the French cinema Pursuant to this agreement, SECP 1s required to invest every year 12 5% of its annual revenues in the
financing of European cinematographic works W:th respect to audiovisual, in accordance with the agreements entered into with
producers’ and authors’ organizations in France, Canal+ Group 1s required to mvest 3 6% of its total net annual revenue in the financing
of hentage works every year Only films for which an agreement has been given In principle to producers are accounted for in the off-
balance sheet commitments, as it 1s not possible to reliably determine a future and total estimate of commitments under agreements
with cinema grofessional orgamizations and with producers’ and authors' organizations

Netably included broadcasting nights held by Canal+ Group for the following sport events

e the French professional Soccer League 1, for the four seasons 201672017 to 2019/2020, awarded on Apnl 4, 2014 for the two
premium lots (€2,160 millan),

¢ the National French Rugby Championship’s “TOP 14" matches, for the seasons 2016/2017 to 2018/2019 which include all seven
games on each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Augby show, awarded on January 19, 2015, and

¢ the Soccer Champions League, for the seasons 2016/2017 and 2017/2018, awarded on April 11, 2014 for one lot

These commitments will be accounted for in the Statement of Financial Position etther upon the start of every season or upon an inttral
significant payment
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¢ Pnmarly relates to UMG which routinely commits to pay agreed amounts to artists and other parties upon delivery of content or other
products {“Creative talent and employment agreements”™) Until the artist or the other party has delivered his or her content or the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its obligation as an off-balance sheet given commitment While the artist or the other party is
oblhgated to deliver a content or other product to UMG {these amangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be rehiably

determined and, thus, 1s not reported in received commitments

Note 11  Investments in equity affiliates

Voting Interest

Value of equity afiiliates

{m mithons of euras) December 31,2015  December 31 2014

December 31,2015  December 3t, 2014

Telecom ltalia {(a) 21 4% - 3319 -
VEVO 49% 48% 76 Il
N-Vision {b) na 49% - 213
Other na na AR 22

3,435 306

na not applicable

a

Telecom Itahia 1s accounted for under the equity method as from December 15, 2015 (please refer to Note 2 2)

b On.July 1, 2015, Canal+ Group sold its nterest in N-Vision BV {please refer to note 2 9)

Note 12  Financial assets
December 31 2015 December 31, 2014
{in millions of euros) Total Current Nor-current Total Current Non-cument
Fimancial assets atfair value
Term deposiis, interest-beanng current accounts and MTN {a) 266 266 - - -
Level 1
Bond funds (a) 315 315 - . . -
Listed equity secunties 2520 - 2,520 4,676 - 4676
(Other financial assets {b) 979 5 974 980 5 975
Level 2
Unlisted equity securities KX} - 33 162 - 162
Denvatve financial instruments (c) 115 a7 68 139 40 99
Level 3
Other financial assets n 1 70 51 - 51
Financal assets at amortized cost (d) 546 477 169 185 4 181
Finaneial assets 5243 1,1 4,132 6,133 49 6,144

Related to cash management financial assets, included in the cash position please refer to Note 14

included a cash deposit of €974 million as part of the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment (please refer to Note 19 3)

¢ These denvative financial instruments primanly comprised interest rate and foreign currency hedging instruments, as described n

Note 19

As of December 31, 2015, these financtal assets mainly included the following cash deposits
$480 million {£439 million as of December 31, 2015} related to the hedge of Activision Blizzard shares This deposit was recovered

following the unwinding of the hedge in January 2016 {please refer below) and

to Note 23}
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Quoted equity portfolio
December 31 2015
Number of Cumutated (wnership Camrying Change in Cumuizte of Sensitvity at
peld shares historical ierest Stock market value value inthe unrealized capital +/-10 pts (o)
Note value (a) pernod (b gain/loss {b)
{in thousands) {€/share) {in mulligns of eurgs)
Activision Blizzard 41500 416 57% KLY 1,470 @ 781 1,054 () i)
Telefenica 23 47 353 554 095% 1024 435 {70} {70) +49/-49
Ubisoft 24 15659 352 1398% 2667 418 65 65 +42/-42
Gameloft 24 24 4889 122 2865% 606 148 26 26 +15/-15
Total 2,520 803 1,076 +106/-106
December 31, 2014
Number of Cumulated (wnership Camryng Change in Cumulate of Sensitivity at
held shares historical nterest Stock market ralte value on unrealized capital +/-10 pts )
Nota value (a) penod [h} gain/loss {b)
{in thousands} {€/share} {in oullions of euros)
Activision Blizzard 41500 416 57% 1660 689 7 7 (el
Numencable-SFR 28 97 388 3244 200% 09 3987 743 743 {d}
Totel 4,616 1,016 1,016

a These amounts include acquisition fees and taxes

b Asof December 31, 2015 and 2014, in accordance with I1AS 39, these amounts, before taxes, were accounted for as charges and ingome
directly recognized (n equity, except for the remeasurement of the underlying instrument offsetting the intrinsic value of the hedge of
Actvision Blizzard shares (€467 million as of December 31, 2015, please refer to reference ¢ below)

¢ These shares were subject to a lock-up period, which expired on January 7, 2015

On June 11, 2015, Vivend: entered inte an agreement to hedge 100% of the value of these shares denominated in USD, through an
18-month zero premium collar {consisting of a put option acquired by Vivend) and a call option sold by Vivend}, enabling Vivend: to
secure an unrealized capital gain between $427 million and $532 million during this penod In the Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2015, this collar was accounted for as a fair value hedge, in accordance with IAS 33 As of December 31,
2015, pursuant to the credit support agreement related to the collar hedge, Viverd: established a cash deposit in faver of the
counterparty, for $480 million, 1e . €439 million, corresponding to the fair market value of the collar hedge as of this date, net of a
$50 million deductible Given the appreciation of Activision Bhizzard stock market price, the unfavorable change » time value of the
colfar hedge amounted to €16 mellien, classified as “other financial charges” in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings On January 13,
2016, Vivend: entirely unwound this instrument and sold the shares that 1t held The cash proceeds from these transactions amounted to
$1.063 mithon {1 e , €976 million) The unwinding of these transactions also enabled Vivendi to recover the cash deposit of £439 muliton

d  Not applicable, as the Numericable-SFR shares were soid in May 2015

Equity market value nisks

In 2015, as part of a sustainable investing strategy, Vivend: created an equity portfolio comprising listed and non-listed French and European
companies In the tetecommunication and media sectors, which are leaders in the production and distribution of contents As of December 31,
2015, this portfolio was mainly compnsed of minonty interests in Telecom ltalia, Telefonica, Ubisoft, Gameloft and Activision Blizzard, and 1t
represented an aggregate market value of approximately €6 billion {before taxes) Except for the remaining interest in Activision Blizzard sold
on January 13, 2016 (please refer above), Vivend: ts exposed to the nisk of fluctuation in the value of these interests as of December 31,
2015, the net unrealized gan with respect to the interests in Telecom ltaha {please refer to Note 11}, Tetefonica, Ubisoft and Gameloft
amounted to €95 million (before taxes) A umiform decrease of 10% n the value of all of these shares would have a cumulative negative
impact of €370 milion on Vivend!'s financial position, a uniform decrease of 20% i the value of all of these shares would have a cumulative
nepative impact of £815 million on Vivend!'s financial position
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Note 13  Networking capital

Trade accounts receivable and other

{in milhons of euros) December 31 2015 December 31 2014
Trade accounts recewvable 1,308 1272
Trade accounts recevable write-offs {153) {228)
Trade accounts receivable, net 1,155 1,048
Qther 984 939
Trade accounts receivable and other 2,139 1,983

Vivendi does not consider there to be a significant nsk of non-recovery of trade accounts recewables for 1ts business segments the large
indvidual customer base, the broad vanety of customers and markets, as well as the geographic diversity of 1ts business segments matnly
Canal+ Group and Universal Music Group), enable to menimize the nisk of credit concentration related to trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts payable and other

{in millions of euros) Note December 31,2015  December 31 2014
Trade accounts payable 2224 2215
Music royalttes o arists and repertoire owners 102 1822 1699
Other 2691 ia 1,392
Trade accounts payakle and other 6,737 5,306

a  Notably included the second intenm dividend, pard on February 3, 2016, for €1,318 mithion {please refer to Nate 15)

Note 14  Cash position

Vivends's cash positien compnses cash and cash equivalents, as well as cash management financial assets classified as current financial
assets As defined by Vivend), cash management financial assets relate to nvestments which do not meet the cntena for classification as
cash equivalents set out in IAS 7, and, with respect to money market funds, the critena set forth in AMF position No 2011-13

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Carrying Fair value Level Carmying Fair valug Level
(in millions of euros) value value
Term depaesits, interest-beanng current accounts and MTN 266 na na - -
Bond funds 315 315 1 - -
Cash management financial assets 581 -
Cash 256 na na 240 na na
Term deposits, intesest-beanng current accounts and MTN 2419 na na 1851 na na
Maoney market funds 5,550 5,850 1 4754 4754 1
Cash and cash equivalents 8225 6,845
Cagsh position 8806 6,845

na not applicable

In 2015, the average interest rate on Vivend!'s imvestments was 0 35%

investment risk and counterparty risk

As of December 31, 2015, the group’s cash position amounted to €8,806 mullion, of which €8,508 million was held by Vivendi SA Vivend: SA
centralizes dally cash surpluses (cash pooling) of all controlled entities {a} which are not subject to local regulations restricting the transfer of
financtal assets, or (b} which are not subject to other contractual agreements

Vivendi's investment policy mamly aims to minimize its exposure to counterparty nisk Consequently, Vivendi allocates a portion of the
amounts available within {1) mutuat funds with a fow nsk class {1 or 2) as defined by the European Securities and Markets Authanity's (ESMA)
synthetic nsk and reward incicator {SRRI} which compnises seven nsk classes, and {1} highly rated commercial banks (at least A-} Moreaver,
Vivend allacates investments among selected banks and limits the amount of each such investment
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Ligquidity risk

As of February 10, 2016, Vivend: considers that its Net Cash Position, the cash flows generated by its operating activities, as well as the
amounts available through its current bank credit facility will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and tapital expenditures, service
its debt (including redemption of bonds). pay its income taxes, dividends and share repurchases, if any, as well as to fund its investment
projects, if any, for the next 12 months

Note 15  Equity

Share capital of Vivendi SA

{in thousands) December 31 2015 December 31 2014
Common shares outstanding {nominal value €5 5 per share} 1,368.323 1,351,601
Treasury shares {25 985) (50}
Voting nghts 1,342,338 1,351,551

During the fourth quarter of 2015, Vivend's Management Board implemented the share repurchase program, authorized by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting an Aprid 17, 2015 Vivend: purchased 25,978 thousand of its own shares at an average price of €19 56 per share, for
an aggregate amount of €508 million As of December 31, 2015, the 26 mithon shares owned by Vivend: were allocated as follows

e 6,719 shares to cover performance share plans, and

s 75978,246 shares acquired with the intent to cancel them

Between the closing date and February 10, 2016 (the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015), Vivendi purchased 38,644 thousand treasury shares at an average price of €187 per share,
representing an aggregate payment of €725 millon, of which €193 million was accounted for in the Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2015 {please refer to Note 19) As of February 10, 2016, Vivendi held 64 6 million treasury shares, representing an aggregate
payment of €1,233 million

In additron, as of December 31, 2015, approximately 31 3 milion stock options and 25 mithon performance shares were outstanding,
representing a potential maximum nominal share capital increase of €186 million {1 e, 2 48%)

Shareholders’ dividend distribution policy

On Apnl 17, 2015, Vivendi's Annual General Shareholders” Meeting notably approved the payment of an ordinary dividend of €1 per share
with respect to fiscal year 2014, comprising a distnbution of €0 20 based on the group’s business performance and an €0 80 return te
shareholders as a result of asset disposals This dividend was paid in cash on Apnl 23, 2015, following the coupon detachment on
Apnit 21, 2015, for an aggregate amount of €1,363 million

The closing of the sales of GVT on May 28, 2015 and of the 20% mterest in Numencable-SFR on May 6, 2015 enabled Vivendi's
Management Board to approve the drstribution of two interim ordinary dividends of €1 each with respect to fiscal year 2015

o the first mtenm dividend of €1 per share, pad out of retaned earmings available on May 31, 2015, was paid on June 29, 2015
{followng the coupon detachment on June 25, 2015), for an aggregate amount of €1,364 million, and

« the second interim dividend, taken from the distributable income result:ng from the positive earnings generated by the divestitures of
GVT and SFR, was paid on February 3, 2016 {following the coupon detachment on February 1. 2016), for an aggregate amount of
€1,318 million

On February 10, 2016, the date of Vivendr's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Stataments as of
December 31, 2015 and the appropriation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended, the Management Board decided to propose to
shareholders an ordinary dividend of €3 per share, representing a total distribution of €4 0 hillion, comprising a €0 20 distnbution refated to
the group’s business performance and a €2 B0 return to shareholders Given the intenm diwndends already distributed, the balance wilf be
paid on Aprl 28, 2016 {following the coupon detachment on Apnl 26, 2016) This proposal was presented to, and approved by, Vivend!'s
Supenvisory Board at its meeting held on February 18, 2016, and will be submitted to approval by the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
to be held on April 21, 2018
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Note 16  Provisions

{irn millions of euros} Note  December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
Employee benefits (a} 674 654
Restructuring costs {b} 74 72
Litigations {c) 23 1222 1,208
Losses on onerous contracts qN 124
Contngent habilites due to disposal {d) 18 17
QOther {e) 963 1105
Provisions 3.042 31718
Beduction of current provisions (363} (290}
Non-current provisions 2679 2488

Friday, February 19, 2016

a

Included deferred employee compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans {€646 mulhion as of
December 31, 2015 and €608 million as of December 31, 2014, please refer to Note 17), but excluded employee termmnation reserves
recorded under restructuring costs

As of December 31, 2015, mainly included prowvisions for restructuring at Canal+ Group (€24 million) and at UMG (€38 million) As of
December 31, 2014, mainty related to provisions for restructuning at UMG (€38 million)

Notably included the reserve accrual in relation to the Liberty Media Corporation litigatien and secunties class action i the United
States for €945 mullion and €100 million, respectively {please refer to Note 23}

Certain commitments given 1n refation to divestitures are the subject of provisions These provisions are not sigificant and the amount
15 not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend

Notably included the provisions with respect to the 2011 Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and to the 2012 French Tax Group
System {E409 million and €228 mulion, respectively, as of December 31, 2015, please refer to Note 6 1), as well as lihigation provisions

for which the amount and nature are not detalled because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend

Changes in provisions

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euras) 2015 2014

Opening balance 3178 3523
Addition 309 538
Utilization 1426) {387)
Reversal {(127) {163)
Business combimations 6 B
Divestitures, changes in foreign currency transkation adjustments and other 102 (341)
Closing balance 3,042 3178
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Note 17  Employee benefits

17.1  Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The table below provides information about the cost of employee benefit plans excluding rts financial component The total cost of defined
benefit plans 1s set forth in Note 17 2 2 below

Year ended December 31
{in millions of euros} Note 2015 M4
Employee defined contribution plans 22 20
Employee defined benefit plans 1722 18 (10}
Employee benefit plans 40 10

17.2  Employee defined benefit plans
1721  Assumptions used th the evaluation and sensitivity analysis

Discount rate, expected veturn on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the vafuation of defined benefit plans were made 1n compliance with the accounting policies presented n
Note 138 and have been applied consistently for several years Demographic assumptions {including notably the rate of compensation
increase) are company specific Financial assumptions {notably the discount rate} are determined by independent actuanes and other
independent advisors and reviewed by Vivendi’'s Finance department The discount rate 1s therefore determined for each country by reference
10 yields on notes rssued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and matunties identical to that of the valued plans,
generally based on relevant rate indices The discount rates selected are therefore used, at year-end, to determine a best estimate by
Vivendi's Finance department of expacted trends in future payments from the first benefit payments

In accordance with amended IAS 19, the expected return on plan assets 1s estimated using the discount rate used to value the obligations of
the previous year

In weighted average

Pensign benefits Post-retirement henefits

2015 2014 2015 2014
Discount rate (a) 28% 15% 39% 38%
Rate of compensation increase 18% 20% 31% 30%
Duration of the benefit obligatian (in years) 141 147 101 108

a A 50 basis point increase {or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) to the 2015 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€1 millton in pre-tax expense {of an increase of €1 milion, respect:vely) and would have led to a decrease in the obligations of pension
and post-retirement benefits of €70 million {or an increase of €75 million, respectively)

Assumptions used n sccounting for pension benefits, by country

United States Unrted Kingdam Germany France
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Discount rate 400% 375% 375% 375% 175% 2 00% 175% 200%
Hate of compensation increase {wetghted average) na na 37%% 500% 175% 200% 350% 3143%

na not apphcable

Assumptions used in accounting for post-retirement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2015 2014 25 2014
Discount rate 4 00% 375%% 350% 375%
Rate of compensation increase na na na na

na not applrcable
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Allocation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2015 (a)

December 31, 2014 (3}

Equity securities 3% 3%
Debt securities 35% 45%
Dwversified funds 47% 36%
Insurance contracts 3% 4%
Rea! estate 1% 1%
Cash and other 1% 1%
Total 100% 100%

a  Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in organized financial markets

Friday, February 19, 2016

Pension plan assets which were not transferred have a hmited exposure to stock market fluctuations These assets do not include occupied
buildings or assets used by the group nor shares or debt instruments of Vivend

Cost evolution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuring post-retirement benefits, Vivend assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 7 3% for the under 65 years of age and 65 years of age and older categores in 2015, to 4 5% n 2023 for
these categories In 2015, a one-percentage-point increase in the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement benefit
obligations by €8 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost evolution

rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €7 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 miliion

1722 Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid
Pension benefits Post-retrement benefits Total

{in mitlions of euros) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current service cost 14 14 14 14
Past service cost (1} {25) & {25)
(Gains}/losses on settlements -

Other 4 1 4 1
Impact an selling, sdmimistrative and general expenses 17 (10} 18 19)
Interest cost 23 25 29 k1l
Expected return an plan assets {12} 112} 12 12}
Impact on gther financial charges and income 11 13 17 19
Net benefit cost recognized in profit and loss 28 3 35 g

a Related to the change in part of the group’s management team since June 2012

In 2015, benefits paid amounted to {1} €40 million with respect to pensions (€45 million in 2014), of which €15 million pavd by pension funds

(€18 mullion n 2014}, and {1} €12 million paid with respect to post-retirement benefits (€9 mdlion in 2014)
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Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benefits

Changes in value of benefit obhigations, fair vatue of plan assets, and funded status

{in muthons of euros)

Opening

Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses

balance
Current service cost
Past service cost

{Gains)/losses on settlements

Other

Interest cost

Expected retum on plan assets

impact on other financial charges and income
Net benefit cost recogmzed n profit and loss
Expenence gains/losses) (a)
Actuanal gainsAlosses) related to changes in demographic assumphions
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to changes m financial assumptions
Adjustment related to asset eeiling
Actuanal gans/{losses) recognized in other comprehensive tncome
Contnibutions by plan participants

Contnbutiens by employers

Benefits pard by the fund

Benefis paid by the employer

Busness combinations
Divestitures of businesses

Transfers

Other {of which foreigh cuirency translation adjustments)

Clostng balance

of which wholly or partly funded benefits

whally unfunded benefits (b)

of which assets related to employee benefit plans
provisions for employee benefit plans ft)

Note

Employee defined benefit plans

Year ended December 31 2015

Benefit obltgation  Fair value of plan Net {provision)/asset
assets recorded 1n the
statement of financial
position
(A} (B} BHA
1.005 404 {601}
14 {14}
3 n (4
(18)
29 {29)
12 12
{17)
{35]
29 19 {10)
{8 8
15 {15)
{17)
1 1 R
48 a8
{15} 15 .
37 (3N .
49 27 {22}
1.085 458 {627)
645
440
19
{646}
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Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31 2014
Benefitobligation  Fawvalue of plan Net {prowisiony/asset

assets recorded (n the
statement of financial
positign
{im mulligns of euros} Note (a) (B) (BHA)
Opening balance 966 356 {610}
Current service cost 20 (200
Past service cost [26) 26
(Gains)/losses on settlements ] n
GOther -
Inpact on selling, administrative and general expenses 5
Interest cost 3 {33
Expected return on plan assets 12 12
Impact on other financial charges and income {23
Net benehit cost recognized tn profit and loss {16)
Expenence gains/Tlosses) (a) 24 24
Actuarial gains/llosses) related to changes in demographic assumptions 7 7
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to changes in financial assumptions 122 (122)
Adjustment related to asset cerling - - -
Actuanal gains/{losses) recognized in other comprehensive income (1)
Contributions by plan participants 1 1
Contributions by employers 43 43
Benefits paid by the fund 18} {18) -
Benefits paid by the employer (36} [36) -
Business combinations 1 - {n
Divestitures of businesses (d} (102} 102
Transfers - -
Other (of which foreign cuency transfatson adjustments) 51 23 {28
Closing balance 1,005 404 {601
of which wholly or partly funded benefits 558
wholly unfunded benefits (b} 4“7
of which assets related o employee benefit plans 7
provisions for emplovee benefit plans (c) 16 {608}

a Included the impact on the benefit obligation resulting from the difference between actuanal assumptions at the previous year-end and
effective benefits dunng the year, and the difference between the expected return on plan assets at the previous year-end and the
actual return on plan assets during the year

b In accordance with local laws and practices, certain plans are not covered by plan assets As of December 31, 2015 and
December 31, Z{114, such plans principally compnsed supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans in Germany and
post-retirement benefit plans in the United States

¢ Included a current lrabihity of €62 midlion as of December 31, 2015 (compared to €48 million as of December 31, 2014}
d  Related to the impact of the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014
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Benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

Pension benefiis {a) Post setirement benefits (b) Total

December 31, December 31, December 31,
{rn mllions of euros} 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Benefrt ohligation
US companies 133 175 130 136 263 261
UK companies 330 296 1 1 I 297
German companies 208 209 208 209
French companies 202 157 - 202 157
Other 56 65 15 16 81 81

e 852 146 153 1,085 1,005

Fair value of plan assets
US companies 59 57 - - 59 57
UK companies 298 252 - 298 2
German companies 3 3 - 3 3
French compames 55 54 55 54
Other 43 38 - - 43 38

458 [} - - 158 e
Underfunded obligation
US companias 74 (68} {130) (136) (204) (204)
UK companies (32) (44} n {1 (33) {45}
German companies {205) (206} - - {205} {206)
French compantes (147) {103} - - {147} (+03)
Other {23) {27} (15) {1B) 138 (43)

{481) {248} (146) {153) {627) {601)

a No employee defined benefit plan individually exceeded 10% of the aggregate value of the obligations and of the underfunded
obligation of these plans

b Prmanly related to medical coverage (hospitalization, surgery, doctor visits and drug prescriptions), post-retirement and hfe insurance
benefits for certamn employees and retirees in the United States In accordance with the current regulation in relation to the funding
policy of this type of plan, the pfan s not funded The main nisks for the group related to changes in discount rates as well as the
Increase in the cost of benefits {please refer to the sensitivity analysis described in Note 17 2 1)

1724 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2016, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments by Vivend) to retirees are estimated to be €53 million 1n respect of pensions, of
which €34 million relates to penstan funds and €3 million relates to post-retirement benefits

Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficiaries by the relevant pension funds or by Vivendi (in nominal value for the following
10 years) are as follows

Post-retirement
Pension benefits

{1n mullions of euros} benefits

2016 63 1
2017 27 10
M8 29 10
2019 32 10
2020 36 10
2021-2025 185 48
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Share-based compensation plans

181  Plans granted by Vivend:

1811 Equity-settled instruments

Transactions on outstanding instruments, which have occurred since January 1, 2014 were as follows

Stock options Performance shares

Number of outstanding Weighted average strike Number of outstanding
price of outstanding stock
stock options performance shares
aptions
{in thousands) {tn euros) {in thousands)
Balance as of December 31, 2013 52,835 197 5344
Sranted - na 380
Exercised {11,264) (a) 178 {600}
Forferted {717) 175 na
Cancelled (b} {571) 137 (440)
Adjusted {c) 2439 191 183
Balance as of December 31, 2013 42,122 193 3867
Granted - na 1,566
Exercised (10,882) i 184 {1,968}
Forferted {481) 190 na
Cancelled {28) 118 {920) (b
Balance as of December 31, 2015 31,331 [« 1917 2,545 (o)
Exercisable as of December 31, 2015 31,331 197 -
Acquired as of December 31, 2015 31,331 197 650

na not applicable

a As of the stock option exercise dates, the weighted average price for Vivend: shares was €22 14 (compared to €19 68 for stock options

d

e

exercised in 2014}

At 1ts meeting held on February 27, 2015, after review by the Governance, Nominating and Human Resources Commuttee, the Supervisory
Board approved the level of satisfaction of objectives set for the cumulatwe fiscal years 2013 and 2014 for performance share plans
granted in 2013 1t confirmed that not all the critenia had been met for fiscal year 2014 The final grant of the 2013 performance share
plans represents, depending on the subsidiaries of the group, between 62% and 80% of the initial grant Consequently, 828,127 rights to
performance shares granted in 2013 were cancelled In 2014, the Supervisory Board confirmed a final grant at 88% of the 2012 plans
Consequently, among the instruments cancelled in 2014 were 335,784 stock options and 239,207 performance shares granted in 2012

In accordance with legal requirements, the number and strike price of stock options, as well as the number of performance shares were
adjusted to take inte account the impact for the beneficianes of the distnbution on June 30, 2014 of an ordinary distribution of €1 per
share from additional paid-in capital This adjustment had no impact on share-based compensation expenses related to the relevant
stock option and performance share plans

The total intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was €57 multion

The weighted-average remaimng period before delivering performance shares was 2 2 years

Please refer to Note 15 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivend! SA of the outstanding stock options and performance shares
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Qutstanding stock options as of December 31, 2015

Range of stike prices Number Weighted average strike Weighted average

pnce remamning contractual life
{in thousands} {in euros) {in years)

Under €15 2216 19 63
€15-€17 B,483 160 38
£17-€19 2376 172 53
€19-€21 5,662 202 23
€21-€23 607 229 03
€23-€25 6.577 247 13
€25 and more - - -
31331 197 26

Performance share plans

On February 27, 2015, Vivend: granted 1,449 thousand performance shares to its officers and employees In 2014, due to changes in the
scope which had been implemented, Vivend: did nat grant an annual plan to its employees and only granted 380,000 performance shares to a
member of the Management Board and certain executive officers of its subsidianes

On February 27, 2015, the share price was €21 74 and the expected dwidend yield was 4 60% These shares will vest at the end of a three-
vear period and the compensation cost is therefore recognized on a straight-line basis over this vesting penod They will then remain
unavariable during an additional two-year peniod After taking into account a discount for non-transferability of 3 0% of the share price as of
February 27, 2015, the fair value of each granted performance share amounted to €16 98, corresponding to an aggregate fair value of
€25 mithion The accounting methods applied to value and recognize these granted plans are described in Note 13 10

The objectives relating to the performance conditions are assessed over a three-year period (n Iine with what was proposed to, and adopted
by, the General Shareholders” Meeting held on June 24, 2014

The defimitive grant is effective upon the satisfaction of the following performance conditions

« nternal indicators (with a we:ghting of 80%), measured as of December 31, 2017 on a cumulative basis including the 2015, 2016
and 2017 fiscal years
- the EBITA margin rate {40%), for each subsidiary, and the group’s EBITA margin for the corporate headguarters,
- the group’s EBITA growth rate (10%),
- the group’s earnings per share (30%), and

« external indicators {with a weighting of 206%) tied to changes in Vivend:'s share price between January 1, 2015 and December 31,
2017 compared to the STOXX® Eurppe 600 Media index {15%) and to the CAC 40 (5%)

As the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivend SA, employee
shareholders are entitled to the dividends and voting nghts attached to these shares from the end of the three-year vesting pertod The
recagnized compensation cost corresponds to the value of the equity instruments received by the beneficiary, and 1s equal to the difference
between the far value of the shares to be received and the discounted value of dvidends that were not received aver the vesting penod

In 2015, the charge recagnized with respect to equity settled instruments amounted 1¢ €11 million, compared to €3 million in 2014
1812 Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

On July 16, 2015, Vivend: undertook a capital increase reserved for employees (stock purchase and leveraged plans) which allowed the
majonty of its employees and retirees to subscribe for Vivend: shares

These shares, which are subject to certamn sale or transfer restictions, may be subscribed by employees for a maximum discount of 15% on
the average opening market price for Vivend shares during the 20 trading days preceding the date of approval of the share capitat increase
by the Management Board and the subscription price of new shares to be 1ssued The diiference between the subscription price of the
shares and the share price on that date represents the benefit granted to the beneficianes Furthermore, Vivend) applied a discount for non-
transferability in respect of the restnictions on the sale or transfer of the shares dunng a five-year period, which 1s deducted from the benefit
granted to the employees The value of the subscribed shares 1s estimated and fixed at the date of the subscription price for new shares to
Issue
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The applied valuation assumptions were as follows

2015
Grant date June 18
Data at grant date
Share price {in euros) 2349
Expected dwidend yield 4 26%
Risk-free interest rate 036%
5-vear interest rate in fine 4 69%
Repo rate 0 36%
Discount for non-transferabulity per share 16 69%

Under the employee stock purchase plan, 636 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2015 at €18 39 per share

Under the leveraged plan, 3,218 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2015 at €19 21 per share The leveraged plan entitles wirtually all
employees and retvees of Vivendi and its French and foreign subsidianes to subscribe for Vivend: shares through a reserved share capital
increase, white obtaining a discounted subscniption price, and to ultimately receive the capital gain {calculated pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the plan) corresponding to 10 shares for one subscribed share A financial institution mandated by Vivendh hedges this
transaction

In 2015, the charge recognized with respect to employee stock purchase and leveraged plans amounted to €5 milhion

Stock purchase and leveraged plans resulted in a capital increase (including Jssue premium) having an aggregate value of €75 miilion on
July 16, 2015

In 2014, no capital increase, reserved for employees of participating group companies that have joined an employee stock purchase and
leveraged plans, was put into place by Vivend

1813 Cash-settied nstruments

Stock appreciation nght (SAR) plans

Under a SAR plan, the beneficianes will receive a cash payment upon exercese of their rights based on the Vivend: share price equal to the
difference between the Vivend share price upon exercise of the SAR and therr strike price as set at the grant date SAR expire at the end of
a ten-year penod, 1 e, 2016 and 2017

As of December 31, 2015, the outstanding SAR was 2,878 thousand {compared to 4,427 thousand as of December 31, 2014) in 2015,
1,288 thousand SAR were exercised and 261 thousand have expired As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the amount accrued for these
instruments was non-significant

182 UMG long-term incentive plan

Effective from January 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG were
awarded phantom equity units and phantom stock appreciation nghts whose value was intended to reflect the value of UMG These umits
were simply account units and did not represent an actual ownership mterest in eather UMG or Vivendi The equity units were notional grants
of equity that were payable in cash upon settlement in 2015 at the latest, or in certain cases, on an earlier date The stock appreciation
nghts were essentially options on these notional shares that provided additional compensation tied to any increase 1n value of UMG aver the
term

During the third quarter of 2014, one executive, who benefited from the plan, ended his employment contract The phantom equity units and
phantom stock appreciation rights that were awarded te him were therefore cancelled and the amount previously accrued for these nights
was reversed (E19 million) In July 2015, fellowing the renewal of the employment contract of one executive who benefited from the plan,
the remaining nghts under the plan vested, and an amount of €16 million was paid as final settlement to the executive

In 2015, the charge recognized with respect to this plan amounted to €3 million, compared to an income of €17 milhon n 2014 As of
December 31, 2015, no further amounts were accrued for (€12 million as of December 31, 2014}
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18.3  Dailymotion’s long-term incentive plan

in 2015, Vivends implemented a long-term incentive plan for a five-year period with certain key executives of Vivend, including
Mr Dominique Delport, @ member of Vivendi's Supervisory Board This plan ts Inked to the growth of Dailymotion’s enterprise value
compared to its acquisition value, as it will stand as of June 30, 2020, based upon a third party expertise In case of an increase In
Dailymotien’s value, the amount of the compensation with respect to the wcentive plan is capped at a percentage, depending on the
beneficiary, of this increase Within the six months following June 30, 2020, the ptan will be settled by a payment in cash, if any

In accordance with IFRS 2, a compensation expense has to be estimated and accounted for at each reporting date until the payment date As
of December 31, 2015, given that the acquisition date {June 30, 2015) was close to the closing date, no increase in Dalymotion's value was
recorded and, as a result, no charges were accounted for with respect to Dallymotion’s long-term incentive plan

Note 19  Borrowings and other financial liahilities

Note December 31 2015 December 31 2014

{in mullions of euros} Total Long-term  Short-term Total Long-term  Short-term
Bonds 192 1950 1450 500 1950 1950

Bank overdrafts 53 - 53 168 168
Accrued interest to be paid 27 - 27 27 27
Other 69 14 55 54 5 49
Bank credit facilities {drawn confirmed) 193 - - - - - -
Nominal value of borrowings 2,099 1464 B35 2199 1955 244
Cumulative effect of amortized cast and revaluation due to

hedge actounting 1 14 {3} 17 28 28 -
Commutments ta purchase non-controlling interests 293 83 210 (o) 87 79 8
Derwative financial instruments 197 532 1 521 o) 33 12 21
Borrowings and other finencial habilities 2938 1555 1,383 2347 2014 273

a Included the firm commutment of €193 million related to the share repurchase program in place as of December 31, 2015 (please refer to
Note 15)

b Included the collar hedge (€483 million) denominated in USD on Vivend!'s interest in Activision Blizzard, this instrument was unwound on
January 13, 2018 (ptease refer to Note 12}

19.1  Fair market value of borrowings and other financial liabilities

December 31, 2015 Decermber 31, 2014

Carrying Fair market Level Carying  Fair market Lovel
{tn milhons of euros} valug valug value value
Nominal value of borrowings 2,095 2,199
Cumulative effect of amortized cast and revaluation due to hedge
acgounting 14 8
Borrowings at amortized cost 2113 2,272 na 2,227 2,483 na
Denvative financial instruments 532 532 2 33 33 2
Commitments &0 purchase non-controlling interests 293 233 a3 87 87 3
Borrowings and other financial habilites 2,938 3097 2397 2,603

na not applicable

a Included the firm commiment of €193 milkion related to the share repurchase program in place as of December 31, 2015, classified in Levef 1
{please refer to Nate 15}
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19.2 Bonds
Interest rate (%) Maturty  December 31,2015  Dacember 31,2014
{in milions of euras) nominal effective
€750 milhon (March 2010} 4000% £ 15% Mar-17 750 750
€700 millon {December 2009} 4875% 495% Dec-19 700 700
€50¢ million (December 2008 4 250% 439% Dec-16 500 200
Nominal value of bonds 1,950 1,950

Bonds denominated in euros are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

Bonds :ssued by Vivend: SA contain customary provisions related to events of default, negative pledge and nights of payment (pari-passu
ranking} In addition, bonds tssued by Vivend: SA contain an early redemption clause 1n case of a change in contral +f, as a result of any such
event, the long-term rating of Vivendi SA 1s downgraded below investment grade status (Baa3/BBB-}

19.3 Bank credit facilities

Vivendi SA has a €2 billion bank credit facility, undrawn as of December 31, 2015 On October 30, 2015, the matunity of this credit facility
was extended for one year, to Qctober 2020

This bank credit facihty contains customary provisions relating to events of default and covenants retating to negative pledge, divestiture and
merger transactions In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivendl SA 1s required to comply with a Preportionate Financial Net Debt? to
EBITDA® financral covenant over a 12-manth rofling period not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loan MNon-comphance with this covenant
could result in the early redemption of the facility «f 1t were drawn, or its cancellation As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi SA was n
compliance with its financial covenant

The renewal of Vivend SA's confirmed bank credit facihity when 1t 1s drawn 1§ contingent upon the issuer reiterating certain representations
regarding its ability to comply with its finangial obligations with respect to lpan contracts

In addition, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €975 million, maturing 1In March 2016, was 1ssued in connection with Vivend!'s appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment (please refer to Note 23} In July 2015, its matunty date was extended to February 28, 2018, This letter of
credit 1s guaranteed by a syndicate of international banks with which Vivend) signed a Reimbursement Agreement that incudes an undertaking
by Vivend: to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out under the letter of credit On July 16, 2014, Vivendr strengthened the guarantees
given to the banks that are parties to the Reimbursement Agreement by placing a cash deposit of €975 million i an escrow account This
cash deposit could be used in prionty against a claim made against Vivendi, if any, and if the banks were called with respect to the letter of
credit

19.4  Borrowings by matunty

{in millions of euros} December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Matunity

< 1year{a) 635 30% 244 11%
Between t and 2 years 762 36% 505 23%
Between 2 and 3 years 2 - 750 4%
Between 3 and 4 years 700 34% - -
Between 4 and 5 years - 700 32%
> 5 years - - - -
Nominal vaiue of horrowings 2,099 100% 2,199 100%

a  As of December 31, 2015, short-term bomowings {with a matunty period of less than one year) manly included Vivendi SA’s bonds for
€500 million, maturing tn December 2016, as well as bank overdrafts for €53 million As of December 31 2014, they mainly inchsded bank
overdrafts for €168 mullion

As of December 31, 2015, the average “economic” term of the group’s financial debt, pursuant to which alf undrawn amounts on available medium
term credit lines may be used to redeem group borrowings with the shortest term was 4 6 years (compared to 4 9 years at year-end 2014)

? Relates to Financial Net Dabt as defined by Vivendh
? Aglates to EBITDA as defined by Vivend) plus dwidends recewed from unconsolidated companies
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As of December 31, 2015, the future undiscounted cash flows related to borrowings and other financial liabihities amounted to £3,145 million
{compared te a carrying value of €2,938 milhon) and are presented in Note 22 1 within the group’s contractual minimum future payments
schedule

195 Breakdown by nature of interest rate

{in mllions of euros} December 31 2015 December 31 2014
Fixed interest rate 2002 95% 1995 1%
Flgating interest rate 87 5% 204 3%
Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 2,099 100% 2199 100%

Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 450

Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1,450 {1,450}

Net position at fixed interest rate {1,000} {1,000}
Fixed intesest rate 1,002 48% 995 45%
Floating interest rate 1,097 52% 1,204 55%
Nomingl value of borrowings after hedging 2,039 100% 2,199 100%

Interest rate nsk

Vivendi's interest rate nsk management seeks to reduce 1ts net exposure to interest rate increases Therefore, Vivend uses pay-float:ing and
pay-fixed nterest rate swaps These (nstruments thus enahle the group to manage and reduce volatility for future cash flows related to
interest payments on borrowings Considering the fixed/floating rate hedging instruments implemented, an unfaverable change of 1% in the
interest rates would have & cumulative impact of -€10 million on net earmings

As a reminder, in December 2014, concomitantly with the redemption of the bonds having make-whole options, Vivendi made an early
settlement of pay-floating interest rate swaps having a notional amount of €750 million and €400 million  As of December 21, 2015, the
portfolio of Vivend!'s interest rate hedging instruments included the following swaps {unchanged as of December 31, 2014)

Notional amounts Fair value
Total Maturity December 31,2015 December 31, 2014

{in millions of euros) 2016 2017 Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 - 450 - {9) - (12)
Pay-floating Interest rate swaps {1,450}  (1.000) {450) 49 - 75 -
Net position at fixed interest rate {1,000}  {1,000) - (a) 49 {9) 75 (12)
Breakdown by accounting category of rate hedging nstruments

Fair Value Hedge (1,008}  {1,000) 19 - 35 -
Economic Hedging (h) - - [ 30 {9 40 (12}

a Included pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 million, as well as pay-fixed interest rate swaps for the same
amount, maturing in 2017, qualified as economic hedges

b The economic hedging instruments relate to denvative financ:al instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
IAS 39

196 Breakdown by currency

{in millions of euros) December 31 2015 December 31 2014
Euro - EUR 2,002 98% 2,562 8%
Other 47 2% 37 2%
Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 2,099 100% 2199 160%

Currency swaps USD 793 748

Other currency swaps {126} {52}

Net total of hedging iastruments (a) 673 696
Euro - EUR 2,725 130% 2 858 130%
US dollar - USD (799) -38% {748) -34%
Other 173 8% 89 4%

Nominal value of borrowings after hedging

2099

100%

a  Notional amounts of hedging instruments translated into euros at the closing rates

219
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Foreign currency nsk

The group’s foreign currency nsk management s centralized by Vivendi SA’s Financing and Treasury Department and primanly seeks to
hedge budget exposures (at an 80% level) resutting from monetary flows generated by activities performed 1n currencies ather than the euro
as well as from external firm commitments (at a 100% level), prmanily relating to the acquisttion of editonal content {e g, sports, audiovisual
and film nghts} and certan capital expenditures (e g, set-top boxes), realized in currencies other than the euro Most of the hedging
instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a matunity peniod of less than one year Considering the foreign
currency hedging instruments estabhished, an unfavorable and uniform euro change of 1% against all foreign currencies i position as of
December 31, 2015, would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earmings {below €1 million} In addition, the group may hedge
foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-currency denominated financia! assets and hiabilities Moreover, due to their non-significant
nature, net exposures related to subsidiaries’ net working capital (internal flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are generally not
hedged The assotiated nisks are settled at the end of each month by translating the amounts into the functional currency of the relevant
operating entities

The principal currencies hedged by the group are US dollars {USD) and British pounds {GBP) In 2015 and 2014, to hedge against a possible
depreciation of its net investment in certain subsidiaries in the United Kingdom due to an unfavorable change n GBP, Vivend set up a hedge
using forward contracts for a notional amount of £832 million, or £1,141 million at forward rate From an accounting perspective, these
hedge instruments were considered as net investment hedges

The following tables present the foreign currency risk management instruments used by the group, the positive amounts relate to currencies
10 be received, the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered at contractual exchange rates

December 31, 2015

Notional amounts Fair value
(in mithons of euros} Total UsD PLN G8P Other Assets Liabilities
Sales against the euro [4,539) {55} {290) {1,159} {31} 18 [¥4]
Purgchases against the euro 2212 691 70 1377 114 16 (3N
Other - 198 {118) 13 (67) 5 {1}
677 794 {338) 205 16 39 {40)
Breakdewn by accounting cateqory of foreign currengy hedging instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro {53) {4} (35) - {14) - -
Purchases against the euro 43 47 - - 1 2 -
Other - 24 {24) - - 1 {1}
(5) 67 (59) - {13) 3 1)
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the euro {325) {51} (255) (18) 1) 6 (2}
Purchases agamnst the euro 333 3z - 21 - # {2
Other - 106 (94) (8) {4) 4 -
8 367 {349) {5) (5) 2 4}
Net Investment Hedge
Sales aganst the euro {1,141) - - {1141} - 12 -
{1181} - - {1,191} - 12 -
Economic Hedgng {a)
Sales aganst the guro {17 - - - 117 - -
Purchases against the euro 1832 292 70 1,356 14 3 {35}
Cther - B8 - (5} {63} - -
1815 360 70 1,351 3 3 {35}
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December 31 2014

Notsonal amounts Fair value

{in miilions of euros) Total uso PLN GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales against the euro {1,233 (52) (56} {1062} {63} 2 {19}
Purchases against the euro 1908 ni 51 1.020 120 40 2)
Other - 59 - i {60} 1

675 724 {5} {41} {3) [5] {21)
Breakdown by accounting categary of forergn currency hedoing instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales agamnst the euro (67) (9} {45) (2 1 2 iy
Purchases against the euro 33 33 - - - 2 -
Other - - - - -

(34) 24 {45) 2 m 4 (1
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the euro {68} {43 n (14} - . (1}
Purchases agamnst the euro 275 275 - 14 -
Other - ki - 1 {8 - -

207 235 {11} {13} (4) L) {n
Net lavestment Hedge
Sales agamnst the euro {1 046 . {t 046) - {17

(1,046) - - {1.046) - - n
Economic Hedging (a)
Sales agamnst the euro {52} - - - (52} -
Purchases against the euro 1600 409 51 1,020 120 24 {2}
Other 56 - - |56} i -
1,548 455 51 1,020 12 F (2)

a  The economic hedging instruments relate to denivative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to

1AS 39
19.7 Derivative financial instruments

Value on the Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2015

December 31 2014

{in mullions of euros) Note  Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiities

Interest rate nisk management 195 49 {9 75 (12)
Foreign currency nsk management 196 39 {40 43 21}
Qther 27 (483) ta) 21 -
Dervative financial instruments 15 {532) 139 (33}
Deduction of current derivative financial instruments (47} 521 {40) 21

Non-current derivative financial instruments (11) 9% {12}

a Related to the coltar hedge denominated in USD on Vivendr's interest in Activision Blizzard This instrument was unwound on

January 13, 2016 [please refer to Note 12}
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Unrealized gains and losses recognized directly in equity

Cash Flow Hedge
Interest rate Forengn Net Investment Total
nsk currency nsk Hedge

{in millions of euras) management  _Mmanagement

Balance as of December 31, 2013 9 5 6 20
Charges and mcome directly recognized in equity - ] (56} (90}
ltems to be reclassified to profit or loss 15 {6) - 9
Tax effect - (2) - {2)
Balance as of Decembar 31, 2014 21 3 {50) {23}
Charges and income directly recognized in equity - {3 (66) {69}
ltems 1o be reclassified to profit or loss 1 1 - (10}
Tax effect - 1 - 1
Other - {1 - {1
Balance as of December 31, 2015 13 1 {116) (102)

19.8 Credit ratings

As of February 10, 2016, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015, Vivendi's credit ratings were as follows

Rating agency Type of debt Ratings Qutiook

Standard & Poor's Long-term corparate debt BBB } Stable
Senior unsecured debt BBB

Moody's Long-term senior unsecured debt BaaZ Stable

Fitch Ratings Long-term senior unsecured debt BBB Stable

Note 20 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

20.1  Adjustments

Year ended December 31
{in millions of euros) Note 2015 2014
ltems retated to operating activities with no cash impact
Amortization and depreciztion of intangible ard tangible assets 3 716 743
Change in provision net [53) (125)
Cther non-cash items from EBIT 12) n
Other
Dther income from EBIT 4 1745) {203}
Other charges from EBIT 4 45 30
Proteeds from sales of property plant equipment and intangible assets 1 3
Adjustments {38} 47

20.2 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

On June 24, 2015, Vivendi swapped a 4 5% interest in Teleforuca Brasil with Telefonica 1n exchange for 8 24% of Telecom ltalia common
shares The value of the interest tn Telecom talia amounted to €1,265 mill:on as of this date

On September 16, 2015, Vivend! swapped a 35% nterest in Telefonica Brasil tn exchange for 46 million Telefonica shares {1 e, a 095%
interest} The value of the interest in Telefonica amounted to €538 million In December 2015, Vivend: received 1 4 mitlion Telefonica shares
with respect to the payment of a dividend 1 shares, representing a value of €16 million Flease refer to Note 2 3

On November 27, 2014, Vivend) soid 100% of its interest in SFR to Numencable and received €13,166 mullion in cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the newly combined entity Numencable-SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting nghts This 20% interest in
Numerncable-SFR was sold on May 6, 2015 for £3 922 million, €1,948 mithon received on May 6, 2015 and €1,974 million received on
August 19, 2015

in 2015 and 2014, there was no significant financing actvity without cash impact
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Note 21  Related party transactions

As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi's main related parties were
« corporate officers who are members of Vivendr's Supervisory Board and Management,
+ subsidiaries over which Vivend exercises an exclusive or joint control, and companies over which Vivend exercises a significant
influence {please refer to Note 24 for major consolidated entities or entities accounted under eguity method),
afl companies in which corporate officers or their close relatives hold significant voting rights, and
minerity shareholders exercising a significant influence over group subsidianies as of December 31, 2015

211 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

On June 24, 2014, Vivendi's General Shareholders” Meeting notably appeinted three new Supervisory Board members Ms Katie Jacobs
Stanton, Ms Virginie Morgon and Mr Phifippe Bénacin

Vivendi's Supervisory Board, which was convened immediately following the General Shareholders’ Meeting on June 24, 2014, appointed
Mr Vincent Bolloré as Chairman The Board also appointed Mr Pierre Rodocanachi as Vice-Chairman and Mr Jean-René Fourtou, as
Honorary Chairman

On June 24, 2014, the Supervisory Board alsc appornted Mr Hervé Philippe and Mr Stéphane Roussel as members of the Management
Board, to serve alongside Mr Arnaud de Puyfontaing, Chairman

On April 17, 2015, Vivend's General Shareholders’ Meeting notably appormted two new Supervisory Board members Mr Tarak Ben Ammar
and Mr Dom:mque Delport Thereafter, on September 2, 2015, the Supenvisory Board co-opted Ms Cathenine Lawson-Hall as a member of
the Supervisory Board This co-option will be submitted to the next General Shareholders” Meeting of Aprii 21, 2016 for ratification

The Supervisory Board 15 currently compnised of 14 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative it i1s made up of six women, 12 a ratio of 46% {in accordance with Law n°2011-103 of January 27, 2011, the employee
representative 1s not taken into account for the calcudation of this percentage)

On November 10, 2015, the Supervisory Board appointed Mr Frédénc Crépin, Group General Counsel, and Mr Simon Gillham, Chairman of
Vivend Village and Senior Executive Vice President, Communicatiens, as members of the Management Board

The Management Board 1s currently comprised of five members

Compensation of corporate officers
Management Board

The gross compensation, including benefits i kind, paid by the group in 2015 to the members of the Management Board amounted to
€4 7 million, pro rata to their term of office Thrs amount comprised the fixed compensation (€2 5 miflion) and the vanable compensation paid
with respect to 2014 (€2 2 million), as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 27, 2015 and November 10, 2015

On February 18, 2016, the Supervisory Board approved the varable compensation of members of the Management Beard with respect to
2015, to be paid 1n 2016 for an aggregate amount of €3 1 million, pro rata to their term of office, as well as the achievement rate of the 2014
performance share ptan granted to Mr Arnaud de Puyfentame, who conseguently received 79,123 performance shares {1 e , 75% of the imitial
grant)

The Chatrman of the Management Board, Mr Amaud de Puyfontaine, renounced his employment contract in accordance with the provisions
approved by the General Shareholders” Meeting hefd on Apnil 17, 2015, he was granted a contractual severance package in the event of
forced departure and subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions

In 2014, the three members of the Management Board, in office as of December 31, 2014, received a fixed compensation of €1 6 milion, in
respect of their position as corporate officers

In addition, with respect to 2014, the members of the Management Board in office until June 24, 2014 receved a fixed and vanable
compensation in 2014 for an aggregate amount of €2 1 million, and the variable compensation with respect to fiscal year 2013 as approved
by the Supervisary Board on February 21, 2014 (€1 0 million)

The charge recorded by Vivendi with respect to equity-settled share-based compensation plans granted to the current members of the
Management Board amounted to €1 9 million in 2015 (€2 1 million 1n 2014)
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The charge recorded by Vivend: with respect to the vested rights under the pension commitments of the Management Board members in
office as of December 31, 2015 amounted to €4 1 million (compared to 2 2 milhon in 2014) The amount of net pension obligations toward the
members of the Management Board in office as of December 31, 2015 amounted to €21 2 million as of this date The former Chairman of the
Management Board, who served until June 24, 2014, exercised, on that date, his pension benefit rights after 23 years of service within the
group and a debit on plan assets was recorded for €9 4 million

Supervisary Board

For 2015, the Supervisory Board decided, at its meeting held on February 27, 2015 and upon the recommendation of the Corporate
Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee, to grant the payment of an annua! director’s fee of €60,000 to the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board and to offset it against his annual compensation capped at €400,000, which was consequently reduced to €340,000 and
remains subject to the same performance conditions used 10 calculate the 2015 vanable compensatign of the Management Board members
On February 18, 2016, the Supervisory Board approved the level of satisfaction of perfermance conditions and as a result, decided to set the
compensatton of the current Chairman of the Supernsory Board at £€340,000 for 2015

For the penod from June 24 to December 31, 2014, the compensation of the Chawrman of the Superisory Board sn office, paid in 2015,
amounted to £€207,778 on a prorata tempons basis The fixed compensation paid to the Chairman of the Supervisary Board in office until
June 24, 2014 amounted to €338,333 on a prorata temporis basis

The gross amount of directors’ fees paid to the remaining members of the Supervisory Board with respect to 2015 was €1,131,666 {compared
to €1,048,571 in 2014) Moreover, at its meeting held on Apnl 4 and 5, 2014, the Supervisory Board decided to award an additional
compensatian of €130,000 to members of the ad hoc Committee, in recognition of the warktoad due to its mandate and the high quality of
the work they had contributed

Moreover, at its meeting held on September 2, 2015, Vivend''s Supervisory Board authorized the Management Board to enter into an
agreement with Mr Dominique Delport, a member of Vivendi's Supervisory Board, for a five-year penod as from Octaber 1, 2015 Pursuant to
the terms of this services contract, Mr Delport provides assistance and advice regarding the creation and use of new digital contents as part
of the development of Vivendi Contents and Dailymotion, for an annual fee capped at €500,000 As part of this contract, Vivend paid €75,000
in 2015 In addition, pursuant to the terms of this contract, Mr Delport was granted a long-term incentive plan, as described in Note 18

Chapter 3 of the Annual Report contains a detarled descniption of the compensation policy and the compensation and benefits of
Vivend: SA’s carporate officers, in accordance with the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code

212  Other related parties

A list of Vivendr's major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity method 1s presented in Note 24
« The transacttons between consolidated companies are not incfuded in the group’s Consolidated Financial Statements
* A list of the companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant influence 1s presented in Note 11 1t 1s pnmarily compnised of
Telecom Italia held at 21% by Vivendi, and Vevo, held at 49% by Universal Music Group The transactions with compan:es accounted
for under the equity method are presented (n the table helow

Companies in which Vivends's carporate officers or their close relatives hold significant voting rights are notably
« Bolloré Group and s subsidianes, directly er indirectly controlled by Mr Vincent Bolloré, Chawrman of Vivendi's Supervisory Board,
and his family,
¢ Havas Group and its subsidiaries, 60% held by Bolloré Group, and
=  Quinta Communications, held by Mr Tarak Ben Ammar

Since Apni 9, 2015, Bolloré Group holds 196 4 milion Vivend: shares As of December 31, 2015, these shares represented approximately
14% of Vivend's share capital Vivend: paid, on Apnl 23, 2015, a dwvidend of €196 4 mullion to Group Bolleré, with respect to fiscal year
2014, and, on June 29, 2015, an intenm divedend of €196 4 miflion, with respect to fiscal year 2015 On February 3, 2016, Vivend) paid a
second interim dividend of €196 4 million to Group Bolloré, with respect to 2015

Excluding the follow:ng transactions with related parties, there are no other transactions between Vivend, Havas Group, Bolloré Group, and
thesr corporate officers
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(1n milhons of euros) 2015 2014
Assets
Trade accounis receivabte and other 37 22
Of which Havas Group i 1
Liabilities
Trade accounts payable and other 13 0
Of which Havas Group 3 3
Boitoré Group 3
Statement of earnings
Operating income 156 100
Of which Havas Group 3 2
Telecom Itahia 7 -
Operating expenses {61) (72)
Of which Havas Group {25 {24}
Bolloré Group {9/ {9l
Advertising transactions
Of which advertising sales realized via Havas' agencies 89 83
media costs realized via Havas' agencres {74} {62}

The following constitutes complementary information about certain related parties’ transactions Certain Havas Group's subsidiaries render
operating services to Vivend and sts subsidianies on an arm’s-length basis Regarding Canal+ Group

as part of their advertising campaigns, customers of Havas Group entered into transactions with Canal+ Group through medra
agencies for an aggregate amount of €35 million 1n 2015 (€89 million 1n 2014),

as part of the advertising campaigns devefoped for Canal+, Canalsat and Canalplay, Canal+ Group entered into transactions with
major med:a comparves through Havas Group and 1ts media agencies for €72 million in 2015(€62 milhon 1n 2014},

media and production services, broadcasting nights and fees were completed by Havas Group and its subsidiaries for €13 milfion n
2015 (€9 million 1n 2014}, and

Havas Group and its subsidianes destgned and developed advertising campaigns in favor of Canal+ Group for €11 million i 2015
{€13 mullion 1n 2014}

In addition, en October 8, 2015, Studiocanal and Quinta Communications entered into an agreement to sell video, TV and Video-on-demand
explostation rights i France and in other French-speaking territories for 28 mowies The imitial duration of this contract ;s five years In 2015,
this contract represented a non-significant amount for Studiocanal

Note 22  Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivend's matenial contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities include

contracts entered into, which relate to the group’s business operations, such as content commitments [please refer to Note 10 2),
contractual obiigations and commercial commitments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position, including finance leases, off-
balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as long-term service contracts
and purchase or mvestment commitments,

commitments related to the group's consohdation scope contracted through acquisstions or divestitures such as share purchase or
sale commitmants, contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture or
acquisition of shares, commitments resulting from shareholders’ agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over
Vivend’s assets,

commitments related to the group’s financing undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities as well as the management of interest rate,
foreign currency and hiquidity risks (please refer to Note 18), and

contingent assets and Liatibities related to hitigatron in which Vivend and/or its subsidianies are either plaintiff or defendant (please
refer to Note 23)
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221 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2015 Total mmimum future
Total Due in payments as of
{in milhons of euros) Note 2016 2017 - 2020 After 2020 December 31, 2014
Bomowings and other financial ligbilities 3145 1459 1669 17 2623
Content liabilmes 102 2569 2516 69 4 2433
Consohdated statement of fmancial position tems 5,734 31975 1,730 21 5,056
Contractual conient cormitments 102 6,622 2,345 4219 58 5135
Commercial commitments 1069 350 555 164 1,160
Operating leases and subleases 680 96 340 244 540
Net commitments not recorded in the consolidated statement
of tinanctal position 831 2719 5114 456 74935
Contractual obhigations and commercial commitments 14,105 6,766 6,852 487 12901
Oft balance sheet commercial commitments
Minirmum future payments as of December 31 2015 Total minimym future
Total Due in ____ paymentsasof
(sn milligns of euros) 2016 2017 - 2020 Atter 2020 December 31, 2014
Satellite transponders 605 102 360 143 752
Investment commitments 64 45 19 - BS
Other 353 268 264 21 510
Given commitmants 1222 415 643 164 1347
Satellite transponders {144} (29 {85} . (187}
Cther {9} {6} (3 - -
Recewed commitments {153) 165) {88) . {187}
Net total 1,069 350 ] 164 1,16=!JI
Off balance sheet operating leases and subleases
Minimum future leases as of December 31 2015 Total muarmum future
Total _Duem Ieases as of December
fin millons of euros) 2016 27 - 2020 After 2020 31,2014
Buildings m 10 5 245 652
Other 1 1 - - b
Leases 702 m 345 246
Buildings {22) {15) {5} {2} {18}
Subleases {22} {15} (%) {2) {18}
Net total 9% 340 204 640

In addition, in October 2015, Universal Music Group entered into an agreement for lease with respect to the off-plan office space of
approximately 15,000 m? tocated in the King's Cross area in London The iease 1s expected to be signed upon delivery of the premises 1n 2017
for a 15-year period

222  QOther commitments given or received relating to operations
Given commitments amounted to a cumulative amount of €68 million (compared to €87 milion as of December 31, 2014} In addition, Vivendh
grants guarantees in vanous forms to financial institutions or service providers on behalf of its subsidianies in the course of their operations

Recewved commitments amounted to a cumulative amount of €40 million {compared to €49 million as of December 31, 2014}

223  Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of operations and frnancial assets, Vivendi has granted or receved commitments to purchase or sell
securities

» call and put options on Orange's interest m Dailymotion (please refer to Note 2 1),

¢ call and put options on the Interests in Radionomy held by minonty shareholders {please refer to Note 2 6),

¢ project to invest in the future Banijay Zodiak Group {please refer to Note 2 7), and

«  lguidity nghts in respect of the strategic partnership between Canal+ Group, [Tl and TVN {please refer to Note 22 5 below)

Vivendi and 1ts subsidiaries have granted or recewed purchase or sale options related to shares in equity affiliates and unconsolidated
investments
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224 Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the
divestiture or acquisition of shares
ontsxt

et

" Sale of GVT (May 2015)

R

Characteristics (nature and amount) Ex

re ol . B < EA T AES R AT A, e e b Vet X 3 Sl
Representations and warranties, mited to specifically sdentified tax matters, capped at -

BRL 180 milhon {please refer 1o Note 2)

Sale of the 20% mnterest in SFA to Numencable-
SFR {February 2015}

Commitments undertaken 1n connection with the sale [please refer to Note 2) -

(a)

Sale of Maroc Telecom group {May 2014)

Commitments undertaken in connection with the sale -

(bl Sale of Activision Blizzard (October 2013} - Unhmited general guarantees, and
- Tax guarantees capped at $200 million, under certain circumstances )
Merger of Cyfra+ and "n" platforms {November Reciprocal guarantees in favor of TVN not implemented and expired on July 1 2015 2015
012) - PLN 1 bllson 1n the event of a breach of any representation or warranty ar covenants
and
- PLN 300 mitlion in the event of a breach of specific representation or warranty
{c} Acquisitton of Bofloré Group's channels Commitments undestaken, in connection with the authonization of the acquisition, with 2017
{September 2012) - the French Competition Authonty, and
- the French Broadcasting Authonty
Divestiture of PTC shares (December 2010} Commitments undertaken in arder 10 end liigation over the share ownership of PTC
- Guarantees given to the Law Debenture Trust Company (LOTC), for an ameunt up to
18 4% for the first €125 mi¥hion 46% between €125 mitlion and €288 mithen and
50% thereafter and
- Guarantee given to Poltel Investment s {Elektrim) admunistrator
(d) Canal+ Group's pay-TV activities in France New appraval of the acquisition of TPS and CanalSateilite subject to compfiance with M7
{January 2007-July 2017} mjunctions ordered by the French Competitron Authorrty
Dwvestiture of PSG {June 2006} Unlimited specific guarantees 2018
Dwvestiture of UMG manufacturing and Varipus commitments for manufactuning and distribution services ms
distributron operations {May 2005)
Divestiture of NC Numenicable {March 2005) Specific guasantees capped at €241 million {including tax and social nisks) not 2014
impiemented and expired as of December 31 2014
NBC Universal transaction {May 2004) and - Breaches of tax representations,
supsequent amendments {2005 - 2010} - (bligation to cover the Most Favored Natian provistons and -
" - End of clerms related to remediak actions since May 11 2014 014
Divestiture of Canal+ Nordic {October 2003) Distriibution guarantees not implemented and expired as of December 31, 2014 given in 2014
favor of CanalDigitz| and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary
le) Safe of real estate assets (June 2002) Autonomous first demand guarantees given to Nexity capped at €150 mullion in total 07

{tax and decennial guaraniees)

Dwvestiture of Sithe (December 2000)

Specific guarantees capped at $480 million {environmental commitments, of wiich
potential habilities related to contamination risks)

Qther contingent liabihities
Merger of Cyfra+ and *n” platform (November
2012)

Cumulated amount of €11 million {compared to €7 million as of December 31, 2014)

Reciprocal guarantees :n favor of TVN, not implemented and expired on July, 1, 2015 2015
- PLN 1 billion in the event of a breach of any representation or warranty or covenants,

- PLN 300 milion in the event of a breach of specific representation or warranty and

- PLN 145 millign related to Neowision's unutilized tax losses camed forward

Acquisition of 40% of N Vision {November 2012}

Guarantees made by 1Tl capped at approximately
- €28 million for general guarantees, expired an May 30, 2014, and 2014
- €277 million for specific guarantees {including tax matters expiring in 2016 free and )
full ownership of shares sold, authorizations/approvals for the exercise of the
activity)

{c)

Acquisttion of Bolloré Group's channals
{September 2012)

Guarantees capped at €120 million 2017

Acquisition of EMI Recorded Music {September
2002)

- Commitments relating to full pension obligations in the United Kingdom assumed by
City, and

- Guarantees relating to losses stemming from taxes and hitigation claims, an particular
those related to pension obligatiens in the United Kingdom

Acquisition of Kinowelt [Apnl Z2008)

Specific guarantees notably on film reghts granted by the sellers

Divestiture of NC Numericabte {(March 2005)

Divestiture of Xfera [2003)

€151 million counter-guaranteed by Orange expired as of December 31, 2014 204
Guarantees amount to €71 millon .

Other contingent assets

Cumulated amount of £90 mill:on (cormpared to €86 million as of December 31 2014}
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and lrabilities described above

a The main terms of the Maroc Telecom group sale were as follows

« Vivend! provided certain customary representations and warranties to Eusalat relating to SPT {the holding company of Maroc
Telecom group}, Maroc Telecom and its subsidianies Vivend: alse granted a number of specific guarantees,

+ the amount of compensation payable by Vivendi in respect of indemnifiable losses incurred by Maroc Telecom or one of its
subsidianies was determined in proportion to the percentage of ownership held indirectly by Vivendi in the relevant company on the
closing date {1 e, 53% for Maroc Telecom),

¢ Viwend:'s overall obligation to indemnify was capped at 50% of the mitial sale price, wath such threshold increased to 100% in
respect of claims related to SPT,

e the commitments to indemnify provided by Vivend! under these guarantees, other than those in respect of taxes and SPT, wili remain
in effect for a 24-month time period following completion of the transaction {(May 2016) Clauns for tax-related indemnities must be
made by January 15, 2018 The indemmnity in respect of SPT remains i effect until the end of a four-year penod following the closing
(May 14, 2018), and

¢ {o guarantee the payment of any specific indemnity amounts referenced above, Vivendi delwered a bank guarantee with an
expiration date of February 15, 2018, to Etisalat in the amount of €247 miflien On July 8, 2014, Vivend received a discharge of this
guarantee for the amount of €229 million

Vivend| has agreed to counter-guarantee SFR for any amount that could be claimed by Etisalat or any third party other than Etisalat in

relation to the sale of its interest 1n Maroc Telecam

+ wath respect to the sale agreement entered into with Etisalat, this commitment will expire upon termination of Etisalat's nght to
make a claim against Vivendi and SFR, 1 e, May 14, 2018, and

+  this commitment, which also covers any amount that SFR may be required to pay to any third-party other than Etisalat, will expire in
the absence of any reguest from Numenicable Group within the applicable statutes of Imitations

b As part of the sale of 88% of Vivend:'s tnterest in Activision Blizzard, which was completed on October 11, 2013 {the "Closing Date”),
Vivends, ASAC Il LP and Activision Blizzard gave certain reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transactton (representations,
warranties and covenants) Vivendi, ASAC il LP, and Actiwision Blizzard undertook to indemmify each other against any fosses stemming
from any breach of their respective commitments Such indemnification 1s unhmited as to time and amount
in addition, Vivend: has agreed to indemn:fy Actvision Blizzard with respect te any tax or other habilities of Amber Holding Subsidiary
Co ("Amber”), the Vivends subsichary acquired by Activision Blizzard, relatng to penods preceding the Closing Date Such
indemnificabion 1s unlimited as to time and amount Tax attributes {mainly net operating loss) held by Amber and assumed by Activision
Bhzzard were estimated at mare than $700 million, which represent a potential future tax benefit of approximately $245 million Vivend
agreed to indemnify Actwvision Blizzard, under certain circumstances, with respect to these tax attributes, subject to a cap of $200 million
himited to fiscal years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016
As a reminder, as part of the creation of Activision Blizzard in July 2008, Activiston and Vivend! entered Into customary agreements for
this type of transaction, including tax sharing and :ndemnity agreements

¢ On July 23, 2612, as part of the French Competition Authonty's approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels
{renamed D8 and D17, respectively), Vivend: and Canal+ Group gave certain commitments These commitments provide for restrictions an
the acquisition of nghts for American movies and television series from certain Amencan stuchos and for French mowvies, the separate
negotiation of certain nghts for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television series, imitatrons on the acquisition by 08 and D17 of
French catalog movies from Studiocanal, and the transfer of nghts to broadcast major sports events on free-to-air channels through a
competrtive bidding process These commitments are made for a five-year period and are renewable once if the French Competition
Authonty, after having performed a competition analysis, deems it necessary In addiion, on September 18, 2012, the French
Broadcasting Authonty {Conseif Supérieur de 'Audiovisueh approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain commitments
relating to broadcasting, investment obligations and transfer nghts
On December 23, 2013, the French Council of State annuiled, with a delayed effect as from July 1, 2014, the French Competition
Authonity's approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed D8 and D17, respectively), which had been
approved on July 23, 2012 On January 15, 2014, Vivend: and Canal+ Group submitted a new notificatton to the French Competition
Authanty On Apni 2, 2014, the French Competition Authenty reapproved the transaction, subject to complhiance with commitments given
by Vivend and Canal+ Group These commitments are similar to the ones contamed in the previous 2012 authonzation except for an
additronal commitment relating to the acquisit:on of broadcasting nights covenng second and third exhibiion windows for French films
All commitments are binding for a penod of five years starting July 23, 2012 In 2017, the French Competition Authortty will have the
oppartunity to request a renewat of these commitments for the same duration, + deemed necessary, after a new competitive analysis

d  On August 30, 2008, the merger between TPS and the Canal+ Group was authonized, in accordance with the merger control regulations,
pursuant to a decision of the French Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivendi and Canal+ Group complying wath
certain undertakings for a maximum perod of six years, with the exception of those commitments concesung the availability of channels
and V0D, which could not exceed five years
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On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authorsty opened an enquiry in respect of the smplementation of certain undertakings given
by Canal+ Group n connection with the merger of Canalsatellite and TPS
On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected Vivend and Canal + Group’s filed motions requesting the annulment of the
french Competition Authority's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first motion, the €30 milhon fine imposed
on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 mulhont Under the second motion, the transaction was once again cleared, subject to compliance
with 33 ijunctions
Canal+ Group has implemented a number of these injunctions, some since July 23, 2012 and others since Qctober 23, 2012 The
tmunctions mainly focus on
¢ Acquisition of movie rights
- by hmiting the duration of output deals with Amenican studios to three years, requinng separate agreements for different
types of nghts (e g, first pay-TV window, second pay-TV window, senies} and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
by the Canal+ Group divesting its interest in Orange Cinema Senies — (0CS SNC or by adopting measures hmiting (ts influence
over Orange Cinema Series — OCS SNC On February 4, 2013, at the reguest of Multithématiques and to comply with the
injunction ordered by the French Competition Authonty on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Senies - 0CS SNC's
Board of Directors resigned from their posttions As a resuit, Multithématiques appointed by ietter with an effective date of
February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affiliation to Multithématiques to the Board of Directors of
Orange Cinema Sernes - OCS SNC
«  [istrbution of pay-TV special-interest channels
- hy the distnbution of a mamum number of independent channels, the distnbution of any channel holding premium rights,
and by drafting a model distnibution deal relating to independent channels included in the Canalsat offer,
- by the obligation to promote, In a transparent and separate manner, the distribution of exclusive independent channels on
each owned platform serving more than 500,000 subscnbers, and
- by making all its own mowvie channels distnibuted by Canal+ Group (Ciné+ channels) avarlable to third-party distributors
(unbundhing)
e Video-on-demand {VOD) and subscription video-on-demand (SVOD)
by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of VOD and SVOD rights on a non-exclusive basis, and not combining
them with rights purchased for linear distnbution on pay-TV,
- by offening Studiocanal's VOD and SYOD nights to any interested operator, and
- by forbidding exclusive distnbution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group's VOD and SVOD offers on Internet Service
Providers platforms
These njunctions are imposed for a period of five years and are renewable once At the end of the five-year penod, the French
Competition Authority will review the competition situation to determine whether the imunctions should be kept in place If market
conditions have changed significantly, Canal+ Group wall be able to request that these injunctions be lifted or partially or totally revised
An independent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competition Authonity on September 25, 2012, will be
responsible for monitering the implementation of the injunctions

e In connection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Nexity, Vivend granted two autenomous first demand guarantees, one
for €40 million and ane for €110 million, to several subsidianes of Nexity (SAS Nexim 1 to 6} The guarantees are effective until June 30,
207

Several guarantees given during prior years in connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired However, the time penods or
statute of limitations of certain guarantees relating, among other things, to employees, environment and tax hiabilities, in consideration of
share ownership, or given notably (n connection with the winding-up of certain businesses or the dissolution of entities are still in effect To
the best of Vivendi's knowledge, no material claims for indemnification agatnst such liabilities have been made to date

In addition, Vivend: regularly delvers, at the settlement of disputes and htigations, commitments for damages to third parties, which are
typical in such transactions

225 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders” or investors™ agreements {primanly those relating to nc+), Vivendi holds certain nghts {e g . pre-emptive nghts
and prionty nghts) that give 1t control over the capital structure of consolidated companies that are partially owned by minonty shareholders
Conversely, Vivend has granted similar nghts to these other shareholders in the event that it sells its interests to third parties

In addition, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of other consolidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsol:dated interests,
Vivend or sts subsidiaries have given or receved certain rights (pre-emptive and other rights) entitling them to mantain their nghts as shareholder
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Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN

The key liquidity nghts provided at the level of nc+ under the strategic partnership formed i November 2012 in relation to television services
i Poland are as follows

¢  Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire TVN's 32% nterest in nc+ at market valug, which 15 exercisable during the two
three-month peneds beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2016, and

+ n the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option, TYN has higuidity nghts n the form of an initial public offering of
1ts interest in nc+

In additron, 1in compliance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, 1t 1s stated that certain nghts and obligations of Vivend
under shareholders’ agreements (nc+} may be amended or terminated i the event of a change in control of Vivend or a tender offer for
Vivendr's shares These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiality provisions

226 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, no asset in Vivendr's Statement of Financial Posit:on was subject to a pledge or mortgage for the benefit
of third parties

Note 23 Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Vivendi 1s subject to various lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative or other proceedings
{collectively referred to herein as "Legal Proceedings”)

The costs which may result from these Legal Proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obligatton can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivendi's best estimate of the
risk, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such nsk if events oczur duning such proceedings As of December 31, 2015, provisions
recorded by Vivend for alf claims and litigations amounted to €1,222 million, compared to €1,206 mullion as of December 31, 2014 (please
refer to Note 16)

To the company’s knowledge, there are ne Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature {including any pending or threatened
proceedings in which it ts a defendant), which may have or have had in the previous 12 months a significant effect on the company and on its
group’s financial positien, profit, business and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 1s descnbed as of February 10, 2016, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved
the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015

Securities Class Action in the United States

Smce July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed against Vivend) and Messrs Jean-Marie Messier and Guillaeme Hannezo in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York and i the Umited States District Court for the Central Distnict of Califorma On
September 30, 2002, the New York court decided to censolidate these claims under its junsdiction into a single action entitled f re Vivendi
Universal S A Securtties Litigation

The plamtiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain provisions of the US Securities Act
of 1933 and US Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communications On January 7, 2003, the plaintsffs filed
a consohidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class (“class certification”),
that persons from the Umited States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or Amenican Depositary
Receipts (ADRs} of Vivend {fermerly Vivend: Universal SA) between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class

Following the class certification decision of March 22, 2007, a number of indwvidual cases were filed against Vivendi on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order consolidating the ndividual actions with the secunities class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court issued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class actien

On January 29, 2010 the jury returned its verdict It found that 57 statements made by Vivend: between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matenally false or misteading and were made m violation of Section 10{b} of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 Plaintiffs had
alleged that those statements were false and mesleading because they falled to disclose the existence of an alleged “liquidity risk” which
reached its peak \n December 2001 However, the jury concluded that nesther Mr Jean-Mane Messier nor Mr Guilfaume Hannszo were
irable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivend's shares was artificiatly nflated on each
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day of the class perred in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and USD0 13 and USB10 00 per ADR, depending on the
date of purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaintiffs in the class
action The jury also concluded that the infiation of the Vivend) share price fell to zero 1n the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Pans or New York markets {12 days) duning the class perod

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very clear statement, ruled, in the Mormson v National Austraha Bank case, that American
securities law only applies to “the purchase or sale of a secunty hsted on an American stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sale of any
other security in the United States ”

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and issued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the “Momison” decision, confirmed Vivendr's
positign by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendis ordinary shares on the Pans stock exchange and Limited the case to claims of
French, Amencan, Britsh and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi's ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court dened Vivendi's post-tnal
motions challenging the jury's verdict The Court also declined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plantiffs filed a petition before the Second Cireuit Court of Appeals seeking to appea! the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Pars stock exchange

In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and issued on February 1, 2012, the Coust, in applying the Morrisen decision, also dismissed the claims
of the individual plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Paris stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders whao may be part of the class Recipients
of the notice had until August 7, 2013 to file a claim form and submit documentation evidencing the validity of their claim These claims are
currently being processed and venfied by an independent claims administrator and by the parties Vivendi has the nght to challenge the
ments of these claims On November 10, 2014, at Vivendi's initiative, the parties filed a mutually agreed upon proposed order requesting the
Court to enter a partial final judgment on the January 29, 2010 jury verdict covenng a substantial portion of the claims Certain large claims
were excluded from this proposed judgment order as Vivendi continues to analyze whether to challenge the valdity of those claims Cn
December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partial judgment On August 11, 2015, the Court 1ssued a deciston whereby it excluded the claims
filed by Southeastern Asset Management (SAM), concluding that Vivend proved that SAM did not make mvestment decisions based on
Vivendi's supposedly fraudulent statements ("lack of reliance )

On January 21, 2015, Vivend: fited its Notice of Appeat with the Second Circust Court of Appeals This appeal will be heard together with
Vivend:'s appeal in the Liberty Media case in the first quarter of 2016

Vivead! believes that it has solid grounds for an appeal Vivendi intends to challenge, among other issues, the plaintiffs’ theones of
causation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge during the conduct of the trial Several aspects of the
verdict will also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specializing in the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 131 (Use of Estimates) and 13 8 {Provisions) Vivendi made a provision on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of €550 million (n respect of the damages that Vivendi might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Securities class action litigation in the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which folfowed the US Supreme Court's decision on June 24, 2010 in the Marmson case Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as i 2009, Vivend: re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at €100 milion as of December 31,
2010, 1n respect of the damages, If any, that Vivendi might have to pay solely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend) recogruzed a €450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend: considers that this provision and the assumptions on which tt 1s based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi might have to pay to the plaintiffs could differ from the current estimate As 15
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate 1s based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivendh
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Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed sust against Vivendr and Messrs Jean-Marie Messier and
Gwllaume Hannezo in the District Court for the Southem District of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered into by Viventh
and Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivendi Universai Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants
violated certain provisions of the US Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The
case had been consolidated with the secunties class action for pre-tnal purposes but was subsequently deconsohdated on March 2, 2009
The judge granted Liberty Media's request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the secunties class action
Jury with respect to Vivendi's hability (theory of "collateral estoppel”)

The Liberty Media jury retumed its verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend: liable to Liberty Media for making certain false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained 1n the parties” agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of €765 milhon Vivend: filed certain post-trial motions challenging the jury's verdict, including motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury’s verdict for lack of evidence and order a rew tnal

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verdict It also awarded Liberty Medra pre-judgment interest accruing from December 18,
2001untd the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on one-year US Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a finat judgment in the total amount of €945 million, including pre-judgment Interest, but stayed its execution while 1t considered
two pend:ng post-trial motions, which were denied on February 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend: filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal agatnst the judgment awarded, for which 1t beheves it has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend: filed a motion in the Second Crrcuit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment 1s entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultangously On Aprif 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals issued an Order granting Vivendi's motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case together with the Class Action Vivend filed its
Notice of Appeal in the Class Actron on January 21, 2015, these two cases will be heard together by the Court of Appeals in the first quarter
of 2016

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivendh maintained as of
December 31, 2015, the prowision 1n the amount of €345 million recorded as of December 31, 2012

Tnal of Vivend)'s Former Officers in Pans

In October 2002, the financral department of the Pans Public Prosecutor’s office (Parquet de Faris) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegediy untrue or maccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought in this investigation
refating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivend: joined the proceedings
as a civil party

The trial took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Pans Tnbunal of First Instance { Tribunal de Grande
Instance de Pars), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered 1ts judgment, in which 1t confirmed the previous recognition of Vivends as a civil party Messrs Jean Mane Messier,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys receved suspended sentences and fines Messrs Jean Mane Messier and
Guiliaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties The former Vivends
Officers as well as some civil parties appealed the decision The appeal proceedings were held from October 28 to November 26, 2013,
befere the Pans Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of €159,000 for
Mr Jean-Manie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissermnation of false or misleading information, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €850,000 for Mr Guiliaume Hannezo for msider trading, and a 10-month suspended prison sentence and a hine of
€5 million for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for insider trading On May 18, 2014, the Panis Court of Appeal rendered its judgment Regarding the
acts determined by the lower criminal court to constitute the dissemination of false or misleading information, the Court held that these acts
did not meet the critenia for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Manie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and
he received a 10-month suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine The Court also upheld the convictions against Messrs Hannezo and
Bronfman far insider trading and they receved fines in the amount of €850,000 {of which €425,000 1s suspended) and €5 million (of which
£2 5 million 15 suspended}, respectvely Finally, the Court set aside the lower court’s order for the payment of damages (€10 per share) to
certamn shareholders and former shareholders of Vivend {the “crvil action™) With regard to Vivend), the Court upheld the validity of its status
as a civil party to the proceedings, exonerated it from any responsibihity and voided the demand for damages brought against it by certain
shareholders or former shareholders An appeal has been filed with the French Supreme Court (Cour de Cassation) by certain of the
defendants and some civit parties
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LBBW et al agamnst Vivend:

On March 4, 2011, 26 nstitutional investors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, Italy, Sweden, Belgum and Austnia filed a
complaint against Vivend: with the Pans Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they atlegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications issued by Vivend) in October and December 2000, September 2001 and Apnl 2002 Subsequently, on Apnl 5 and
Apri1 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivend: the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of idaho, and the other by six German and British institutional investors Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the Brtish Columbia Investment
Management Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivend: based an the same grounds On January 7, 2015, the Pans Commercial Court
appointed a "third party” responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence their alleged holding of the secuntres

California State Teachers Retirement System et al against Vivendt and Jean-Marie Messier

On Apnl 27, 2012, 67 nstitutional foreign investors filed a complaint against Vivend: and Jean-Marie Messier before the Pans Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incerred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivend: and 1ts former CEQ,
between 2000 and 2002 On June 7 and September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new ptaintiffs joined these proceedings In November 2012 and March
2014, 12 plantiffs withdrew from these proceedings On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans appointed a “third party”
responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to evidence therr alleged holding
of the securities

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc , its Board of Directors, and Vivend,

In August 2013, a derivative action was inibiated in the Los Angeles Supenior Court by an individual shareholder against Activision Blizzard,
Inc {"Actvision Blizzard™ or the “Company™), all of the members of 1ts Board of Directors and against Vivendi The plaintff, Todd Miller,
alleges that Activision Bhzzard's Board of Dtrectors and Vivend! breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivend's
share ownership in the Company The plawintiff claims that the transaction would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that it
would also confer a disproport:onate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Kotick and Brian Kelly, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were aided and abetted by Vivend

On September 11, 2013, a second denvative action based on essentially the same allegations was initiated n the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minonty shareholder of Activision Bhizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day, another minority shareholder, Douglas Hayes, initiated a similar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Activision Blizzard's shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
Court of Chancery granted the motion enjoining the closing of the transaction However, on October 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overtumed this decision, allowsng far the completion of the transaction On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery conschidated
the Pacchia and Hayes actians into a single action entitled /n e Activision Blizzard Inc Securities Litigation

On March 14, 2014, a similar new action was mnitiated in the Delaware Court of Chancery by a minenity shareholder, Mark Benston This
action was consolidated into the /n Re Actvision Blizzard Inc Securities Litigation proceeding

In November 2014, the parties reached agreement on a global settiement which would put an end to this dispute On December 19, 2014, the
settlement agreement executed between the parties was filed with the Court for formal approval and then the shareholder notification
process commenced On May 20, 2015, the Court approved the settlement agreement, which terminated this itigation As a result of this
settlement, on June 26, 2015, the Los Angeles Superiar Court entered an order dismissing the aforementioned action brought by Todd Miller

Calling of the guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patnmoine to Unibail

Unibail has called tts indemnification guarantee issued by Anjou Patnmoine (a former subsidiary of Vivends} in connectian with the sale of
the CNIT offices in 1999 On July 3, 2007 the High Court of Nanterre (Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) ordered Anjou Patnmaine to
indemnify Unibail for a tax liability arising from the creation of offices and rejected all other claims On October 31, Z008, the Versailles Court
of Appeal reversed the High Court’s ruling, denied ail of Unibail's claims and ordered 1t to reimburse Arjou Patnmaine for all sums paid under
the first decision On November 27, 2008, Unibail appealed this decision On September 11, 2013, the French Supreme Court reversed the
October 31, 2008 ruling of the Versailles Court of Appeal and remanded the case to the Pans Court of Appeal The hearing was held on
Aprid 2, 2015 The Pans Court of Appeal rendered 1ts decision on June 4, 2015 |t ordered Anjou Patnmaoine to pay approximately €5 million
for building code related improvements However, it denied ail of Unibail's other claims Umibail filed an appeal against the judgment of the
Paris Court of Appeal, which was notified to Anjou Patrimotne on September 14, 2015
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Vivend Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM {a former subsidiary of Vivendi} against FG to cbtain the release of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a buitdings sale contract, HG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale followang a judgment of the Bedin Court of
Appeal, which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
damages Vivend delivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the vahdity of the reasomng of the judgment On Apn! 23, 2009, the Regional Berin Court 1ssued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 (n June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that decisien On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berln Court in Apnl 2009, which decided i
CGISBIM's favor and confirmed the invalidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase
the building and pay damages and interest This dectsion 1s now final In parallel, FIG filed a second claim for additional damages mn the
Berlin Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009 On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regional Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay G the sum of €3 9 million together with interest from February 27, 2009 CGIS Bl has appealed thts decision

Telefonica against Vivendi in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP {now Telefonica Brazl), filed a claim aganst Vivend: before the Cwil Court of S3o Paulo (3° Viara Civel dp Foro
Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de S50 Paulo) The company is seeking damages for having been blocked from acquiring control of
GVT and damages in the amount of 15 milhion Braziban reals {currently approximately €4 7 million) corresponding to the expenses incurred by
Teleforica Brazil in connection with its offer for GVT At the beginning of September 2011, Vivend: filed an objection to junsdiction,
challenging the junsdiction of the courts of Sao Paulo to hear a case invelving parties from Curitba This objection was disrmssed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on Aprl 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeal

On Apnil 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefonica’s claim for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivendi's responsibility for
Tetefonica’s falling to acquire GVT The Court notably highhghted the inherently nsky nature of operations in the financial markets, of which
Teleforica must have been aware Moreover, the Court dismissed Vivend’s counterclaim for compensation for the damage 1t suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carried out against 1t by Telefomca On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court's decision to the
5* Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of Sdo0 Paulo

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered into between Vivend: and Telefonica concerning the sale of GVT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute without payment to either side On May 28, 2015, the date of the completion of the sale of GVT by Vivend:,
the parties entered into a settlement agreement which terminated this litigation

Dynamo against Vivendi

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo investment funds, former shareholders of GVT, filed a complaint against Vivend) before the Bovespa
Arbitration Chamber {S30 Paulo stock exchange), seeking compensation amounting to the difference between the value of the shares sold by
them before Vivendr's acquisition of GVT and BRL70 00 per share According to Dynamo, the prowision in GVT's bylaws providing for an
Increase in the per share purchase price when the 15% threshold 1s crossed (the “poisen pil provision”) should allegedly have applied to the
acquisihion by Vivendi Vivendi, noting, first, that Dynamo had sold the vast majority of sts stake in GVT before November 13, 2008 (the date
on which Vivend) took control of GVT} and, second, that this poison pift provision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders’ Meeting in the
event of an acquisition by Vivend or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamo’s allegations The arbitral tnbunal has been constituted and a hearing
before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber is expected to be scheduled to discuss the ments of the case In parallel, on February B, 2013,
Oynamo filed an application with the 21st Federal Court of the capital of the State of Rio de Janerro to compel CVM and Bovespa to provide
the arbitral tribunal with confidentral information relating to the acquisition of GVT by Vivendr On December 17, 2014, the Rio de Janeiro
Court of Appeal authonized the provision of the abovementioned information solely to the arbitral tribunal, denying Dynamo access to the
information Notwithstanding the appeals filed by Vivend:, the confidential information was provided by CVM and Bovespa to the arbttral
tribunal On December 1, 2015, Dynamo filed a petition requesting access to this informatron Such request (s waiting decision by the arbitral
tribunal

Hedging-Gniffo aganst Vivends

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Gnffo funds filed a complaint aganst Vivend: before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber {S3o Paulo Stock
Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivend completed the acquisition
of GVT in 2003 On December 16, 2013, the arbitral tribunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their initial briefs The Hedging-
Gnffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they seld their GVT shares on the market and 125% of
the price pad by Vivendi 1n connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the “paisen pill” provision in GVT's bylaws
Vivendi beheves that the decision taken by the Hedging-Gnffo funds to se!l their GVT shares before the end of the stock market battle that
opposed Vivend: against Telefonica was their own decision made in the context of their management of these funds and can 1n no way be
attributable to Vivendi It also demies any application of the bylaw provision mentioned above, as it was waved by a GVT General
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Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivendi or Telefonica On July 23, 2015, the parties entered into a settlament
agreement which terminated this itigatron

Parabole Réunion

In July 2007, the group Parabole Réunion filed a legal action before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distnbute the TPS channels in Reunien Island, Mavyotte, Madagascar and Mauritius, and the degradation of the channels made
avallable to it Pursuant 1o a decision dated September 18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the
broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement channels that have substituted these channels and was ordered to replace the
TPS Foot channel in the event it 1s dropped Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Panis Court of Appeal
partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively If the channels were made
available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was unsuccessful in its claims concerning the content of the
channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the French
Supreme Court dismissed the appeat brought by Parabole Réunion

On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a claim against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement
magistrate of the Court of First Instance of Nanterre seeking enforcement of the fine imposed by the Pans Tnibunal of First Instance and
confirmed by the Court of Appeal {a request for such enforcement having been previously rejected by the enforcement magistrate of
Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court) On November 6, 2012, Parabote Réunion expanded its claim to cover the
TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On Apnl 9, 2013, the enforcement magistrate dismissed 1n part Parabole Réunton’s
claim and declared the rest inadmssible He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no tegal obligation with respect to the content or the
maintaining of programming on channels made available to Parabole Réunion and held, after noting that preduction of the TPS Faot channe!
had not stopped, that there was no need to replace this channel Parabole Réumion filed a first appeal against this judgment on Apnl 11,
2013 On May 22, 2014, the Versailles Court of Appeal declared this appeal inadmissible due to Parabole Réunion’s lack of representative
capacity On February 14, 2014, Parabole Réunion filed an appeal on points of law and filed a second appea! agamnst the Apnl 9, 2013
decision On Apnit 9, 2015, the French Supreme Court overturned the May 22, 2014 decision of the Versailles Court of Appeal in which the
appeal filed by Parabole Réurion on Apnl 11, 2013 was declared inadmissible The case was remanded to the Paris Court of Appeal, brought
before the Court by Parabole Réunion on Apnil 23, 2015 In parallel, the second appeal filed on February 14, 2014 by Parabole Réunion 15
currently pending before the Versailles Court of Appeal, following demal by the French Supreme Court on September 18, 2014, of the motion
seeking the recusal of the 16th chamber of the Versailles Court of Appeal filed by Parabole Réunton

At the same time, on August 11, 2008, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channet with a level of attractiveness similar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages On Apnil 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion fited a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distnibution
before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the failure of the companies of the group to fulfill thew
contractual obligations to Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy These two actions have been consolidated
into a single action On Apnl 29, 2014, the Pans Tribunal of First Instance partially recognized the admissibility of Parabole Réunion's claim
with respect to the period following June 19, 2008 and recognized the contractual liability of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the
guality of channels made available to Parabole Réumon The Tnbuna! ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Réunion,
rejecting the assessment produced by the latter On November 14, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed against the decision of the Pans Tribunai of
First Instance The court appointed expert 1ssued its report en December 18, 2015 and the case was argued before the Pans Court of Appeal
on January 28, 2016

belN Sports against the National Rughy League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports filed a complaint wath the French Competition authonity against Canal+ Group and the National Rugby
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting rights to the “TOP 147 for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons On
July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authorty iImpoesed intenm measures suspending Canal+ Group's agreement with the National Rugby
League as from the 2015-2016 season and mandated that a new tender process be organized Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League
appealed this decision before the Panis Court of Appeal

On October 9, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal thsmissed the appeal of Canak+ Group and the National Rugby League and directed the
National Rugby League to complete a new tender process for nghts to the "TOP 14" for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2015 On Qctober 30, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed against this decision On March 10, 2015, Canak+
Group withdrew 1ts appeal and an order of discontinuance was ssued on April 9, 2015, by the President of the Commercial Chamber of the
Parns Court of Appeal
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Action brought by the French Competition Authonty regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 9, 2009, further to rts voluntary investigation and a complant by Orange, the French Competition Authority sent Vivendi and
Canal+ Group a notification of allegations It alleges that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant position in certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivend and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and MB, on the one hand, and with Lagard&re, on the other Vivend: and Canal+ Group have
gach denied these aflegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authonty rendered a decision i which 1t dismissed the allegations of collusion, m respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, in respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authonty requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group’s exclusive distnbution nghts on channels broadeast by the group and independent
channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M8 and Lagardre channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On October 30, 2013,
the French Compet:tion Authority took over the investigation into these aspects of the case

Canal+ Group aganst TF1, M6, and France Télévision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a camplaint with the French Competstion Authorty against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Téléwision groups in the French-language film market Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption nghts into co-production
contracts, in such a way as to discourage competitron The French Competition Autharity 1s examining the case

Canal+ Group aganst TF1, and TMC Régie

On June 12, 2013, Canak+ Group SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Competition Authonity against the gractices of TF1
and TMC Régie in the televiston advertising market Canal+ Group SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promotion, having a single
advertissng division and refusing to promote the 08 channel during its launch The French Competition Authonty 1s examining the case

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5. 2014, a clatm was filed with Court of First instance of Nanterre by Copie France who 1s seeking compensation 10 respect of
external hard drives used in connection with the G5 set-top boxes Copie France claims that the external drive used by Canai+ s “dedicated”
to the set-top hox and therefore 1t should be treated as an integrated hard drive Copie France therefore believes that the applicable amount
of the compensation should be higher Copie France subsequently expanded its claim, asserting that the ameunt of compensation apphcable
to the "muftimedia hard drive” with 80 GB capacity should be also higher

Aston France against Canal+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authonty about Canal+ Group's decision to stop selling its satellite
subscription called “cards only” (enabling the reception of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled satelite deceders,
manufactured and distributed by third partres, including Aston} In paraliel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive refief
agawnst Canal+ Group before the Commercial Court of Pans, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to termnate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stap the marketing of satellite subscriptions called “cards only” On October 17, 2014, the Pans Commercial
Court 1ssued an order denying Aston's requests On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Pans
Court of Appeal, ruling in chambers, granted its requests and suspended the decision of Canal+ Group to stop selling its “cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authonty renders its decision on the ments of the case

Pro D2

On July 8, 2015, Altice filed an application for intenim measures and a referral on the ments with the French Competition Authority
concerning the practices of Canal+ Group, Eurosport and the National Rugby League (the "NRL”) during the allocation of Pro D2 broadcast
nghts Altice 1s challenging the way the broadcasting nights to French Pro D2 Rugby for the 2015/2016 to 2019/2020 seasons were
commercialized by the NRL durnng December 2014 The nghts idding process resulted n one portion of the nights being allocated to
Eurosport and the other portion being allocated to Canal+ Group on April 3, 2015 The French Compet:tion Authanty 1s expected to rule on the
request for intenm measures in the first quarter of 2016

Thirel against Canal+ Group

On December 23, 2015, Thirel filed a complaint against Canak+ Group seeking enforcement of a computer services contract, or, In the
alternative, an order against Canak+ Group to pay damages
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Complants agammst Mus:c Industry Majors in the United States

Several complaints bave been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and Califormia against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Internet music downfoads These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circurt Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing which was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process Is underway

Complaints against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalt:es for on line sales of music downloads and master nngtones On April 14, 2015, a
global transaction terminating the litigation was entered into This settlement transaction 1s expected to be formally approved by the Court in
the first quarter of 2016

Captol Records and EMI Music Publishing against MP3tunes

On November 9, 2007, Capitol Record and EMI Music Publishing filed a joint complant agamst MP3tunes and its founder, Michael
Robertson, for copynght infringement on the sideload com and mp3tunes com websites The trial was held in March 2014, and, on March 19,
2014, the jury returned a verdict favorable to EMI and Capital Records It found the defendants liable for knowingly allowing the unauthonzed
content on the websites On March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages I1n the amount of USD41 million On October 30, 2014 the Court
confirmed the verdict but entered judgment (n the reduced amount of USD12 2 million The defendants have appealed against the judgment

Mireille Porte aganst Interscope Records, Inc , Stefari Germanotta and Universal Mus:c France

On July 11, 2013, the artist Miredle Porte (AKA “Orfan”} filed a complaint against Interscope Records, Inc , Stefani Germanctta {AKA “Lady
Gaga”) and Universal Music France with the Pans Tribunal of First Instance for the alleged copynight infringement of several of Odan's
artistic warks

James Clar against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the artist James Clar filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France before
the Pans Tribunal of First Instance { Tnbunal de Grande Instance de Pans) for the alieged infringement of his work

Reti Televisive Italiane (RT1) against Dailymotion

Since 2012, several legal actions have been filed by RT] against Darlymotion before the Civil Court of Rome Similar to claims it has made
against other major online video platforms, RTI 1s seeking damages for infringement of its neighboring rights {audiovisual production and
broadcasting nghts) and unfair competition as well as the removal of the contested content from the Dastlymotion platform
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Note 24  Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity method

As of December 31, 2015, approximately 520 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the egquity method (compared to
approximately 540 entities as of December 31, 2014)

December 31 2015 December 31, 2014
Country Accounting Voting Ownership  Accounting Voting Owmership
Note Method Interest Interest Method Interest Interest
Vivendr S.A. France Parent company Parent company
Groupe Canal+ S.A. France c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Soci&té d'Edion de Canal Plus 25 France ¢ 100% 100% ¢ 49% 49%
Multithématiques SA S France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Canal+ Dverseas SA S France ¢ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
D8 France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Studiocanal S A France o 100% 100% C 100% 100%
ITI Neowision Poland o 51% 51% C 51% 51%
VSTV (a) Vietnam C 49% 49% C 49% 49%
TVN 210 Poland na - - E 49% 2%
Universal Music Group, Inc United States c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Universal Music Group Holdings Inc Unrted States c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
UMG Recordings Inc United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Vevo 1 United States E 49% 49% E 48% 45%
SIG 104 france C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Intgrnational Music BV Netherlands c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Music Entertainment GmbH Germany C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Music LLC Japan C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Music France S A S France ¢ 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Universal Music Holdings Limited United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
EMI Group Worldwide Hafding Ltd United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Vivend: Village
See Tickets United Kingdom C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Dipitick France C 100% 100% ¢ 100% 100%
MyBestPro {formerly Wengo) France C 100% 9% c 100% 0%
Watchever GmbH Germany C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
L'Olympia {b] France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Radionomy Group 26 Belgum C 64% 64% na - .
CanalQlympia 31 France C 100% 100% na -
New Inisatives
Dartymouon 21 France C 90% 90% na - -
Group Vivend Africa 31 France C 100% 100% na - -
Vivend) Contents 31 France ¢ 100% 100% na - -
Boulogne Studios 26 France C 100% 100% na -
Other
Telecom Itala 22 Itatia E 21% 15% na na na
Palte! Investment (Elektnm Telekomunikacya) Poland C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Discontinued businesses
Global Village Telecom § A 29 Branil na - c 100% 100%
! C Consolidated, E Equity, na not apphicable
a VSTV (Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) 1s held 43% by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a subsidiary of VTV {the
Vietnamese public television company) This company has been consolidated by Vivend! given that Canal+ Group has both operational
and financial control over 1t pursuant to a general delegation that was granted by the majonty shareholder and pursuant to the
company’s bylaws
b L'Olympia was transferred from Universal Music Group to Vivendi Village as from January 1, 2015
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Note 25  Statutory auditors fees

Fees pad by Vivend: SA in 2015 and 2014 to its statutory auditers and members of the statutory auditor firms (including fees related to
discontinued operations in 2015 and 2014 at prorata temporis, If any) were as follows

KPMG S A Ernst & Young et Autres

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Totat
{in milhons of euras) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 24
Statutory audit, certification consolidated and
indidual financial statements audit
Issuer 06 06 20% 10% 06 07 10% 10% 12 13
Fully consolidated subsidiaries 14 4i 47% 73% 52 55 82% 75% 66 96
Other work and services diractly related to the
statutory audit
Issuer 01 05 3% 9% 02 03 3% 4% 03 0B
Fufty cansotidated subsidiaries 02 01 7% 2% 03 05 5% 7% 05 086
Subtotal 23 53 7% 4% 63 70 160% %% 86 123
Other services provided by the netwoik to fully
consotidated subsichanas
Legal tax and socizl matters 06 02 20% 3% - 02 - 3% 06 04
Other D1 02 3% 3% - 01 - 1% 01 03
Subtotal 07 04 23% 5% - 03 - 4% 07 07
Total 30 57 100% 100% 6.3 13 100% 100% 93 13.0

Note 26  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivendi S A has provided guarantees to the following UMG subsidianies, incorporated i England and Wales under the registered number
indicated, in order for them to claim audit exemptions, with respect to fiscal year 2015, under section 479A of the UK Companies Act 2006

Name Company Number Name Company Number
Backcite Limited 02358972 Universal Music Holdings {UK} Limited 00337803
Centenary UK Limited 03478918 Universal Music Leisure Limited 03384487
EGW USD (08107589 Universal Music Pubhishing MGB Holding 05092413
E M Overseas Holdings Limited 00403200 UK Limited

EMI (IP} Limited 03984464 Universal SRG Artist Services Limited 01890289
EMI Group Electronics Limited 00461611 Universal SRG Group Limited 00284340
EMI Group Haoldings (UK} 03158108 Universal SRG Music Publishing Copyrights 02873472
EMI Group Internationaf Holdings Limited 01407770 Limited

EMI Group Worldwide 03158106 Universal SRG Studios Limited 03050388
EMI Limited 00053317 V2 Music Group Limited 03205625
EMI Recorded Music (Chile} Lirmted 07934340 Virgin Music Group 02259349
EMI Records UK Holdco Limited 06388809 Virgin Records Overseas Limited 00335444
UMGI {ATW) Limited 05103127 VRL 1 Limited 039567882
Universal Music (UK) Holdings Limited 03383881
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Note 27  Subsequent events

The significant events that occurmed between the closing date and February 10, 2016 {the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivend:'s Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015) were as follows

e 0On January 13, 2018, Vivendi unwound the hedge denominated in USD of the Activiston Blizzard shares that it held, and sold its
entire interest The cash proceeds from these transactions amounted to $1,063 milhion, 1 e, €976 million The unwinding of these
transactions also enabled Vivend to recover a cash deposit of $0 4 billion {please refer to Note 12},

¢ 0On February 3, 2016, following the coupon detachment on February 1, 2016, Vivend: distnbuted a second intenm dividend wath
respect to fiscal year 2015 for £1,318 million (please refer to Note 15}, and

*  As of February 10, 2016, Vivench held 64 6 rmullion treasury shares {please refer to Note 15)
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